


CREDO

To ensure that the method we use
is the latest technology the world over.
To follow the highest standards of
honest workmanship in whatever we
make. To walk the extra mile to
ensure customer satisfaction worldwide.
To remain a true cosmopolitan to the
spirit. To remain a great corporation
to associate with, to work for.

To know that “We are about people”.
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Liberty Shoes Ltd.

From the CEQ's Desk

Dear Sharzholders,

It was Gaulama Buddha who once said- “We are what we think. All that we are arises with our
thoughts. With our thoughts we make Ihe warld.”

We a Liberty Shoes have adopied ‘Think young, think fashion, think innovation” as our mantra as our
Company embarks on 2 new phase that sees it gamening the fruifs of consolidation that fook place in
2010-2011 and moving upwards on the growth trajeclony.

Our thinking, it would be accurate to slale. is diclated by our envirooment. And what an exciling
gnvironment it is tuming out to be! Our country i5, you'll appreciate, getting younger wilh roughly
two-thirds of our population below thirty five years of age. It's a scenario that presents a tremendous
opportunity provided we are able to grasp it.

| am happy to inform you fhal we have gquickened our pace of progress as we go all out to tum this
opportunity into achievemeni. Giving our brand a very young. very confemporary and very stylish
profile is 2 major slep in thal direction. Our designers, | am particularly delighted fo nofe, have been
working continuously fo make sure our footwear is frendy and on the lines of what is the current rage
in global fashion. And | am also pleased to report that our latest collection for the coming season in
terms of look and color and design is exactly what the youth have in mind. Indeed it would be correct
to say that a feeling called Liberty is truly the feefing of today's youth put across in a way they would
love 1o express themselves.

You'll, | am quite sure, agree with me when | say that the world of the young thrives on glamour and as
we Step info the new financial year our brand is all sel to acquire a glamiorous new profile that will
give it a very special place in the hearts and minds of footwear buyers.

To put it mildly these are very exciling fimes for Brand Liberly and for all of us as we welcome on
board Hrithik Roshan as our brand ambassador. Hrithik Roshan, as you are aware, is the heart throb of
the younger generation and embodies their dreams and aspirations. He also happens to be one of the
couniry's foremost style icons and we are quile positive his association will provide our brand with the
right connect {0 carve out an even bigger share in the burgeoning youth market.

Youll also find this positivity very much in evidence in the retail sphere where the dynamic
merchandising and marketing programs we invested in have started producing significant results. We
are now complementing our fashion right products and striking image campaign with a better mix of
retail locations.




In this contexi | would like to specially mention the dramatic rise of our presence in the southem
matket. You'll be delighted to know that foday Liberty is very visible in 2!l the major cities and towns
in South India and our marke! peneiration is gelting deeper and deeper by the day. This drive
will continue in other geographical directions too for giving Brand Liberty a truly pan India characler
and presence.

| would also like to add that markets are no longer about buying and selling: they're about
conversation, connection and interaction. And it's these that fuel innovafion, build customer
relationships and drive long-term business value. For us establishing a dialogue with customers and
listening to what they have to say is the best way to keep our business sirategies fresh, current and
compelling -- and customer-focused. After all, who knows us betier than our customers and our most
loyal ones at that?

We also realize thal it's no longer the product or service that differenliztes our brand; rather it's the
customer's experience with that product or service that sets our brand apart from the competition. It's
this change of perspective from inside-oul to oulside-in that's a key constituent of our strategy to
boost our growth in the marketplace. And of course it's the enthusiasm, drive and hard work of our
employees and business partners that's also helping push up our sales and earnings.

| wish to conclude by guofing Mapolean Hill, the legendary thinker, who observed: “Whatever the mind
of man can conceive and believe, it can achieve. Thoughis are things! And powerful things at that,
when mixed with definiteness of purpose, and buming desire, can be translated into riches.”

The though! thal drives us onwards is the desire lo reach new summils of excellence and | am
confident that with your backing and co-operation we will be able to transiate this burning desire into

a richly rewarding success.

Last year | concluded by thanking you for going that extra mile with us and this year | would like to
end by inviting you to join us in the upward frek fo higher peaks.




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Notice

Notice is hereby given thal the 25° (Twenty Fifth) Annual General Meeling of the Members of
Liberty Shoes Lid. (“the Company”) will be held on Wednesday, 28" September, 2011 at 11.00 AM.
al the Repistered Oifice of the Company situated 3t Libertypuram, 13" Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road,
Kutail, PD. Bastara, Distt. Karnal -132114, Haryana o fransact the following businesses -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31° March,
2011 and Balance Sheet as at thal date together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon.

. To appoint a Direcior in place of Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupfa. who retires by rofation and being eligible
offers himself for re - appointment.

. To appoint a Director in place of Sh. Adarsh Gupia, who refires by rofation and being eligible offers
himself for /e - appointment.

. To appoint a Direclor in place of Sh. Sunil Bansal, who refires by rofation and being eligible offers
himsell for re-appointment.

. To appoint Mys Pardeep Tayal & Co.. Chartered Accountants as Stafutory Auditors of the Company to
hold office from the conclusion of this meeling until the conclusion of ned Annual General Meeting
and to-authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

G. To conmsider and if thought fit, o pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESDLVED THAT Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company by the Board of Direclors under section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 and in respect
of whom the Company has received a nolice in writing proposing his candidature for the office
of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retfire by rofation.”

. To consider and il thought fit, o pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT puwsuant fo the provisions of Section 198. 309, 302 & 269 read with the
Schedule Xl of the Companies Act, 1956 (herinafier refemed fo as “the Act” including any
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and all the other applicable
provisions of the Act, if any, and in accomdance with Article 116 of the Arficles of Association of the
Company, the consent ol the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla, as the "Executive Direclor™ of the Company for 2 period of
5 years w.el 1st Oclober, 2011 on such terms and conditions including the remuneration payable
as enumeraled in the draft Service Agreement which is to be entered into between the Company and
Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as laid before the Members of the Company and initialed by the Chairman
of the Meeting for the purpose of identification.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft of the Service Agreement, as required fo be entered into
between the Company and Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupiz and laid before the Members of the Company,
be and is hereby approved and Sh. Munish Kakra Vice President & Company Secrefary of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized on behall of the Company fo execule the aforesaid Service
Agreement with Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the semuneration, proposed to be paid to Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as
Executive Director of the Company, shall not exceed the limifs as specified under the provisions of
Section 198, 309 & 269 read with the Schedule XIll of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or Commitiee thereof e and is
hereby authorized o vary or increase the remunesation and perquisites including the monetary value
thereot as specified in the atoresaid Sewice Agreement within the provisions of Schedule Xl of the
Act o the exien! the Board of Directors or Commillee theteol may consider appeopriale, as may be
permitted or authorized in accordange with the prowvision(s) under the Act or schedule appended
thereto and / or any rules or regulations made Ihere under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or Commitiee thereof and
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary in respect of aforesaid matter.”

To consider and il thought fit, 1o pass with or withoul modification(s), the following
resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 198, 309 & 269 rmad with the Schedule
Xl of the Companies Acl. 1956 ("the Acl” including any modification(s) or re-enactmeni(s)
thereol for the time being in force) and all the other applicable provisions of the Act if any,
and in accordance with Article 116 of the Articles ol Association of the Company, the consent
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of
Sh, Satish Kumar Goel as e “Direclor (Law & Taation)™ of the Company for a further period of
2 years wel 17 April, 2011 on the same terms and condifions incloding the remuneration payable
as enumerated in the draft Service Agreement which is to be entered into between the Company
and Sh. Satish Kumar Gosl as laid before the Members of the Company and initialed by the Chairman
of the Meeting for the purpose of identification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the drafi of fhe Service Agreement. as required fo be entered inlo
between the Company and Sh. Safish Kumar Goel and faid belore the Members of the Company, be
and is hemeby approved and Sh. Munish Kakra, Vice President & Company Secrelary of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to execule the aforesaid Service
Agreement with Sh. Satish Kumar Goel.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration, proposed fo be paid fo Sh. Satish Kumar Goel as
Executive Ditector of the Company, shall not exceed the limils as specified under the provisions of
Section 198, 309 & 269 read with the Schadule Xl of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or Committee thereof be and is
hereby authorized to vary or increase the remuneration and perquisites including the monefary value
thereof as specified in the aloresaid Service Agreement within the provisions of Schedule XIII of the
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Act to the exdent the Board of Directors or Committee thereol may consider appropriate, as may be
permitied or authorized in accordance with the provision{s) under fhe Act or schedule appended
thereto and / or any rules or reguiations made there under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directars of the Company or Commitieg thereol and
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized fo do all such acts,
desds and things as may be necessary in respect of aforesaid mattes.”

. To consider and if thought fif, 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuani o the provisions of Section 31, 259 and ail ofher applicable
provisions, it any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and subject to approval of the Central Government,
the consent of the Members be and s hereby accorded to amend the existing Article 84 of fhe
Articles of Association of the Company by deleting the word Twelve’ and substituting in its place the
word ‘Eiphtesn' and as a conseguence, the permissibie maximum number of Direciors be ingreased
from Tweive’ to Eighteen'

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT afier alteration Ardicle B4 be read as follows:

Arficie 84:The number of Direciors of fe Company shall nof be less than three and not more
than eighteen.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby aufhorized fo fake all such steps and
give all such directions as may be in ils absolute discretion deemed necessary to give effect
{0 this resolution.”

By arder of the Board
For Liberty Shoes Lid.

Place: Libertypuram. Kamal Munish Kakra
Dated: Friday, 12" Augusl. 2011 Vice President & Company Secrelary




NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AFORESAID ANNUAL GEMNERAL MEETING
IS ENTITLED TO APPDINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF.
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, DULY STAMPED, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY WOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

Corporate Members intending fo send iheir authorized seperesentativels) to attend the Annual General
Meeling are requesied 0 send 2 duly cerified copy of their Boamd Resolufion authonzing their
representalive(s) lo atlend and vole 2t the Annuzl General Meeling.

The relevani Explanatory Statement pursuant fo Sechhon 173{2) of the Companies Acl, 1956 in respect of
Special businesses, as mentioned in fhe Notice, is annexed hereto and forms paet of the Notice.

A briel profile alongwith mecessary information of Ihe Direcloss sesking their appointment [/ fe-
appointment in the forthcoming Annuzl General Meeting in pursuance of clause 49(W)(G) of the Lisiing
Agreemend is annexed as Annexure-A of the Annexure fo the Nolice of the Annual Benesal Mesting.

An abstract and Memorandum of Concern or Interest of Direclors in respect of terms and conditions of
appointment of Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta as the “Execotive Dimsctor™ of the Company for a peried of
5 years wel 1st Ociober, 2011 and re-appoiniment of Sho Satish Kumar Goel as the "Director (Law &
Taxation)” of the: Company for a further period of 2 years waf 17 April, 2017 has been peovidad in
the Explanalory Siatemen! attached herewith a5 required under the provisions of Sechion 302 of (he
Companies Act, 1956,

The ‘Repister of Mambers and Share Transfer Books shall remain closed from Friday, 23" September,
2011 to Wednesday, 28" September, 2011 (both days inclusive).

Members / Proxies | Authorized Representative(s) are requested o bring their Attendance Slip duly fillad
in and signed for attending the Mesting Members who hold Eguity Shares in Dematerialized Form are

requested lo write (the Chiend ID and DF ID Number and those who hold Equity Shares in physical form are
requesied 1o write their Folio Number in the Atlendance Siip for easier identification of attendance
at the Meeting

Conveyance facilily shall be provided for Meeting venue 3 Liberfypuram from Panipat bus stand and
Central House, Liberly foad, Kamal at 10.00 A M. on Wednesday, 28" September, 2011.
. Members are requested fo:-

@  Bring their copy of the Annual Report and Allendance Slip al the venue of the Meeling.

b. Quote their Folio f DP ID & Glisal ID No. in all comespondence with Company / Registrar &: Share
Transher Agent.
Note that na gift shall be distributed 21 the Anmual General Meeling.
Note that Members present in person or fwough registersd proay | authorized representative(s)
shall only be entertained.

.- Members holding shares in physical form are reguesied fo advise any change of address immediately
o Company's Registrar and Share Transier Agenl, Link Infime indiz Pvl. Lid. and Members holding
shares in elecironic foim musi advise fhedr respective depository participants abou! change in address
and not to the Company or the Company's Regisirar,

. In pursuance of circular No. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and circular No, 182011 dated April 29,
2011 issged by the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, the Company proposes fo sand
documents like- notice of General Meeting, Anneal Reporl elc. o fhe shareholders through efectronic
mode. We request you to participete in the Green Initigtive of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs by
registering your email 10 with your deposilory participant (Where the shas are held in dematerialized
form) or the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Link intime india Pvb Litd (where the shams
are held in physical lorm) by submiffing lhe E-Communication Registration Form attached with this
Annial Repart.

. All the documants referred to in the Motice and Explanaiory Statement are open for inspection at the
Regislered Office ol the Company on all Working days between 10.00 AM. and 100 FM. up to the
date of the forthcoming Annual General Meefing or any adjournment themof, excepl on Sundays and
other holidays.




-

£

R

f

\

14 Unpaid / Unclzimed Dividend:

The dividends which remain unpaid [ unclaimed over a period of 7 vears have to be franstemed by the
Company fo Investor Education and Profection Fund ({IEPF) constituted by the Central Govemment under
the provisions of Section 205C read with Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956. Further, as per the
provizions ol Section 2058 of the Companies Act 1956, no claim shall fie by the Members of the

Company for the unpaid / unciaimed dividend a5 deposited under [EPF

idend remaining unpaid / unclaimed is given as under.

26.08.04

02.10.04

or1om

3110

60

18.07.05

24.08.05

23.08.12

22,0912

50

B1.11.05

08.12.05

or.12.42

06.01.13

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Recoverable on a request
fetter to the Company /
ATA before the last date

of Claim of Unpaid /

Unclaimed Dividend

Members wiw fave not yet encashed their dividend warmand(s) for fhe Financial Year 2003-04 & onwards, are
requested 1o forward their claim o the Company.

Annexure to the Notice

Explanaiony Statement pursuant fo Sechion 173{2) of the Companies Act. 1956

ITEM NO.6

Appointment of 3h. Adeesh Kumar Gupla as Director of the Company

Sh. Adeesh Komar Gupta was appointed as an Additional Direcior of the Company wef 12" Aogust, 2011, as per
he provisions of section 260 of the Companies Act 1956, He hofds the office up to the date of this Annuai
Genesal Mesting. Motice in pursuance ol ssclion 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 fas been moeved from 3 Member
of the Company signdying his mtention to popose Sho Adeesh Kumar Gupta as a Director of the Company.
Sh, Adessh Kumar Gupta has been associated with the Company for fast several years and has been confributing to
the growth of Company wilh his vast experience.

Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta belongs 1o Ihe promiotes- group of the Company and holds shares in the Company. He Is
hiiding Direclorship in Liberly Refail Revolufions Lid., 2 subsidiary of the Company and Geofin Investments Privaie
Limited a registersd Non-Banking Firancial Company (NBFC).

None of the Directors of the Company excepl Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla may be deemed to be concerned or interested in
thee above appoimiment / Orfinary Resohtion

ITEM NO. 7

Appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as an Execufive Director of the Company

Sh. Adeesh Komar Gupta_aged 4T years_ has been assaciated with the Company fior kst several years and considering
his past contribution Sowards the Compsny. he was appointad a3 an Additional Director of the Company by the Board
of Directors at thelr Mesting held on 12" August, 2011, Sho Adeesh Kumar Gupla was also proposed by Member of
tve Company lo be appointed as Direttor of the Company in terms of provisions of Ssction 257 of the Companies
Act. 1956

A brief profile detaifing the qualification and experience of Sh. Adessh Kumar Gupla has been provided in Annexure-A of
Annexure 1o the Nolice of Annial General Mesting. Considering his past conlribution lowands the Company and his
valuable experience, the Board of Directors at their Mesting hetd on 12" August, 2011 have proposed the appointment
of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta 25 Executive Direclor subject to approval by the Members ol the Company in this Annisl
General Mesting. The remuneration payable fo Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta has also been approved by the Remuneration
Commilize 2l their Meeling held on 12 Avgust, 2011 As required under the provisions of Section 302 of the
Companies Act. 1956, the absiract of the lerms and conditions of fhe appoiniment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla a5




Executive Director alongwith the Memoandum of fes interest or concam is et out a5 bedowe
1. Perled; Fora period of 5 years w.ef 1° Oclober. 2011
2. Nature of Dulies: Sh Adeesh Kumar Guptz shall devole his full ime and atfentien to the business of the

Company and camy oul such dulies as may be enfrusted to hum by the Boaed fom time to time and separately

communicated to him and such powers as may be assigned fo him, subject fo the superntendence, confrol and

directions of the Boasd in connection with and in the best interest of the Company.
. Remuneralion:

d) Salary: 1.00.000/- per month subject to the Board reviewing any increase or variation i such salary.

b} Perquisites: As per the rules of the Company for the Gme being applicable or in force.

Tha above remuneration payaile to Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla 25 Executive Director shall be subiject to the limits as

specified under the provisions of Section 198, 300 & 267 read with the Schedule XII of the Companies Act, 1956

{the Acl) or any other provisions of the Act, i any. Furiher, no commission of whatsoever natore shall be paid to

him apart from the aforesaid remaneration.

. Dther terms of re-appointment:

a) The terms and conditions of the appoiniment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla as Bxecufive Director may be
vatied or altered from time fo time by the Boasd of Directors or Commities thereod in its disceetion, if deemed
fit bet subject fo the provisions of the Companies Act. 1956 or any regulations’ rules made there. under.

t)  The Dffice of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla as Eecutive Director shall be bz 1o refire by rofation.

£ Nositing fee shail be paid to ShAdessh Kumar Gupta lor tfending the Board or Commities Meeting(s).

d) Sh Adeesh Kumar Gupta shall ahide by the Company's Code ol Conduct or any ofher Code of Conduct as
laid down in terms of Comporate Govemnance and insider Trading Aeguiations.

Memorandum of Interest or Concern of Directors of the Company:

None of the Direcions excepl Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupia may be desmed to be concemed or interested in the above

appointment Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. &

Re-appointment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel as “Director (Law & Taxafion)” of the Company

Sh. Satish Kumar Goel, aged 71 years. is a rencwned Bx professionsl wath rich experience of over five decades
He has been associzled with the Company for fzsi 10 yesrs and coniribufing to the Company by handiing and
providing solufions 1o the vanoes fDation and legal matters with his expert imowledge and expesience. Initially, he
was appointed as 2 Direcior of the Company on 13" Asgost, 2001 and after 5 years of his continpous service for
the Company, he was designated 25 “Direclor (Law & Taation)” wet 1* Aprl. 2006 for 3 period of 5 years at the
Mesting of the Board held on 16" January, 2006. The said lenure of his appointment expired on March 31, 2011 as
per the terms of his appointment

A brief protile detailing the qualificafion and expenence of Sh. Ssfish Kumar Goel has been provided in Annexyre-A of
Annexure to the Notice ol Annual Gensral Mesting.

Iin-view of his valuable services and consideting his experience, the Board of Directors at thair Mesting held on 107 May,
2011 have proposed the re-appointment of Sh Satish Komar Goel 25 “Direclor (Law and Taxation)” subject lo
the appoval of the Members of the Compeny & this Anmual General Mesfing. The memuneration payable to
Sh. Satish Kumar Goel has besn approved by the Remunerabion Commities at their Meetimg held on 107 May, 2011
In terms ol Section 269 read with the Parl | of Scheduie Xill of the Companies Act, 1956, no person shall be eligible
tor appointment as Whola Time Director of 2 Company it he has aiizired the 2ge of 70 years unless his appointment
is approved by & Special Resolution passed by the Company in General Meeting. Since. Sh. Safish Kumar Goel
has attained the age of 70 years. purssani fo the above prowisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of
Ditmctors mocommend the resolufion 2s set out in fem no. 8 25 Special Resolution for the approval by the Mambers
in General Meeting.

As required under the provisions of Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1056, the abisteact of the ferms and conditions of
the re-appointment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel as “Director (Law & Taalion)” alongwith e Memorandum of ms interest
Df concern is 561 out as below.

L  Period For a period of 2 years wel 1" Agel, 2011,

. MNature of Duties: Sh Satish Kurmer Goe! shall devole his time and aftention to fhe husiness of the Company
and camy oul such dities a5 may be enfrusted to hém by the Board bom fime fo lime and separately
communicated 1o him and such powers a5 may be assigned fo him. subject fo the superinfendence, control
and directions of e Board in connection with and in e best intesest of the Company. '
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Remunerafion
Salary. T73,000/- per monih subject fo the Board reviewing any increase or variation in such salary,
Perquisites: As per the niles of the Company for the time being applicable or in force
The zhove remunersfion payable fo Sh. Safish Kimar Goe! a5 “Dieclor (Law & Taxation)” shall be subject to
the fimits as specified under the provisions of Seclion 198, 309 & 269 rad with the Schedube XII of the Act
or any ather peovisions of the Act if any. Furthes, no commission of whatsoever nature shall be paid to him
apart trom the aloresad emuneraton

. Other terms of re-appointment:

a) The terms and conditions of ihe re-appointment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel a5 "Director (Law & Tawation)™ may
be varied o aflered from fime fo time by the Board of Directors or Committes thereof in its discretion, i deemed
fil but subjec! to the provisions of he Companies Act 1956 or any regulations! rules made there under.

b) The Office of Sh. Satish Kumar Gosl as “Director (Law & Taation)™ shall be fiable to relire by rotation.

c) MNoziing fee shall be paid to Sh. Satish Kumar Goel for afiznding the Board or Commifiee Meatinggs).

dj Sh. Sslish Kumar Goel shall abide by the Compamy's Code of Conduwct or any other Code of Conduct as laid
deonn in tesms of Comporate Govemante and Insider Trading Reguiations.

Memarandum of Interest or Concern of Directors of the Company:

Mone of ihe Directors of he Company excepd 50 Salish Kumar Goe! may be deemed 1o be concermed or interested in the
ghove 7 appointment/Special Resolution

ITEM NO. 9

Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company for increasing the strength of the Board of Direclors
of the Company from 12 (Twelve] to 18 (Eighteen)

The miorms in iberalizztion process being taken by the Govermnment has brought about significant change in overall
industry structure including changes in the operafional structure. change in onganized retalling. commercial orientation
#nd fransparency in operations with st on workd class practices and controls al all levels. The Company is envisaging
for expanding itz retall and wholesale network to eahance jis share in fhe growing footwear market with simulianeous
taking action 1o encounter the new challenges coming 3Cmss.

To mee! the new challenges and lo comgly with the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to
Corporate Govemance, it & imperaive fhat fe Company’s Boand i sirengihened 1o enhance ifs effectiveness which is
central to mazimizing fong-term shareholder valuve The Company accomdingly needs to have a set of directors with
appropriate qualifications, skills. eqerisnce and/or background in diverse or related field. The edisting Articies of
Association of the Company allows the maimum number of Direciors of the Boand of the Company as twelve and the tofal
sirength of the Board of the Company comprises of 12 [Twalve} Directors 2s well, out of which not less than half of
the iofal number of direclors are independent dimclors in compliance with clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. In view
of the above and to comply wilh the mandatory Corporate Govemance requirements and other applicabla provisions of
law, il is propossd 1o increase the total number of Directors from heelve bo sighteen by which the Board shall have
an option 0 ikcrease the Member of the Board fo that exfent as and when they deem necessany 25 per the requirement.
Consequently, Adicie 84 of the Arficies of Assocsifion of the Company 5 sought fo be amended in the manner as set oul
in the resalution.

In terms of Section 259 of the Companies Act, 1956, the aforesaid amendments requires approval of the Central
Governmen besides oblaining appeoval of he Members of the Company by passing a Special Resolution in General
Mezting

£ copy of the Memorandum and Arficies of Associstion ol he Company fogether with the proposed alleration is available
for the inspection of the Sharholders on any working day except public holidays and Sundays between 10.00 am. to
1.00 pm. up to the dale of this Annuzl Genesal Megting of the Company.

None of the Direclors of the Company is in anywey concemned or interested in the sbove resolution.

The Board recommends the resolutions 25 sef out 2 item no. 6-9 of he Notice for your approval.

By order of the Board
Far Liberty Shoes Lid,

Place: Liberlypuram, Kamal Munish Kakra
Dated: Friday, 12° August. 2011 Vice President & Company Secrelary
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Annexure-A of Annexure to the Nolice

A BRIEF PROFILE ALONGWITH THE NECESSARY INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING THEIR APPOINTMENT / RE-
APPOINTMENT IN THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IN PURSUANCE OF CLAUSE 439 (Iv) (G) OF LISTING

AGREEMENT.

Z7th June, 1960

2152 March, 1940

T January, 1964

51 Years

T Years

47 Yeary

28th September, 1990

13t August. 2001

12th August, 2011

B, Sz Engg. (Mechanical)
with Hans:

‘Gradyate. Bachefor im Law

Gratuate

« #An Enginger. having
speciliztion in
Palyureihans applicatons
in Foatwear with
expenience of smond moe
than 26 yesrs

« AClive Imbvement in
strategic decision making
activities and iis
implementatons Mereof
#l maragemen jevel
sinoe 1580,

Hi2 t5 amieen] @
protessanal hanng reach
experience ol over four
docales.

Spear heating the Legal
Department of the
Comgany by providing hes
exparfise in the aress of
Taation and iegal maners.

Ha has Dean assneated

will thie Cormparny bor last
several years ad having

vast epenance in his figld

« GESN Investmens
Py, Lid

« Liberty Automative
Pl Ltd,

« Liberty Ceganosys Lid,

» Sumifzst Imirsech &
Power Pt Lid

= Saunfest Rancom
Techaplogy Put. Lid

« GEafin Ivestments Pt
Lid

« Litierty Retail
Revolutions Li.

95,000 Equity Shares

1,50, 360 Equity Shares




Ten Years'

Figures at a Glance

Liberty Shoes Lid.

(% In Lacs)

Particulars

2002-03

2006-07

2008-09

| 2010-11

Sales & Oiher
Income

Mo, of Pair sofd
Profit after tax

Earning Per
Share (In T}

105747

3540820
546.58
1275

2222309

6791216
184928
12 88"

23921 76

5887390
170195
6.09

2629645

6431159
1605.14
547

2486346

5912392
154 .52
443

30658.18

7657163
1028.95
6.04

* Inthe year 2005-06, e same fas been decreased due o capitalisation ol share premium Dy way of Bomus
Shares, conversion of Fully Converfible Debentures into Eguify Shares and consequent issue of Bonus Shares.
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Ten Years' Key Financial Figures at a Glance

I In Lacs)
MMTWM 06| 2006-07 08| 2008-00] 2008-10] 2010-11

Gross Block 514313 | B0B498 | 665042 11055.30 | 12606.40 | 1317297 14595.28
Networth 0981 | SOT31| 621961 9885.73 | 1148183 12233.59 14162.57

Book Value : 10055 1040 122 67 58 6738 71.80 i 83.11
(In ¥ per share)

Resere & 4281 71| 459111 | 508031 | 571261 : BIB1.73 | 9777.83| 10529.93 12458.57
Sueplus

* In the year 20053-06, the s=me has Deen decreased due o capilafisation of share premium by way of bonus
shares, comeersion of Fully Convertible Debentures info Equity Shares and consequent issue of bonus shares

200405
20051
W 200E-07
200E-06

=
o

In ¥ Per Share

200811 4




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Key Revenue Statement

Statement of Value Addition

Incame from Production 645514 1771511 | 1775193 | 2047318 56| 2478508 | 24044.367| 26066.87
[hes Income 8732 mnam 4238] 12632 | 1110 . S0T11| 14079 7346
Total Corporate Gutput 654246 | 632854 | 1775749 | 1787025 | 20584 29 B4 | 25292 19| 2418517 ] 26140.33
liass: Cost of Materials 378670 | 302668 | B13363| B19148 | 001753 70| 12497 30| 12821 951 13691.90
Less: Manutacturing Expenses 1605 78| 1691.70| 5014.92| 5671.27 | 631545 £944 59| E6626.H1| 723468
Gross Value Addition 164988 | 1690.16| 370894 | 406550 | 5251.30 5B50:21| 4736401 521375
Less: Depreciation 29679 | ‘31500| 36437 3Ti09| 39999 : 637.97| 65046 E79E5
Nt Value Addition 135311 | 137507 | 3348456| 360441 | 48510 . 521224 | 4076.94| 453450
Allocation Amongst Employess 467268 | 4BS.TG| 157350| 164111 | 199156 i 226097 | 2091B6) 270317
Tanes 16591 | 20392| 45741| #1780 | S84 ; 1.62| (2584)] 1(35.06)
Inerest & Financial Chames 10412 28| 55981| 694N 47418 ; 1334.57 | 1296.41 093.19
Dividend 25350 | 25350| 27885| 30420 | 25350 - . . .
Previoys year adjustments - 10.70 51| 12| 4250 B.97 243 4690
Retained Eamings 35515 34991| 499.720| 67230 | 160280 1596.16| 752.08| 920.30( 1008.27

@ The impact of provision lor Excise Duty apainst finished goods lying in stocks has not been considered. For Relained eamings previous year adjusiment, if
any, has been considerad.

(% In Lacs)

GIF Value of Imports &
other axpensas

FOB Value of Exports
Net Gain / fLoss)

Statement of contribution to Public Exchequer

Incaome Tax 13114 15158
Custom Duty 8083 3412
Excise Duty 80970 115313
Sales Ta/VaT 1177

175060

TI0% E08%
Tots| Rupess Esrned in lacs 2665494 2008-10 Totsi Rupzes Earned in lacs J0.E58.11 2018-11
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Key Sales & Production Figures of
Top Six Listed Footwear Companies

For the year 2009 - 2010 and 2008 - 2009

(7inCr) | Description {Pairs in Lacs) w

111258 L Z00 | 508 ; 254

Bata Indsa Lid.
(3,12 2009) 012,33 756 | 13549 ] €682

266.11 o0 |3 550

4T 52 M58

Mirza International Lid.
(31.03.2010) % R93.41

m BSS00° E E
Retaxn Footesars Lid,
[31,03.2010)

30,14

Sarop Tannenies Lid.
{31.03.2010) 42108

356,25

Super House Lid.
(310320700 144 15

270388

241448

*Including availatle under franchise agreements
“Presuming 300 working days in a year
Notes: NA - Not Ascertzinable. Previous year figures are in Red colour;

The Govi of India has set up a very ambifious farget of growth for the footwear industry as a whole
The above stafed improvement in the working of major lootwear Companies is in line wilh: such tamget.




Liberty Shoes Lid.

Key Financial Figures of Top Six Listed
Footwear Companies

for the Year 2009-10

[Ld] f£) | Net Wark
=)

oilast | Price ft)
s )

Hata India Lid
(31, 12.2009)

LIBERTY

Liberty Snces Lid
(41,03 2010)

A

Mirza Inssmation) L.
[31.08.2010)

Sarup Tannsnes Lid
3103200

—Slep b
Supar House L1
31092000

The Companies have strang fundsmentals confirming the potential of foolwear industry. Howaver. the markel has
not rewarded this industry 1o its full polential and improving performance.

Moies: The information given on page 17 & 18 has been culled out from published data and the desk
resezrch done by the Company's team. However, the Company will not be held responsible for any emor that
may have been reported in the published data used. The data has been put to give an overview of the
industry for the shareholders' benefit. Due care has been taken while compiling the data. The Company does
not hold any responsibility tor any mistake that may have inadveriently crept in. #s reproduction requlres

permission of the Company

Noies: 1. The Promoters Confribution has been considered from auaifable annual reports/ data with relevant

Stock Exchanges

2. The gain/{Loss) in respect of Liberty Shoes Lid_ has been arrived at after considering its Bonus
Issue and in respect of Mirza Intesnational Lid. and Relaxo Footwears Lid. after considering Bonus

Issue and split of face value of their Equity Shares.




Directors' Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Direclors have pleasure in presenting the 25" Annual Report of the Company logether with the Audited
Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31° March, 2011

In addition to Audited Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 317 March, 2011, your Company has
also presented its consolidaled financial statements afler considering the audited annual results of its
subsidiaries namely Liberty Retail Revolutions Lid. and Liberly Foot Fashion Middle East FZE in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standards and provisions of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchange(s).

Financial Highlights:

The highlights of the financial siatements are as under-

{¥ In Lacs)

Bross Sales 30530.02 26611.48
Export 428019 379546
Domestic 26249.83 22816.02

Less: Excise Duty 836.00 544 62

Net Sales 29694 02 26066.86

Other Incomea 128.16 73.46

Profil before Interes! and Depreciation 245033 2464 13
interest 761.59 B52.73
Depreciation 680.94 B79.25

Profil before Taation 1007 .80 93215

Provision for Taxation & Deferred Tax Liability {21.15) (35.06)

Profit after Tax 1028.95 967.21
Add / (Less): Previous Year Adjustment {20.68) (46.90)

Net Profit for the Year 1008.27 920.3
Add: Opening Balance 3759.00 3438 69

Profit Available for Appropriation(s) 4767.27 4359.00

Transfer to General Reserve £00.00 600.00

Surplus carried to Balance Shest 4167.27 Jh3.00

Review of the operations of the Company:

Your Company, during fhe yvear under review, furfher sirengthened ils operations through the on going
implementation of distinclive concept involving its reach, its process of replenishment efc. for improvement
of the Company’'s operations. Your Direclors ane safishied with iis results delivered so far and hopeful that
with its roll over further, the Company's all amund perormance would improve in the long run.

Your Company, during fhe year under teview, achieved Gross Sales of 30530.02 Lacs (Previous year
T20611.48 Lacs) and Nei Sales of T20694.02 Lacs (Previous year T26066.86 Lacs) by regisiering a
growth of 14.72% & 13.91% respectively as compared fo the previous year. The Company has eamed
a Profit after Tax of T1028.95 Lacs (Previous year T967.21 Lacs) for this period, an increase of over 6.38%
against the previous year. The profits for the yer under consideration were impacted mainly on account
of higher input costs including the employees cosl Your Company believes that with its strong brand
equity, it can partially pass on the impact of increase in its inpul costs fo the consumers and can reduce
the impact to certain extent.




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Your Company, during the year under review on consolidated basis, achieved a lumaver of T31826.23 Lacs
as compared fo T27405.28 Lacs in the previous year by registering a growth of 16.13% as compared to the
previous year. The net profils on consolidated basis wese T606.21 Lacs as compared to T 411.91 Lacs in
the previous year for this period, an ncrease of over 47.17% against the previous year.
The members are aware thal Indian economy duwing the year 2011 commenced ifs recovery on a positive
note with high growth and positive sentiments bul narrowed down during the fourth quarter of the year. The
major challenge fo the growing Indian economy and the prevailing feel good factor was mounting food
inflation affecting the rest of the economy significantly, Your Company, in order to mitigate these
challenges, has implemented requisite measures to improve sustainability of the Company's operations.
Awards / Recognitions:
During the year under review:
Liberty has been ranked amongst the Top 100 Best Retailers for the year 2011 in the annual survey by
one of the leading Business Opportunity Magazine - “The Franchising World",
Liberty has been awarded, the Franchisor of the Year First Runnerup, at Franchise Plus Awards 2010 in
recognition of its franchisee business model.
Liberty has been associated as the official Foot Fashion pariner of Panfaloon Femina Miss India
Contest 2011. The conteslants have chosen Liberly Tor he confest recognising excellence of the
Company's products.
Corporate Social Responsibility:
Liberty has always endeavored for the befterment of society and for discharging its responsibiiities towards
the society at large. Some of the social initiatives undertaken by Liberty are as under:
» Distribution of free shoes and chappals o needy and under privileged children.
« (Organising free medical health check up camps at regular intervals.
« oponsorship of sports and other cultural evens.
«_ Environmentzl improvement by providing greenery and planfing of frees at its plants.

Subsidiary Companies:

Liberty Reiail Revolutions Lid (LRRL), Refail Venlure

In view of the huge polential and the promising futwre of organised refailing in India, LRRL has been
expanding its retail presence over the years.

The year under consideration hias been best perlorming year for LRRL since inception in terms of its sales
and overall performance. LRAL, during the year 2011, has achieved a furnover of $4799.73 Lacs (Pravious
year T3513 82 Lacs) by registering 2 growth of 37% as against the previous year.

Geofin Investments Privaie Limsted, ofher consfifuent of LRRL shareholder(s), has further extended its
support by subscribing share application io the extent of ¥550 Lacs during the year under consideration.
Your Company presently holds 99.96,150 Equity Shares constifuting 93 86% stake in Retail Subsidiary in
addifion 1o its holding of 5,00.000 Fully Convertible Debentures of the face value of 100 each aggregating
to T500 Lacs.

Liberty Fool Fashion Middle East FZE (LFF), Dubai (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

You are aware thal LFF, a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company, was canceived in 2006 1o strengthen
and expand the Company's global presence. But due to prevaifing uncertainty in gicbal economy, LFF till
date has not formalised any sustainable project for commencing ifs business aclivities. LFF will keep
on exploning the appropriate opporfunities for commencing its operations al the earliest possibie.
Your Company till 31° March, 2011 has invested a sum of 2284 67 Lacs (Previous Year ¥250.58 Lacs) in
LFF as its capital coniribution.

General Approval for not attaching the Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies

Your Board of Directors have accorded their consent vide Pesolufion passed in their Meefing held on
10" May, 2011 for not attaching a copy of the Balance Sheet. Profil & Loss Account, Reports of Directors




and Auditors of the Subsidiary Companies with the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company pursuant to
Section 212 of the Companies Aci, 1956 read with General Circular No. 22011 dated February 8, 2011
issued by Ministry of Corporale Affairs. Accordingly, the copies of Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account,
Reports of Directors and Auditors of the two Subsidiary Companies have not been attached with the Balance
Sheet of the Company. However, these documents shall be made available to the shareholders of the
Company and of Subsidiary Companies on any working day from 10.00 AM. till 6.00 PM. The Annual
Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies ame open for inspection by any investor at the Registered Office of
the Company and of the Subsidiary Companies. Any shareholder of the Company, who wishes to obtain a
copy of the said Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, may send a request in writing to the
Company Secrefary at the Registered Office of the Company so that tie neediul can be done.

However, a stalemen! containing the brief financial details of the suhsidiary Companies for the financial year
ended 31° March, 2011 is included in the financial statements of the Company as required under the
provisions of Seclion 212 of the Companies Act. 1956. The agoregale amount of ) Capital b) Reserves £)
Total Assets d) Total Lisbilities e) Detail of investment (except investment in subsidiaries) f) Tumover g)
Profit Betore Taxation h) Provision For Taxation i) Profit After Taation |) Proposed Dividend in respect of two
Subsidiary Companies are included in the Consolidaled Balance Sheel of the Comgpany. Further, the
Consolidated Financial Statements. pursuant fo fhe Accounting Standard(s) 21 and 27 as issued by the
Insfitute of Chartered Accountants of India and Clause 32 of Listing Agreement, have been presented by the
Company elsewhere in this Annual Bepod including the financial results of its subsidiaries.

Appropriations:
Dividend

Your Directors, considering the financial requirements, do not recommend dividend on Equily Share Capilal
ol ihe Company to the shareholders for the financial year ended 317 March, 2011,

Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors proposed 1o transfer T600.00 Lacs (Previous Year 600.00 Lacs) to the General Reserves out
pi the profits available with the Company for appropristions. Accordingly, an amount of T408.27 Lacs
(Previous Year ¥320.31 Lacs) has been proposed o be retained in the Profit & Loss Account of the
Company.

Employees Stock Option Scheme(s):

During the year ended 31° March, 2011, yow Company has nol ficated any scheme in relation to
Employees Stock Option(s) and no such further plans have been initiated af present in this regard.
Risk Management:

Proper procedures for risk assessment and minimization thereof have been Iaid down by the Management of
your Company in accordance with the Company's exposure to all types of business risks involved in the
operations of the Company. Moregver, the same were periodically reviewed by the Marmagemenl of the
Company in order fo ensure the adequale control over the business risks, if any, faced by the Company.
Buy Back of Equity Shares:

Your Company has not undertaken any exercise 1o buy back its Equity Shares from the shareholders during
the year under review.

Public Deposit(s):

In terms of the provisions of Section 584 of the Companies Act. 1956 read with Companies {Accepfance of
Deposit) Rules, 1975, the Campany has not accepted any public depesits during the year under consideration.
Board of Directors:

Re-appointment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel as “Director (Law & Taxalion)”

Having regard to the past contribution of Sh. Safish Kumar Goel towards the Company and for further
strengthening of its operations, your Board ai their Meeting held on 10" May, 2011 has approved the
re-appointment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel 25 “Direcior (Law & Taehion)” for a further period of 2 years welt
1" April, 2011 subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in the ensuing Annual General




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Meeting. The remuneration payable to Sh, Satlsh Kumar Goel as "Director (Law & Taxation)™ has also been
approved by the Remuneration/Selection Committee of the Board at its Meefing held on 107 May, 2011.
The aforesaid appoiniment of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel is being proposed by separate Resolution which forms
n{ part of the Natice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as Direclor and Executive Direclor

Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta has been assoclated with the Company lor past several years and considering his
past contribution towards the Company, he was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the
Board at their meeting held on 12" August. 2011, Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla was further proposed by a
Member of the Company to be appolnted as Director of the Company in terms of provisions of Section 257
of the Companies Act, 1956. The Board, considering his past experience and the inferest of the Company.
has appointed Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as an Executive Director of the Company w.ei 17 October, 2011
subiect 1o the approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The aloresaid appointment(s) of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla is being proposed by separate Resalution which
formes part of the Notice of the énsuing Annual General Mesting,

Retirement by rotation

Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta, CEO and Executive Director, Sh. Adarsh Gupta and Sh. Sunil Bansal, Executive
Directors of the Company retire by rotation in pursuance of the provistons of Section 256 of the Companigs
Act, 1956 and balng eligible olfer themselvas for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
A brief profile alongwith the necessary details including memorandum of interest of Directors seeking their
appointmen! / re-appoiniment has been provided in Annexure-A of Annexure to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchange(s)
and the provisions of Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Directors' Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant fo Section 217{2AA) of the Companies Act 1956, the Directors to the best of their knowledge and
bellef confirm that:

1) Inthe preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed
along with the proper explanation refating to material departures,

ii) they have selected such accounting poficies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that @e reasonable and prudent so as to give a fue and fair view of the state of
alfairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of (he Company for
Ihat period;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for mainienance of adequale accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and for saleguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other ireguiarities;

Iv) they have prepared the Annual Accounls on a going concern basis.

Recommendations / Observations of Audit Committee:

The recommendations / observations of the Audit Commitiee placed before the Board during the linanclal
year ended 31" March, 2011 in respect of matters pertaining to the financial management or any other
matter refaied thereto, were considered and duly accepled by the Board of Directors of the Company.
Statutory Auditors and their Report:

M/s Pardeep Tayal & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Staltutory Auditors of the Company retire at the
conclusion af the ensuing Annual General Maeting and have confirmed their efigibility for re- appointment.
Your Company's Directors have sxamined the Statutory Audifors’ Report on Annual Accolnis of the
Company and observed that no resenvation, qualification or adverse remark was made by the Statutory
Auditors in their Report and thelr clarifications, wherever necessary, have been included in the Notes fo the
Accounts seclion as mentioned elsewhere in this Annual Repart.




Cost Auditors:

Pursuant 1o the directives |ssued by the Ceniral Governmenl and provisions of Section 2338 of the
Companies Act. 1956, the Company's cost recards for the financial year ended March 31, 2011 are being
audited by Cost Auditors, M/s K. L. Jaisingh & Co., Cosl Accountants who were appointed by the Board
alter seeking the approval of the Central Govemnment.

The Cost Audit Report for the preceding Financial Year ended March 31, 2010 with requisite form(s) duly
filled and signed has been filed with the Central Government within the siafulory due date as prescribed
under the applicable peovisions. Further, the Cost Audit Report foe the financial year ended on March 31,
2011 shall be filed on or before the due date as per the said provisions i.e. September 30, 2011
Particulars of Employees:

During the year, no employee, whether employed for the whole or part of the year, was drawing
remungration excesding the limits mentioned under Section 217(2A) of the Companles Act, 1956 and
Rules framed thereunder,

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Oulgo:
Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 217{1)(e) of the Companies Act. 1956 read wilh
Companles (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Direclors) Rules, 1988 in relation 1o
conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Dulgo is given in
the "Annexure A forming part of this report,

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

In terms of provisions of Clause 43(V)(F) of the Listing Agreemen! with Stock Exchange, 2 Management
Discussion and Analysis Reporl, clearly stating the required matters in mespect of thé ends and
developments in footwear Industry and risks etc., has been attached 1o this report.

Corporate Governance Report:

In gccordance with the provisions under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and as amended by the SEBI
from lima lo lime, the Board of Direclors have prepared the Corporale Governance Repor! dalailing the
compliance report of Corporate Governance. Accordingly, & separale section on Corporale Governance
dlongwith Stalutory Audilors' certificate confirming the compliance i annexed and lonms parl of this report.
Outstanding Share Capital and ils Listing:

Your Company has outstanding Share Capital of ¥17,04,00,000/- (Previous Year ¥17,04.00,000/-)
consisting ol 1.70,40,000 (Previous Year 1,70,40,000 ) Equity Shares of T10/- each and these Equity
Shares are presently listed and available for trading at Mational Stock Exchange of Indiz Ltd. (NSE) and
Bombay Slock Exchange Lid. (BSE).

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors wish to place on secord their sincere appreciation of all the employees for their dedication
and commitment which enabled the Company to achieve a high level of performance with customer
safistaction and increased shareholders value.

Your Company conlinues to occupy a place of one of the leading brands in lootwear industry with respect
amongst the Cuslomers and stakeholders. Your direclors would like o express their appreciation for
assistance and cooperation received from Vendors, Stakeholders, Bankers, Channel Pariners, Gowl
Department(s) and all other business constituents who have exlended their valuable and sustained support
and encouragemen| during the yaar under review,

For and on behalt of the Board of Directors
Place: Libertypuram, Karnal qulh “?mf mﬂwﬁm
Dated: Friday, 12° August, 2011 DiN-00143152
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Annexure to Directors’ Report

Annexure ‘A

Disclosure of parliculars under Section 217 (1) () of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Raport ol Board of Direclors) Rules. 1988 and farming part ol Direclors
Report Tor the financial year ended 317 March, 2011, are given as undar

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
a) Energy Conservation measures taken

Liberty continued to emphasize on the conservation & optimal ulilization of energy at its every
manufacturing units. The energy conversation measwes implemented during the financial year
2011 are given balow

i. Replacement of high consumption motors wherever teasible with low consumgption mofors.
i. Redesigning of the raw malenals handling Syslem resulting in power savings.

fii. Directions for the use of natural lights wherever possible during day time for Ihe different
PIOCesses

b) Additional Investments and proposals, il any, being implemented for reduclion ol
consumption of energy
i. Liberly would conlinue its efforts towards effective ufilization of energy across Its
manufacturing facilities,

¢) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact in the cost of production of goods

The measures listed above have resulted In saving In consumption without affecting the process.
The savings ane a5 under

I Total energy saving in the year 2010-11 : ¥ 695,448
i Enargy saving per pair during the year 2010-11 - ¥ 0.09 per pair
i, Enemy saving against total cost of consumplion of enemgy i the year 201011 ; 1.53%

d) Total energy consumplion and energy consumption per unit of production as per
Form — A of Annexure 1o the Rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule
thereto.

Not Applicable
B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
e) Efforis made in technology absorption as per Form B of the Annexure to the Rules
FORM B
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to absorption
Research and development (R&D)

i. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company and Benefits derived as a
result of R & D

The proper understanding of consumer requirements Is the basic reason of Company's growth
and its growing share in the lootwear market. Over the years, there has been substaniial progress



made to understand consumer needs gap and accordingly offer Liberty's products meeting with
consumer aspirations

In addition to the product development the Company has also collaborated with external institutes
and vendors for the new product mix and technologies.

Benefits
The above efforts result in the development and introduction of new product categaries in which
Liberly operates.
il. The future plan of action
The Company will continue lo innovate with differen! process & products to offer its customers
new affordable products,
fii. ExpendilureinR&D
The Company has nol incurred any capital expend|fure lowards ils research and development
activities, however, has spent ¥33.56 Lacs as recurring expenditures towards its development
activities. This expenditure constitutes 0.11% of the tumaover af the Company for the year
under consideration.

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

Efforts & benefits to the Company

Ditferent Innovative technologies were Implemented lor footwear manufacturing and its various

processes to improve the efficacy of Liberty producis

C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGD:

f) Efforts and iniliative in relation to the exports: The exporl feam, In order o expand
Company's overseas presence, has been further strengthened. Besides this Liberty continued to
emphasize on exploring the untapped markels for its products.

g) Total foreign exchange used and earned:

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
(inLacs) | (@inLacs)

Foreign Exchange Earned 47298.82 3678.98

Foreign Exchange Used 158593 1008.67

For and on behall of the Board of Direclors

Place: Libertypuram, Karnal ME Bsh “ﬂflwl pla

Dated: Friday, 12° August, 2011 DIN-D0T43192
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Corporate Governance Report

1. Company's philosophy on Code of Governance

The concept of Corporate Governance has come a long way from just being an efement of corporate
falmess in terms of disclosures & Yansparency [0 a civilized corporale behavior towards every element of
community, environment and economy as a whole wherein every corporate survives with wide ranging
changes in both laws and regulations. A good Corporate Governance is @ key lo the integrity of
Companles, landing instilutions and markets 10 the heatth of economy and their stability,
Liberty, being @ consumer driven entity, has laid down the cerdain business standards and code of
conduct amongst s people. keeping in view the obleclives of sustaining the market with peoper
transparency, altaining the profitabile growth and maxdmizing the shareholders' wealth
Corporate governance has been a reflection of our culture, our policies and our refationship with
stakeholders and our commitment 1o values, Libely has considered [he concepl ol Corporate Governance
as a fundamental prarequisite for improving economic performance, facilitating corporate access fo
capital. Due 1o this, Corporate Govemance has now become a pivolal policy concem of the Company
which will lead to its long-term growth and financial stability
The Board of Direclors of the Company has been made responsibie for providing all the disclosures and
compliance with codes / procedures in omder 1o protect the Inferest of the stakeholders, lenders, employee,
channel partners afc. In compli@nce with the mandatory provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchange, fhe relevant disclosures have been provided hereunder

2. Board ol Directors
At the core of our Corporate Govemance practice is the Board, which oversees how the management
serves and protects the long-term inferests of 2l our stakeholders. We believe (hat an active, well informed
and independent Board |s necessary to ensure the standards of Corporate Governance
Your Company relains an experienced panel of prolessionals and enlrepreneurs on jts Board having
understanding of diversified Industry and the overall adminisiration. Such distinclive combination has
bengfitted the Company for managing its affairs in a siralegic manner in the Intesest of ils stakeholders.
As on Mach 31, 2011, the majority of the Board, & (Six) out of 11 (Eleven), are Mon-Executive
Indapendent Direcloes. Further, we have Audit, Remuneration / Selection, Managemenl and Share
Transfer & Sharehoiders’ / Investors' Grievance Committees, which comprise Independent directors
Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta, CEO & Executive Direclor of the Company, is the Chairman of Ihe Board and
belongs to promoter group of the Company.
Executive Directors perform their duties within the powers and key role areas fived under respective
Service Contracts and dischame their responsibilities in the manner approved by the Members of the
Company in lerms of the Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company lo conduct the
authorized business. Accordingly, Board of the Company draws the annual operaling plans, budgets /
palicies in accordance with the Company's vision to its productivity and profitability.
None of the Directors of the Company has any other matenial pecuniary retationship with the Company
o its subsidiaries and assoclales.

{a) Composition
Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company in conlormity with the provisions of Listing
Agreement as on 31" March, 2011 Is provided as under

Category Number of Directors
Executive Director(s) representing Promoters 4
Executive Director(s) other than above 1
Non - Execulive Independent Director(s) 6
Total 1

The existing strength of the BExeculive Direclors is further proposed to be reinforced with the appoiniment
of Sh. Adessh Kumar Gupla as Executive Director wel 1" October, 2011 subject to the approval of the
Members of the Company in ensuing Annual General Mesfing. This appointment, it approved by the
members, would be in confirmity with the provisions of clause 49 ol the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanga(s),



(b) Board's Process
In accordance with the legal requirements and to review / analyze the performance of the Company at
regular intervals, the Board ol Direclors requently meet for @ minimum of four pre-scheduled Meelings
during each year as per the directions of the management of the Company. Additional Meetings of the
Board are held when desmed necessary by the Board to address the specific needs of the Company, if
any. Apart from Ihe Board ol Direcloes, (he varous Heads of Depariments, Audilors of the Conmpany are
also invited at the Board Mesating to oversee the related matters requiring discussion / decisions of the Board,
Detailed agenda papers together with explanaiory nofes, in defined Agenda format. are timely circulated
1o the Board ol Diraclors in advance for lacllaling meaningful and locused decision at the Meeting. Al
material informalion is incorporated in the Agenda papers in order to have an overview of the business
proposed to be considered at the Meeting. 11 it Is not feasible fo send the each and every document
dlongwith the Agenda, lhe same ae placed balore Members present at the Mesting with specific
reference to this effect in Agenda. ANl the adoitional or supplementary ifem(s), not refermed in Agenda,
are considered after obtaining the due permission at 1he Meeting.
Apart from statudory matters, all majer policy decisions, evaluation of inlemal managemem /[
procedwes, budgetary decisions, business strafegies and risk management practices are placed beiom
the Board. Further, the information as required under Annesure 1A 1o Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with Stock Exchanges is periodically placed before the Board / Board Commitless. The Board has also
constituted & standing commillees namely Audit Commiltée, Mamageménl Committee. Remureration /
Selection Committeg and Share Transler & Shareholders / Investors' Grievance Committes, which
lunction &5 per [he terms of mferences decided by the Board from lime o lime,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company conducts all the Meetings ol Board / Board
Committeas and records the Minutes of the proceedings of each Board and Committes Meeling and
firal Minutes are entered in the respective Minuies Book{s) within the sfipulated period, if any, in
compliance with fhe provisions of the Campanies Act, 1956 and other regulatory enaciments.
In addition to above, all the actions taken in respect ol impottant matier(s) discussed in the previous
Meetings are placed af fhe immediately succesding Meetings for the purpose of follow-up and reviews.

(c) Board Meefings
During the financial year 2010-11, 4 (Four) Board Meetings were held viz on 30" April, 12" August,
107 November, 2010 and 7" February, 2011, The maximum interval between any two Board Meeling(s)
was not more than four months. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports ol all laws
applicable |o the Company.,
The name and calegories ol the Direclors, their attendance al Board Meetings held during
the year and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) together with particulars of their
Directorship and Chairmanship / Membership of Board Commitiees in various other Companies

are given as under:
AR A

1. | Sh Adesh Kumar Gupia Promoter & ED 4 Yes

2| Sh. Adarsh Gupta Promoter & EO 4 No

3| Sh.Shammi Bansal Promoter & ED 4 Yes

4_| Sh Suni Bansal Promoter & ED L Yes

5. | Sh. Satish Kumar Goel ED 4 Yes

B | Sh Surendra Kurmnas Arya NED {1) 1 No

7 | Sh. Amitabh Taneja NED (1) 3 No

B | ShPrem Chand Garg NED (1) 4 No

9 | Sh. Siddharth Sanghi NED (1) 2 No

10 | Sh Raghubar Dayal NED (1) 4 Yes - - .
11 | Sh. Vivek Bansal NED (1) 1 No 1 - -

ED: Executive Director, NED (1) Non - Executive Independent Director
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As per the information provided by the Directors of the Company, none ol the Direclors was holding
Membership in more than Ten Board Committees and Chairmanship in not exceeding five Board
Committees as specilied under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
(d) Independent Direclors
All the Independent Directors of the Company are salisfying the mquirements as specified in the Clause
A9(1)(A)iii) of the Listing Agreement to guality to act as Independent Direclor(s) of the Company.
Al Liberty, Independent Diraclors of the Company actively participate n the Meetings held from time
to fime for providing the necessary guidance / suggestions fo protect the interest of inveslors/
stakehalders. The suggestions received from the Independent Direclors are suitably observed by the
management for ils benehicial implementation,
Apart from receiving the sitting fees for atlending the Board & Committee Meetings, Independent
Direclors do nol have any material pecuniary relalionship or transactions wilh the Company, Iis
promaters. its directors, its senior managemeant, its subsidiaries and associates,
{e) Non — Executive Directors' compensation and disclosures
All payments ol fees to Non - Execulive Independent Directors are made within the limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 1956 for payment of sitting lees without approval of the Central Governmeni
Non - Execulive Independent Director(s) are paid sitting fees (@ T2 500/ for attending every Meeting
of Board / Board Committee thereol in terms of the approval accorded by the Shareholders of the
Company by passing the Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting held on 13" August, 2003.
During the year under review, an aggregate amount of 220,000/~ (Previous Year 245,000/-) was paid to
the Non Executive Independent Diraclor(s) towards sitting lees for attending the Board / Committae
Meatings. No sitting fee has been paid to Bxecutive Director(s) for attending the Board / Commitiae
Meeling(s). in accordance with the respective service agreement entered inlo with them. Further, the
Company till date has nol ofteréd Equity Shares under slock oplion scheme 1o the Direclors /
Employees of the Company
() Code of Conduct
Liberty has a well defined Code of Conduct which has been laid down by the Board of Directors of the
Company for all its Direclors, Semior Management Personnel and stafl of the Company in compliance
with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. All Directors and Members ol the Senior
Management including Company Executives, who directly report 1o the CEQ of the Company, have
affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct. A copy of the said Code of Conduct is available on
the website of the Company at www libertyshoes com
(g) Briel particulars of the Directors, whose candidature are proposed for appointment / re
appointment in the Annual General Meeling
« Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta (Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupla, aged about 51 years, a Graduate in B.Sc. (Engingering), has been
working as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 2004. He is having an experience of more
than two decades in Footwear Industry. As @ CED. he has been instrumental in formulating
Company's slrategies and providing his vital contribution lor the ellective funclioning of the
Company,
Aparl from above, he also serves various other Companies wilth a siring ol diversilication In the
Retailing and Telecom sectors. He has been embraced by many prestigious awards and in the pasi,
he has bieen a key lunctionary of Confederztion of indian Industry,
He will be retiing by rotation from the Company and being eligible offers himsell for re-
appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting He belongs to Promoler Group of the
Company and presently, holds 95,000 Equily Shares in the Company.
« Sh. Adarsh Gupta (Executive Direclor)
Sh. Adarsh Gupta, aged about 49 years, one of Promolers of the Company, is a Commerce Graduate
apart kom holding Diploma in Shoe Designing from the globally recognized Institule at ltaly. Sh
Adarsh Gupla in the past has been hedplul in the Company's retall expansion and also lor the
successiul brand promotions.
He will be refiing by rofation from Ihe Company and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment In Ihe ensuing Annual General Meeting. He has been serving on (he Board of the
Company since 1990 and presently, holds 6,91,000 Equity Shares of the Company.




Sh. Sunil Bansal (Executive Director)

Sh. Sunil Bansal, aged about 51 years. has been acting as Director with the Company since 1990

He i representing the Promoder Group on the Board and apart from |ooking its international

business. also guiding leather shoes production team with his expertise

He will be mtiring by rotation from the Company and being eligible offers himself for re

appointment in the ensuing Annual Genera! Meeting. He presently, holds 1,99.000 Equity Shares of

the Company.

Sh. Satish Kumar Goel “(Director - Law & Taxation)”

Sh. Satish Kumar Goel, aged about 71 years, is an Advocale and eminent tax praciitioner who

initially joined the board in July 2001 as an Independent Director. He was designaled as “Director

{Law & Taxation)" by Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 16" January, 2006

lor a period al 5 (five) years, w.a.L 1% Agril. 2006. He has been spear heading the Legal Department

ol the Company by providing his expertise In the areas of taxation and legal matters. The Board ol

Directors, at their Meeting held on 10" May, 2011, have re-appointed him as “Director (Law &

Taxation)” for a lurther period of 2 (Two) years w.el 17 April. 2011 and at present, he holds 400

Equity Shares of the Company.

Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta (Additional Director)

Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla, aged aboul 47 years, has been associaled with the Company for past

several years and conlribuling lo the growth of Company with his vasl experience. He joined the

Board in August, 2011 as an Additional Director of the Company. The Company has received a

notice under section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from a member of the Company proposing

candidature of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as Director of the Company in the lorthcoming Annual

General Meeting. Considering his past experience, Board of Directors at their Meeting helid on

12" August, 2011 have appointed him as Executive Director w.e.l, 1" October, 2011 subject to the

approval of Members of the Company.

He belongs to the Promoter Group of the Company and at present, be holds 1,50,360 Equity Shares

of the Company,

Committee(s) of the Board

The Board of the Company has constituted different Committegs of the Board to have the focused

attention on the business of each aspec! of the Company's working. In 1ems of the requirements of

Listing Agreement, all the Minutes of Meetings of respective Commitiees are timely placed before

the Members af the Committees and before the Members of the Board of Directors of the Company

for their information and consideration. The Company presently has the following Board

Commitiees:

(a) Audit Committee
The Boand of Directors of the Company has constiluted an Audil Commitiee in the year 2001
in compliance with the provisions of Listing Agreement & Section 292A of the Companies
Act, 1956. The beef description of the {emms of relerance of the Audit Commitiee s as under.

«  Review of the quarterly and annual financial resulls / statemenits before submission to the
Board together with quarterly and annual financial resulls of the subsidiary companies,

«  Review and assessment of the efectiveness of systems of intemal financial contral, risk
management and compliance control with management and auditors.

«  Recommendation of appaintment and change in internal auditors, cos! auditors and statutory
auditors of the Company.

«  Assessment of the independence of the auditors.

«  Fixing of remuneration of the statutory auditors.

«  Review of the managemant discussions and analysis of financial conditions and results of the
operations.

«  Review of the reports of stalutory and internal auditors and discussion about their findings
with the management and suggesting cormective mieasures wherever Necessary.

« Look info the reasons for substantial defaults, it any, in the payment of creditors of the
Company and any substantial defaults, if any, made by the deblors of the Company
alongwith the reasons thereot

-
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o [eview ol prevailing accounting policies and compliances with regard 1o statutory reguirements.
« Periodical review of related party fransactions carned out by the Company.

« Any ofher matier referred to the Audit Committee: by the Board of Directors of the Company.
Composition, name of Members and Chairperson

The Members of Audit Committee of the Board comprise of one Executive Director and two Non-
Executive independent Disectors. Sh. Raghubar Dayal, Independent Director, acts as the Chairman of the
Audit Committes Meeting held during the year. Sh. Munish Kakra, Vice President & Company Secretary
is appointed as the Secretary of the Audit Committee in pursuance of the provisions of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement. All the Members of the Audit Committes are “financially literate™ as defined under
Clause 49(IN(ANII) of the Listing Agresment.

Presenl composition of the Audit Committee and atiendance at the meeting{s) held during the year are

&S Lnder:-
St.No. Mo of Mesting()

1| S0, Raghubar Dayal _ Chaiman NED () -

2 Sh. Sunil Bansal Member £D A

3 Sh. Prem Chand Garg ' Member NED (1) P

4 Sh. Vivek Bansal Member NED (1) ]

5 Sh. Munish Kakra Secretary Comyany Socey ;
Meetings held during the year

During the financial year 2010-11, 4 (Fowr) Audit Commitlee meetings were held on 30th April,
12th August, 10" November, 2010 and 7" February, 2011. The gap between two committee meetings
was not more than four months. The Annual Financial Results of the Company for the year ended
31" March, 2011 were reviewad by the Audit Committee in its Meeting held on 12" August, 2011.
Necessary Quorurm was present in the Audit Committee Mestings.
The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors & Cost Auditors of the Company were invariably inviled 1o
attend the Meetings and also lo participate in the deliberation(s) on Ihe issues wherever required.
(b) Remuneration / Selection Committee
Sh, Raghubar Dayal, Independent Direclor, has been heading the Remuneration / Seleclion
Committee of the Board as its Chairman. The Remuneration / Selection Committee has been
formed 1o reguiate the Company's policles regarding payment of remuneration fo the Senior
Officers / Executive Directors of the Company which involves the formulation and implementation
of such policies In terms of requirements of Listing Agreement and Companies Act, 1956. Further,
the Company seeks the expertise of the outside consultants as and when needed for analyzing the
palicies of the Company in relation o appointment and payment of remuneration o Senior Level
Exgcutive(s) and Stafl(s).
The terms of reference of the Remuneration / Selection Committee are in line with the Listing
Agreement and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

Composition, names of Members and Chairperson and atlendance during the year
The foliowing is the Constitution of the Remuneration / Selection Commities:-

.I - Chairman Independent {I]

1.

2 Sh. Prem Chand Garg Member Indeperndent 1(1)
3 Sh. Surendra Kumar Arya Member Independent 1(0)
4, Sh. Munish Kakra Secretary Company Secretary 1(1)




Meetings held during the year
During the financial year 201011, the members of Remoneration / Seiection Commifiee met once on
12" August 2000 for consldering and appeoving the remuneralion payable to Sh, Adesh Kumar Gupta
Chiel Exgcutive Officer & Executive Direclor, Sh. Adarsh Gupla, Executive Dimector and Sh. Shammi Bansal,
Execufive Director
Aparl from the zbove. the Members of the Remuneration Commitiee Meefing also met twice on 107 May
and 12° August, 2011 and recommended the proposed mmuneration payable to Sh. Satish Kumar Goel and
Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta respectively. ANl the Members of the Commitiee except 'Sh. Surender Kumar Arya
dttended the Meeting ol the Remunesation / Selection Committee held on 107 May and 12° August 2011
Remuneration policy
The remuneration policy of the Company is recommentdad: by the Remoneration / Selection Committee to the Board
of Directors of the Company and reviewed by it & and when the need arises. Remuneration policy Is lormulkited by
the Commities after taking into consideration the financials of (he Company, ongoing trend in Industry, appointes's
qualification & experience including past performance.
Remuneration ol Directors
« Pecuniary relationship or transaclions of the non-execulive directors vis-a-vis the Company:-
The Company has not camied out any fransactions, whether material in natura or not. with the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company othar than the payment of sitting fees to them for atiending the Board / Commitiee
Meetings of the Company held during the financial year 2010-11, which has already been detafled
hereinbeliore. Accordingly, no emunerdtion has been paid 1o Non-Executive Directors during fhe year excepl
lior the: sitting fees of T20,000/-.
« All elements of remuneration package of individual director:-
All the Executive Direciors have been paid by way of remuneration on the basis of Company's policy in
respect of payment of remuneration which involves the following elements of remuneration package:
o  Salary
Consolidated monthly remunesation of 1,00,000/- per month or 75,000/~ per month, as the case
may be.
o Pemuisiies:
In addition fo the aloresald salary, Becutive Direclors are also be entitled fo perquisites like lumished
accommodation, gas. electricity, water and fernishings. medical mimbursement and leave travel
concession for sell in accondance with the rules of the Company, However, the manitary value ol such
penquisites being fimited fo the annual salary or T2.25,000¢- per annum, which ever is less for the
purpose of which:
Perquisites are evaluated as per Income Tax Act Rules, 1962 wherever applicable, and in the absence ol
any such fules, perquisites are evaluated at achual cost
and
Use of chaufter driven car lor official purpose and telephone al residence {including payment for local
calls and long distance calls an lelaphone) and use of car for privile purpase ane billed by the company
to the Execulive Directors.
o Companys contribution fo the provident fund and superannuation fund In accosdance with the rulss of

the company':
Accordingly, during the financial year 2010-71, the following remimeration was paid 1o the BExacutive
Directors of the Company.-
00

1 Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta CEQ & Executive Director 12,00,000

2 Sh. Shammi Bansal Executive Direclor 12,00,000

3 Sh. Sunil Bansal Executive Director 12.00.000

4 Sh. Satish Kumar Goel Executive Director 9,00,000

5 | Sh Adarsh Gupta Executive Director NIL
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Nolgs

« [hxing the year, the Company has not paid any pemuisites foming part of remuneration [/ siffing fees to the
Executive Dimeclors

= Mo incentives, whether foed or perdormance linked, werg given o the Exegutive Directors during the yvear under
consideration

« Senvice Confracts of Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Sh. Adarsh Gupla, Sh, Shammi Bansal expived on 317 March, 2010,
which were enewed and sxetuted for @ lurther petiod of live years alter oblaning e reouisite approvals ol
the Members of the Company & 24" Annual General Mesting pertamning fo the re-appointment thereol

« Senice Contract of Sh. Sunil Bansal is valid ti1 31" December, 2014:

« Senvice Confract of Sh. Satish Kumar Goel has expired on 317 March, 2011, which will be renewed and executed
lor a lurther petiod of 2 years after oblalning the requisite approval of the Members of the Company al 25" Annual
General Meeting pertalning fo his re-appointment

= Senice Contract of Sh, Adeash Kumar Gupta will be exacutad for a period of 5 years alter oblaining the requisite
approval of the Memibers of the Comgany al 25° Annual General Meeting perfaining (0 his appointmeni

« The Senvice Contract{s) may be lerminated by either party alter giving three months’ notice in wiiting duly served
an the ofher party. There is no sepatale provisionds) for payment of any severance fees

= The Company has so {ar not ofered Equily Shares under stock option schame o its Direchar(s) / Employes(s).
« NNong of the Non - Executive Directors of the Company holds any Equity Shares in the Company

(e} Shrl'l'rluhrmd Shareholders / Investors' Grievance Committee

Share Transter and Shamhalders / westors' Grievanee Committes has been debegated by the Baard with the powers to

andie all the shares riated issues including limely redressal of shareholdess' and investors complaints like nan

recaipt of [alance sheet. non-receipt of declared diidends efc. The Committee performs all 1S dutles and dischames
its responsibifilles as per (s charter fued by he Board, which includes mviaw ol the perfamance of tha Registrar and

Sham Transfer Agent of the Company and recommendation of measures fo the Boand for overall mprovements in the

quality of Imestors' senvices wharver required

During the fnancial yea 2010-11, the Commitiee met 15 (Fifleen) fimes on 15" Apeil, 307 Apdl, 15" May, 15" June,

30" June, 31° July, 14" Abgust 31° August, 30" Septermber, 15" October, 31" December 2010, 15" January,

20" Febeuary, 15" March; and 31" March, 2011

The detalls of he Share Transter reguests processed during Jast thies financial year(s) & & undsr

Paricuars. 200808 20010 21011
No. of Transters & Transmission 11 26 30
Mo of Skares Trid / ransmitied 1912 692800 5000
No. of STC meetings heid it i2 15

Ther are B (eight) cases (involing 1000 Equity Shars) conceming dispute over Litfes 1o Shares which am pending
with the Company as on 31" March, 2011.

Compaosition & name of Non-Executive Director heading the Commitiee

St.No. | Name of the Committee Member(s) Position “Category
1. 5h. Prem Chand Garg Chajrman NED (1)
2. Sh, Sunil Bansal Member ED
3 Sh. Adarsh Guota Member ED
Mame and designation ol Compliance Officer
Sh, Munish Kaka, Vice President & Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and he acts as the
Secretary of the Committee.
Status of investor reference £ complaints / requests received by the Company during the vear ending 317 March, 2011
stood as umder:
Nature of References / Requests No. of Grievances/ |  No. of Grie No. of Grievances/
. R is Received Raquesti " Requests Pendit
Mon receipt of Bonuws, Dividend & Anmual Report 1 1 NIL
|ssue of duplicate / Loss of Gertificate(s) 7 [ NIL
Change of addsess. name comection. Transmission & othets B B NIL
Change of Bank Detail 1 1 NIL
Dividend through ECS 2 2 NIL
Total 18 19 NIL




The relemences whertver received Irom the shamholder(s) during Ihe year weres resolved to their entire satisiactlion,
(d) Management Commitiee
For facilitation of various decisions relating 10 day-lo-day operalional mallers and matters relating Lo finance,

Management Commitiee of the Board was constituled by (he Boand of Directors in 2007. The following is fho
Constitution of the Commities:-

-

1| Sn Adesh Kumar Gupta Member | Promolers 6(6)
2 | sh Adarsh Gupta Member Pramolers 6(6)
3| Sn Prem Chand Garg Member Independent 6(3)
4 | Sn Raghubw Dayal Member Independent 6(6)

During the year under consideration, Six Meetings of the Managament Comemittes were held on 28" May, 24" June,
31" August, 30° September, 28° December, 2010 and 17 March, 2011

4, Subsidiary Companies
Al present, (ke Company is having two subsidiary Companies namaly Libarty Retall Revolulions Lid. and Liberty
Foot Fashion Middie East FZE and both are unlisied Companies. As required under the provisions of Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement and management prachices adopled by the Company and s subsidiary Companies, the
Company monitors the performance of its subsidiary Comganies. inter alia, by tha following means

] Financial statements, in parficulars the investments made by the subsidiary Comganies. are quarerly reviewsd
by the Audit Committee of the Company,

b Al the Minutes of the Board Meefings and / o requisite information of the subsidiary Companies are placed al
the Board Meatings of fhe Company

¢)  Audit Commitiee periodically reviews a statement of all significant ransactions & amanpements antered into
by the subsidiary Companies as placed before it and provides thelr obsenations / suggestions. as and when
needed, to the Company's Boan

Sh. Amitabh Taneja, Independent Direclor of the Company, has béen appointed 25 an Independent Diretior on e
Hoard of Liberty Retall Revolufions Limited, being the material non listed indian Subsidiary of e Company.

5. General Body Meetings
Il Location and lime, where the |ast three Annual General Meetings were held

The required particulars am as under,
24" Annigal Genaral Megling 2010 Registened Otfice Monday, 27" Seplember, 2010 11:00 AM
23" Anmual Genaral Meeling 2009 Regislersd Offica Wednasday, 307 September, 2009 3.00 PM.
22" Aoz General Mesting 2008 Registered Offica Friday, 26" September, 2008 11,30 AM

ii) Special Business transacted al the las! three Annual General Meetings

. Nos. of Special Business: § Nos. of Special Business: Nil

1. Re-appointment of 1. Appointment of Sh. Sunil Bansal & he Executive Direcior of he

Sh. Anesh Kumar Gupta a5 the Company.

Chiel Executive Officer of the 2 Fe-appoiniment of St Raman Bansal for holding office o placs

Company. of prolit in tha Company as "Head- Sales & Distribution”,
2. Re-appointment of Sh. Adarsh Gugta | '3 Re-appoinfment of Sh. Vivek Bansal for holding office or place of

a5 Ihe Executive Direcior ol the profit in the Company &s “Head-Production non Leather PV Drvision™,

Company 4 Increase in the remuneralion of Sh. Ayush Bansal, who is hoiding olice
3, Re-appointment of Sh. Stammi Bansal -or place of profit in the Company a5 “Business Developmant Manager”,

2s Mhe Exncutive Direcior of the Company. | 5 Appoiniment of Sh. Mannan Bansal for holding office or place of profit

in fhe Company as "Mahager — Resoumas”
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iii) Resolution passed or proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot

No resolution has been passed by the Company through postal ballot during the year under
consideration and no resolution, as mentioned in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
‘ has been proposed to be conducted through postal ballot
iv) Group As on 31° March, 2011:
Sh. D. K. Gupta, D. K. Gupta (Karta), Sh. Arpan Gupta, Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta, Adesh Kumar Gupta
(Karta), Sh. Adarsh Gupta, Sh. Anmol Gupta, Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta, Adeesh Kumar Gugpla
(Karta), Sh. Pranav Gupta, Sh. Akshal Gupta, Smt. Kamilavafi, Sh. Sunil Bansal. Smi. Rehti Devi,
Sn. Ayush Bansal, Sh. Shammi Bansal, Sh. Manan Bansal, Sh. Vaibhav Bansal, Sh. Raman Bansal,
Sh. Ruchir Bansal, Sh. Vivek Bansal, Sh. Pulkil Bansal u/fg/o Sh. Vivek Bansal, Sh. Anupam Bansal
and Gaolin Investments Pvi, Lid,
6. Disclosures
i) Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions
None of the transactions eniered into with related party was in conflict with the interest of the
Comgany. All the defalls of related party lransactions carried owt by the Company during the year
under consideration can be observed from the disclosures made in Nol2s on Accounts o the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2011 as specified in Accounting Standard
18 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.
Further, all the related party transactions are carried out in the normal course ol business and on
arms length basis. Audit Committee periodically reviews the ransactions with the relaled parties
in lerms of Company's stralegies in operations.
i) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The Company has continued %o follow the ireatments as prescribed in the Accounting Standards
nofified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and as such, no instances were come
across during the year which led 1o any deviations from Accounting Standards.
i) Details ol non-compliance during last three years
The Company has complied with the requirements of Stock Exchanpe(s), SEBI and olher statulory
authorities during the preceding three financial year(s) on all matters related to Capital Market and
no penalty / sirictures have been imposed on the Company in any matter.
iv) Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has not yet established any mechanism pertaining to Whistle Blower Policy for its
employees and stal(s).
v) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non mandatory
requirements of Clause 49

The: Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 493 of fhe Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchange. As far as non mandalory requirements are concerned, lo look
alter the Company's remuneration policy lor Diseclors, Senior Personnel and stafl, the Board
of the Company has set up @ Remuneration Commifiee in compliance with the requirements of
Companies Act, 1956 and other statutes, if any.
7. Means of Communication

Quarterly Results and publishing thereof in newspapers:

As per the Listing Agreement wilh Stock Exchange(s) where the Company's shares are listed. the

financial results of the Company are regularly and timely published in Business Standard, English dally

and in Dainik Jagran, Hindi Daily.




Any Website where the financial resulls are displayed:

The Un - Audited and Audited Results are also promptly forwarded lo Stock Exchange(s) where the
Equity shares of the Company are listed

The Quarterly Results, Shareholding pattern, Code of Conduct of Insider Trading and ofher useful
information for the Shareholders are available on the website of the Company al www libertyshoes.com
which also displays official news releases. The shareholders can also reach the Company for their
complaints / querles through a designated E-Mail 1D investorgrievancecell@libertyshoes.com which
has since been activated as per SEBI guidelines.

The Managemen! Discussion and Analysis Feporl giving an overview of the Indusiry, Company's
business and its Financials are provided separately as 2 part of this Annual Repart.,

. General Shareholder information:

Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date & Time Wednesday, 28" September, 2011 at 11.00 AM

Venue Libertypuram, 13 Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail PO. Bastara,
Distt. Karnal - 132 114 (Haryana)

Financial Results (Tentative);

Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30" June, 2011 : On 12" August, 2011
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30" Seplember, 2011 : By 14" November, 2011
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 31" December, 2011 : By 14" February, 2012
Financial Results for the Quarter ended 31" March, 2012 : By 15" May, 2012
Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31" March, 2012 : By August / Sept. 2012

Book Closure Dates: Friday, 23" September, 2011 1o Wednesday, 28" Septamber, 2011
{bath days inclusive).

Dividend Paymeni Date:

During the year under consideration, the Board ol Directors of the Company have not
racommended any dividend on eguily share capital of the Company lor the financial year ended
31" March, 2011,

Listing on Stock Exchanges with their Trading Codes:
At present the Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchange(s)

National Stock Exchange of India Ld., Exchange Plaza. Bandra Kurla Complex Bandra (East),
Mumibai - 400 051

NSE: LIBERTSHOE.

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers. Dalal Streef, Mumbal - 400 001
BSE: 526596

ISIN of Equity Shares of the Company - INESS7B01019

The Annual Listing lee far the financial year 2011-12 has since been paid to bioth the Stock
Exchange(s).

Stock Market Data:

The Comparison of the share price ol the Company with the broad based indices are provided
here under:
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Performance in comparison to § & P Nifty
Index vs. Share Price Liberty Shoes Ltd. on NSE Vs. NSE Nifty
S. No. Year S&PCNX | Share Price oy i
(2010-11) Nifty (in?) H00800 - 14000
1 April-10 5399 65 119.00 :
2 Neay-10 527870 Hayo | & o “h g
3 Jane-10 | 5366.75 115.80 ! 00000 P
4 July-10 547750 105.00 E = 800 ;
= 1000 00 i‘
5 August-10 5549.80 116,90 z - @i E
[ Soptember-10 6073.50 122.00 00000 4 P
I Detaber-10 6284.10 114,80
100800 = X0
8 Novembes-10 | 633850 134,45
9 December-10 6147.30 116.00 auuﬂ T e E e e T oo
10 January-11 6181.05 119,50 5 i E 3 E § % 5 g §¢& 3
11 February-11 9599.25 95.00
12 March-11 5872.00 94.80 —+—— 8 & P CNX NIFTY —&— SHARE PRICE (in T)
Performance in comparison to Sensex
Index vs. Share Price Liberty Share Price on BSE Vs. BSE SENSEX
8. No. Year BES Sensex | Share Price 25.000,00 - 160,00
(2010-11) (in 2) |
1 Aprit-10) 18047 .B6 110,40 20,000,00
2 May-10 | 17536.86 e | g TEERY
3 Jung-10 17919.62 101.35 i 1500000 - 10000 i
4 July-10 1823756 107,95 : ‘on ¥
5 a1 | teaszr | mars | B o] £
§ September10 | 20267.98 200 | B ek
1 October-10 | 2085455 115.00 SR =
8 November-10 | 21108.64 134,90 - 2000
g December-10 | 20552.03 116,00 e o . .
10 January-11 20664.80 119.45 e s St R T
3 February-11 |  18690.97 95,00 £§335388z383
12 March-11 19575.16 94,75 o § 8 7 CUK NFTY —— SHARE PRCE G T)




o

The monthly high low gquotations as wel| as the volume of shares traded at National Stock Exchange ol
India Ltd. (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) for the financial year ended 31° March, 2011

are as under
KEY INDICATORS
EQUITY SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT ON NSE & BSE (April 2010 - March 2011)
(Price in ?) Volume (i No. of Snares)
Year (2010-11) NSE |  BSE NSE BSE NSE BSE
April 119.00 110.40 8420 101.30 4544529 1911189
May 11910 107.85 87.20 BT.10 1633466 623215
June 115.80 101.35 89.10 90.00 3093185 1364674
July 105.00 10795 9510 85.00 2056088 983357
August 116.90 113.75 96.35 97.65 3654485 1889592
Seplember 122.00 121.00 98.10 99.20 6808706 2850814
October 11480 115.00 103.40 103.20 2403778 1101813
November 134.45 134.90 9810 ar.25 5558872 2532735
December 116.00 116.00 98.95 89 00 1510285 678858
January 119.50 119.45 91.55 91.05 1990352 1154368
February 95.00 95.00 73.00 7250 660043 347232
March 94.80 9475 78.05 7885 928075 336605
TOTAL 34931864 15874452

vii. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Link [nfime India Private Limited
A-40, 2 Floor, Naraina Industrial Area, Phase- I
Mear Bafra Banquet Hall, New Delhi 110028,
Telephone: 91-11-41410532 —94.
Fax - 91-11-41410591,
Email: dethiclinkintimeco.in

viii. Share Transfer System:
The Company has made arrangements with M/s Link Intime India Private Limited, the Cornmon
Agency lor Share Transler and Ihe Depository Services. Aller complelion ol preliminary lormalllies
of transter / transmission by the Share Transfer Agent, the approwal of transfer of shares in the
physical form is done by the Sharsholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee.
In terms of SEB! Circular SEBY/MRD/CIR-10/2004 dated 10" February 2004, the Company returns
the duly transferred Share Cerlificale(s) o the transferee in physical form.
Pursuant to Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement, Certificate(s) on hall yearly basis have been
issued by the Company Secretary in Practice for due Compliance of Shase Transler formalities
by the Company. As per SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Regulations, 1996, certificate(s) have
been received fram a Company Secretary in practice for timely dematesialization of shares and in
respect ol Reconciliation of Share Capilal Audit on quarterly basis for reconciliation of the Share
Capital of the Company.
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viii. Distribution of Shareholding:
Distribution Summary as on 31" March, 2011

Shareholding of Number of Shareholders Number of Shares Amount
nominal value Number % of lotal Number % of total (inT)
Upto 2,500 12,804 86.79 12.15,009 7.13 1,21,50,990
2,501 - 5,000 1,082 740 428,614 2.5 42 86,140
5.001 - 10,000 432 33 3.92 567 230 39.25.670
10,001 - 20000 179 1.21 266,936 1.57 26,69,360
20,001 - 30,000 56 (38 1,42 682 .84 14,26,820
30,001 - 40,000 27 0.18 97 531 0.57 975,310
40,001 - 50,000 21 0.14 49,259 0.58 9,92 590
50,007 - 1,00.000 27 0.18 2,00.932 1.18 20.09,320
1,00,001 & Above 56 0.38 1,41,96,380 B3 14,19,63,800
Total 14,754 100.00 1,70,40,000 100.00 17,04,00,000
Category wise List of Shareholders as on 31" March, 2011
Category No. of Shares held Vaoting Strength (%)
Promoters Holding
A Individual Promoters 67,93.490 39.87
B Bodies Corporate 4472 517 26.25
Total Promoters Holding 1.,12,66,007 66.12
Public Holdings
A Fis, NRIs & Banks etc 63,220 0.37
B Indian Public including
Private Bodies Corporate 57,10,773 33.51
Total Public Holding 57,73,993 33.88
Grand Total 1,70,40,000 100.00

ix. Shares held in physical and demalerialized form:

The Company's Shares ane traded compulsarily i demateriallzed form and are available lor trading in
depository system of both NSDL and COSL through their depository participants. As on 31" March,
2011, the status of Shares in physical and dematerjalized form stood as under

§. No. Mode ol Equity Share Holding(s) Number of Shares Percentage of total capital
1 Dernat 1,23,15,612 1227
2 Physical 47.24,388 27.73

Total 1,70,40,000 100.00

x.  Planl Locations:

The Company's plants are located at Karnal at Haryana, Dehradun and Roorkee at Uttrakhand and in
Ponta Sahib at Himachal Pradash



xi. Requirement of Permanent Account Number (PAN):

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of PAN by every
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, themefore, requested
to submit 2 copy of PAN to their Depository Participant with whom they are maintaining their
Demal Accounts. Members holding shares in physical lorm can submil their PAN details to the
Company / Registrar and Share transter Agenls, M/s Link Intime India Private Limited

Aparl from above, for securllies markel transactions and off-market / privale Iransactions involving
transter of shares of the Company in physical form, it has also been made mandatory for the
transteree]s) to. furnish copy of PAN card to the Company / RTA for registration of such transker of
shares including

« Deletion of name of (he deceased shareholder(s), wherg the shares are held in the name of two or
maore shareholders.

» Jransmission of shares lo the legal heir(s), where deceased shargholder was the sale holder
of shares.

» Transposition of shares — when therg is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are
held jointly In the names of two or more shareholders
xil. Address for Correspondence

For any query relaled 1o Annual report, fransfer / dematerializalion of shares, dividend, and any other
matter related to shares, please contact at either of the following address

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: Company:

Link intime India PvL. Lid. Liberty Shoes Lid.

A-40, 2nd Floor, Department of Investors' Relations
Naraina Industrial Area, Phase- Il, 2nd Floor, Tower B, Building No: 8
Near Batra Banquet Hall DLF Cyber City, Phase-||

New Delhi - 110 028 Gurgaon - 122 022

Tel : (81) 11-41410592 94 Tel : (91) 124-4616200

Fax - (91) 11-41410591 Fax - (91) 124-4616222

Email; dethi@linkintime.co.in Email: munish@libertyshoes.com

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
ON CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER CLAUSE 49(1)(D)(Il) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To
The Members

Liberty Shoes Lid.

| hereby declare that to the best of my knowledge and information, all the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have alfirmed in writing their adherence with the code of conduct adopted by the
Company during the financial year ended 31" March, 2011

Place: Libertypuram, Karnal Adesh Kumar Gupla
Dated: Friday, 12" August, 2011 Chiel Executive Officer
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Auditors' Certificate

To the Members of Liberty Shoes Lid.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporaie Governance by Liberty Shoes Lid.
{the Company) lor the year ended 31" March, 2011 as stipulated in clause 49 ol the Listing Agreement
of the Company with Stock Exchange(s) In Indla

The compliance with the conditions of Corporale Govemance is the responsibility ol the management
Our examinalion was limited 1o & review of the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliiance with the canditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above said clause. It s neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the linancial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and lo the best of owr information and explanalions given lo us, we cerlily that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement.

We have been explained thal ng invesior grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month as at
31" March, 2011 against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company, excepl those
cases which are constrained by disputes or legal proceedings.

We further siate that such compliance IS neither an assurance as 1o future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or eflectivenéss with which the management has conducted the affalrs of the Company.

For Pardeep Tayal & Co
Firm Registration No. 002733N
Chartered Actountants

Pardeep Tayal
Place: Libertypuram, Kamal Fartner
Daled: Friday, 12" August, 2011 Membership No. 081643



Certification pursuant to Clause 49(V)
of Listing Agreement

To the Board of Directors
Liberty Shoes Lid.

We; the undersigned, in the representative capacity of Chiel Executive Officer and Vice President &
Company Secretary respectively, hereby certify to the best of our knowledge and belief that -

a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow stalement for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2011 and that -

these statements do not contain any materially unirue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading,

these statemnents together present A true and fair view of the Company's alfairs and are in
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. During the year, no transactions were entéred into by the Company, which are fraudulent, Illegal
or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct

C. We accept respansibility for eslablishing and malntaining internal controls lor financial reporting
and we have evalualed the efiectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pedaining
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Commities,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such Internal controls, if any, of which we are aware
and the steps we have laken or propose o take to reclity these deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any. of which we are aware and the steps we have laken or
propose io take fo rectify these deficiencies

d. We have indicated fo the Auditors and the Audit Commities

there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the year under refesence;

i, there has not been any significant changes in accounting policies as disclosed In the

financial stalements of the Company; and

there are no instances of signifticant fraud of which we had become aware and ihe
invalvemenl therein, il any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in
the Company's internal control system over financial reporting

; Adesh Kumar Gupla Munish Kakra
Place : Libertypuram, Karnal Chief Execulive Officer Vice President &
Dated: Friday. 12" August, 2011 DIN-00143192 Company Secretary
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Indian Economy — Outiook

Indian economy in the recent times has benefitted from strong domestic demand and a resumption of
investor sentiments although higher interest rates are expected to trim the overall growth rate. Improved
external demand and stronger capital inflows have also played a positive role. A reasonably good monsoon
has helped Ihe agricullure sector and has boosted rutal demand as well, It 1s estimated thal India will have
GDF growth rate for 2011-12 at 8.2% as compared to 8.5% registered last year which still provide India a
foremost position amongst growing and emerging economies

At global front, domestic consumption Is on high in the emerging economies and those economies
including India are now frant running the global economic expansion.

Your Company, considering the economic growth of India, has polential to maintain fts path of growth
like earlier with buoyancy of registering new growth rate in forthcoming years by improving its overall
perlormance.

The In I - il Devel

During the year 2010-11, the exporl ol leather and leather products touched to 17518 Crones as against
the performance of ¥16152 Crores in the corresponding period of last year recording a positive growth of
8.46%. India produces 2065 million pairs of different categories which are second only to China. India
Exports 115 million pairs in 2010 and consumes 95% of its production in domestic market. With its
growing performance over the years the lootwear seclor has nol become important segment of the leather
industry in India but also emesged as engine of growth for the entire Indian feather indusiry, This segment in
the past has always been the major contributor of the leather product exports from India.

This seclors’ strength is basically due to |1s domination on reliable supply of resources in the fom of raw
hides and skins, quality finished leather, large installed capacities for production of finished leather and
footwear, huge human capital with expertise and technology base, skilled manpower and relafively low cost
labour, demonstraled capabilities fo produce footwear for giobal leading brands.

The Govi. ol India, considering the export and employment polential has also been implementing various
promational schemes lor the Indian footwear industry. Liberty, during the year under review, for its various
initiatives has received recognition and also incentive under the schemes.

Jpportunities | 1nreats, K i LONGEr

Indian Leather Indusiry has achieved significant growih over the years but the share of Indian Leather Sector
in the global market of leather and leather products 1S presently only around 3%. The Leather Industry, with
its strong features, definitely has the potential to improve its export performance in the coming years. The
Govl of India, has fixed a ambitious targel of USD B.5 billions for the Indian Laather Sector to be achieved
by 2013-14. The Induslry has o achieve an annual growth of about 26% (as against the present level of
about 10.5%) in order 1o achieve this tamel.

Liberty with its state of the art manutacturing facilities and best available technologies would positively
strive to contribule to the growth targels.

In the domestic markel with the avallability of higher disposable income and with the emargence of young
work force including women the existing markets are expanding and many new markets have developed.
Most of the leading brands are now available al Tier Il and Tier Il cities. Better paying jobs and revetation
to fashion trends worldwide through media have also resulted in changing consumer habits. The
transformation of economy has led to changing aspirations with the need to be considered good looking
and stylish has taken its importance. As a resull, mindsets of the people have changed and people are
spending more an consumption, Liberly considers [his change as an opportunity and is hopeful lor a overall
growth in the footwear consumption,



Indlan Companies are now looking for opportunities 1o grow inorganically also. Global markets besides
creating growth opportunities also provide leaming for domestic markets. In the last few years a number of
overseas acquisitions have been concluded by Indian Companies though very lew in the foolwear segment
bul this implies a signilicant opportunily lor the fulure growth. Positive and favorable economic fachors,
change in the consumer preferences and progressive approach of Govt. Including entry of FOU in retail atso
make a domestic market an appealing destination.

The opportunities in the Indian market have aiso atiracted many foreign brands fo the Indian Markel These
foreign brands may be fulfilling their requirements lo certain extent from Indian Companies giving them a
new opportunity for their growth

Liberty believes that power ol its brand allows the Company to pass on the impacl of any increase In its
input cost to the consumers. However, considering the uncertainty and increasing competitive pressures,
part of the increased cosis may be required lo absorb by the Company. In the economic slowdown,
consumers tend to reduce their exposure towards discretionary spending. Shilling Irom branded products lo
non-branded ones could akso occur and affect the financial performance of the Company,

Your Company is geared up with the new chailenges and being a icon of family footwear, it caters fo the
entire family, It has plans fo expand Its retail network besides franchisee and wholesale network. |t has
sirang manulacturing facility with dedicated leam ol design and development. With the changing lifestyle ol
the pecple of India and increasing demand of the products, Liberty focused the domestic demand and
expects that it will grown higher than the past.

Internal Control System and its Adequacy: Liberty has adopied an adequate internal control system and
defined procedures covering all the financial and operational functions In order to ensure that Company's
Bssels are safeguarded and protected, transactions are authenlicated and reported comeclly so thal the
operations are concleded in an efficient and cost effective manner. The CEQ/CFO cedification provided
elsewhere in the Annual Report discusses the adequacy of Intemal conlrol systems and procedures followed
by the Company.

Financial Performance; The highlights of the financial performance of the Company during the year
ended 31" March, 2011 have been stated in the Directors' Report for the year ended 31" March, 2011,
which appears separately in the Annual Report. Brief details of the performance of the Company during the
year under consideration are given as under;

Capital Structura: During the year, there has been no change in the Capital Struclure of the Company and
Paid up Capital of the Company was 21704 Lacs as on 31" March, 2011,

Reserves and Surplus: The Company's resenves and surplus increased from 1145030 Lacs
fo T12458.57 Lacs in 2010-11. Free reserves accounted for 89.97% of the tolal reserves as on
31" March, 2011,

Gross Block: Liberty's Gross Block increased by 94203 Lacs to ¥14595.28 Lacs in 2010-11. The
increase was mainly on account of normal capital expenditure required at plants.

Investments: Liberty's invesiments stood at T1794.29 Lacs (previous year T1750.19 Lacs) in 2010-11.
Liberty has subscribed to share application money of ¥44.10 Lacs in Liberty Foot Fashion Middle East FIE
(LFF), its overseas subsidiary during the year.

Total Income and Profits: Liberty's total income, comprising sales and other income, increased from
226684.04 Lacs to ¥30658.18 Lacs in 2010-11, Profit belore tax, after making a provislon for depreciation,
increased from 932 15 Lacs fo T1007.80 Lacs in 2010-11. The Company's net profit, after considering
a fax provision of ¥202.92 Lacs (as against the previous year's ¥163.15 Lacs), MAT Credit Enfitlement
of T161.40 Lacs (previous years T141.65 Lacs) and a delerred tax assetl of T42.66 Lacs (as against
previous year's assets of ¥56.55 Lacs), stood at ¥1028.95 Lacs in 2010-11 (as against the previous years
T067.21 Lacs),
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Interest and Financial Cosl: Liberly's interest and financlal cosls stood al ¥820.89 Lacs in 2010-11
(previous year's T899.19 Lacs), comprising imterest on Term Loans and working capital requirements.
The saving in inferest and financial costs was due to reduchion in working capital deployment and repayment
of term lpan.

Secured Loans: During the year under review, the Company availed Term Loan of ¥93360 Lacs
(as against previous year's T46.94 Lacs). The outstanding amount of the Term Loan as on 31st March, 2011
was T950.52 Lacs (as agains! previous years T223.71 Lacs)

The amount of working capital loan primarily secured frough the Company's currenl assets stood at
T8605.18 Lacs compared to ¥7280.61 Lacs in the previous year.

Inventories: Inventaries, comprising finished goods. raw materials. work in process etc. as at 315l March,
2011, stood al T8127 .87 Lacs (as agains! previous year's ¥6371.40 Lacs).

The inventory-furnaver ratio for the year ended 3151 March, 2011 was 97 days as against 96 days in the
previous year.

Sundry Debtors: Sundry Debtors. with an average realisation period of 93 days stood at €7766.71 Lacs in
2010-11 (as against the previous year's T6845.15 Lacs). Out of the Sundry Deblors, T1289.19 Lacs (as
against the previpus year's 77299 Lacs) were due from oversess customers. The Company afler
considering the recovery process, has made a provision of ¥ Nil Lacs (as agains! previous years 331558
Lacs) for doubtful debts. During the year, the Company has also written off its book debis of ¥290.22 Lacs
{as against previous years T296.31 Lacs),

Loans and Advances: The Loans and Advances given by the Company included an advance Income Tax
{including Minimum Alternate Tax) of 2215.23 Lacs in 2010-11 (as against the previous year's 2151.94
Lacs), export benefil raceivables of 31816 Lacs (as against the previous years 159,36 Lacs) and prepaid
expenses of ¥36.69 Lacs (as againsi the previous year's T36.40 Lacs). The security amount of T1573.20
Laes (as against previous year's ¥1564.32 Lacs) continued 1o include an amaunt of F1375.00 Lacs (as
against previous year's 21375.00 Lacs) paid under the agreements dated 31st March, 2003 for securing
franchise and exclusive license arangements.

Current Liabilities: The Sundry Creditors of ¥4142.63 Lacs included T17.68 Lacs towards capifal goods
{as against the previous year's 117.59 Lacs), mpesented an amount of T135.68 Lacs (as against the
previous years ¥426.92 Lacs) due lowards M/s, Liberty Enlerprises, Liberly Group Marketing Division,
Liberty Footwear Co. under the lerms of the respeclive agregments dated 31st March, 2003,

! velopments: In view of the expanded job potential of Footwear Industry, the Gowt, of
India amf mamr pmraia msrmtlum have sel up institutes for imparting specialised Footwear Technigues.
Many corporates and the players in the organised retailing are offering opportunities to those aspirants who
have been benefilted from such technigues. Libérty also has tie up with such instilutes Tor fullilling its
requirements of specialised nature.

Liberty makes confinual efforts for training, up gradation and development needs of its Human Capital for
their growth along with its own compelency. Apart from in-house training programmes, Liberty also
sponsored to its employees for different external training symposiums.

As on 31st March, 2011, the total employee strength of the Company stood at 1565 as compared lo
Previous Year's 1618. Further, the Company consistently complies with the lerms and conditions under the
franchise agreements including the reimbursement of workers' expenses.

Cautionary Statement: Statements in the Management's discussion and analysis, describing the
Company's objectives, expectations and industrial outlook, may constitute forward looking statement
within the meaning of applicable laws. The actual results might differ materially from those either expressed
of implied.




Auditors” Report

TO THE MEMBERS,

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Liberty Shoes Lid. as on 31" March, 2011, Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended on thal date and also the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that day
annexed thereto. These financial statemenls are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility Is fo express an opinion on these financial slatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audil in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit |ncludes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the linancial stalements. An audil also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe thal our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004 issued Dy the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 we enclose in
the annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said Order.

1. Furthér to our comments in the annexure relerred to above, we report thal:-

a) We have obfained all the information and explanation, which 1o the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our ma@mination of such books;

t) The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by the Report are in
agreement with the books of account as submitied io us;

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheel. Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement deall with by
this repori comply with the Accounting Standards reférred 1o in sub-section (3C) of section 211 ol
ihe Companies Act, 1956,

g) On the basis of written representation received by us from the Directors of the Company as at
31" March, 2011 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, We report that no director is
disqualified as on 31" March 2011 from being appointed as Director of the Company under clause
(g} ol sub section (1) of section 274 of the Campanies Act, 1956;

f)  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanation given o us, the
said Accounts gives the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so
required and gives a true and fair view in conformily with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

I} Inthe case of the Balance Sheet. of the state of alfairs of the Company as af 315t March 2011;

ii) Inthe case ol Profit & Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on tha
date; and
jiiy In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date,

For Pardeep Tayal & Co.
Firm Registration No. 002733N
Chartered Accountanis
Pardeep Tayal
Place: Libertypuram, Karnal Partner
Dated: Friday. 12° August, 2011 Membership Number 081643



Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

{Referred to in para 3 of our report of even date)

L & Iru:d{:mq:t:m has maintained proper reconds showing full particoiars including quantitative dafails and situation of
A5sH
t) During e wear there masts 3 reguiar programme of verdication of Fixed Asseis and which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having segard to the size of the Comgany and nature of its assels. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification
¢l During the year, the Comgany has nod disposed off any major part of the flxed assats. Thus the going concem sialls
ol the Company |4 not afiecied
I &) As explained to us, the physical werification of the invenlory was carmied oul al reasomable intervals by the
Managemant
&) In our oginion and acconding 1o the informition and expianations given o LS, the pmcedures of phyzical verification
of inventary lotiowsd by the management are reasanable and adeguate i ratstion to the size of the Company and the
natura of ifs business
c) In our opinlon and accoeding to (fe information and explanations given (o us, the Company has maintained proper
records of s inventory, and the discrepancies nofticed on verification besween the physical stock & book records ware
not miaterial in relatian 1o the operation of the Company and the same have been propery deall with in e books of
account
L &) The Company has not granted any lasn o any Company, lirm or partles listed In the register maintained under section
3 urlu Cunpanin Act. 1956,
o) ‘ITla uns of ctause 4 (i) (b) of Companies (Awnditors Repod) {Amendment) Order, 2004 are not applicable to

€) The Cpamms of ciaase 4 (i) (c) of Companies (Auditor's Repart) (Amendment) Order, 2004 are nol applicabie to

d) kcplmurs of clawse 4 (i) (d) of Companies (Awditor's Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004 are not applicable fo

mpany.

e) The Gompany had tiken shor term loan from one Company, Mfs Geolin kwestmaonts Private Lid. This Company Is
listed in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act 1956 The mudmum amout imeobied
during the year was 210,00,00,000/- and the year-end balance of lnan faken from such party was T4,45,00,000/-

fi I our opinion, the rate of Intersst & other ferms & condifion on which loan has been taken from the above said
Company listed in the regisier maintiined undar section 3071 of the Companies Acl 1956 (4 nol, prima Gcls.
prefudical 1o the interest of the Company.

@) The Company has been iegular in repaying tha peincipal amoun! and paymend of (ntemst & stipulated

IV, in or opinéon and according 10 the information and mqplanations given 1o us, there ae adequate intemal condrol
procedures commensusats with the size of the Company and the nature of is business with regand to purchase of
invendory, fined 2ssels and with regard 1o sale ol goods and services. During the cowrse of our audil, we have neither
LT ACTOSS Mol we heve been infurmed of any major wasknesses in the aloresabd infermal controd Systam.

V. &) According 1o information and explanations given (o s, we am of the opinion fhat the particulars of contracts o

amangements relened bo v section 301 of Comipanies Act, 1956 have been eniensd into the repisier maintined under
section 301 of thee Companies A, 1956,

&) In our opinlon and 2cconding Mo Ihe inlormation and explanations given g s e transactions made in pursuance ol
contracts of amangements enteted in e regisier maintained under section 301 of the Companies Acl, 1956 during
ihe year have been made at pricas wiich ane reasonable.

VI The Compary has nol accepted amy depasit from the public as per the dissclives (ssusd by Reserve Bank of India and
mmﬂmnﬁammh 5B AS or any other releant provisaon of the Companies Acl, 1956 and neles Tramed
{hare !

VIl In our opinion, the Company has an inlamal audd system commensurate with the size and rafure of its business

VIl We have beoadly reviewsd the books of account mantained by e Company pursuant to the rules made by S Central
Gowermment for the maintenance of cost recomds under section 200(1){d) of the Comganies Act, 1956 and are of ihe
opinion that prima facie the prescribed sccounts and recoeds have been made and mainizined. We have nol howsves,
made 2 detaited eaminafion of the same

. a) According fo the information and explanasfion given f us and on the basis of our eaemingtion of recomds of the

Company, amounts daducted ¢ accruad in the books o accound in mespact of undispuled statulody dues nchuding
Provident Fund, Employees’ Stale Insurance, Inveslor Education and Protection Fund, ecome Tax, Sales TagVAT,
Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duly, Sarvice Tax, Cass and other matenal stabulory dues have boon reguiarly
deposiled during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorliiss,

B  Thiere wre no undispulisd amoonl payable in respect of Income T, Sates TooWAT, Wizallh Tax, Custom Duly, Extlse
Disty, Service Tax. Cess and other material stitulory dues a5 at 317 Masch, 2011 which are outslanding lor & period
mdiee han Six months from the data hay become payable,

€} Asat 31" Mamh, 2011 acconding o the reconds of the {tumpag:nﬂ Ine information and esplanations given to
us. loflowing are fhe particulars of dlspubed dues on account of Excise Duty, Income Tax and VAT which have not
been deposied




-

The Central Customs, Excise

Bicchsa Act. 1044 Excise Duty 29975448 Jung 2005 and & Service Tax Appeliate
! May - June 2006 Tribunal, Mew Delhi
. Customs, Excise
The Central Excise Financial
Education Gass 3.86,314 & Service Tax Appeliate
Act, 1944 year 2004-05 Yribunal, New Delhi
= Commisskoner
The Service Tax January 2005 to
Service Tax on GTA services 2,33 486 Appeals (Delhi-i),
Act, 1994 March 2007 New Delhi
Value Added Tax on .
Punjab Value Added Financial Year Deputy Commissioner
Tax, 2008 B hcien semcy 10.13,018 2006-2007 (Appeals)
. Value Added Tax on
Punjab Value Added Financial Yoar Deputy Commissiones
Tax, 2005 sty 22.30,096 2007-2008 (Appeals)

»x

The Company does not have any accumutafed losses as at 3151 March 2011, The Company has not Incurred any cash
lrssas during the financial yesar covered by our audit and In the |mmedistely preceding linancial year.

Im our epinion &nd acconding to the information and explanatipns given to us. the Company hkas not deksulied in
repayment of dues to any financial nstitubions, bank or debenture holders.

The Company has nol granded #ny loans and advances on the basis of securnly, by way of pledge of shares, debentuses
and ofher secuntics.

In gur opinion, the Company & nof a chit fund or 2 nidhi muteal benefit iand’ society. Thereloz, the prosisions of
clause 4 (211 ol the Cominles (Auditor's Report) (Amendmeant) Order, 2004 are not applicable to the Company

In our opinion the Company i nof deaing in of trading in shares, secuities, dobenhwes and other investments,
Theratore, the provisions of cluse 4 (dv) of the Companses (Auditor's Reporfi (Amendment) Onder, 2004 are nol
#pplicable to the Company.

Im our opnion and acconding to the information and explanations givin to U the terms and conditions of the guarantess
gwen by the Company for oans taken by subsidiary comgany from banks during (e year are not prefudicial lo me
inferast of the Comgpany.

Acoording to e information &nd explanations given 1o us, he ferm loans have been applied for the purpose for which
the loans weee raised.

According fo the inkermation and mplanations given o us and on an overll amingtion of the balance sheet ol tha
Company, we rap0rt that na funcs raisad on shost-term Dasis have been used for long-temm investment.

. Acording 1o tha infarmalion and esplanations given fo us. the Company has nol made any preferential allotmeant ol
shaes to parties and Companies covered i Ehe register maintained undes sechion 301 of fw Companias Acl, 1956,
According fo the information and expianations given io us, the Company has not issued any secumsd debentures. dunng
ey yierar,

The Company has not raised amy mongy through public issus during Ihe year.
According to the information and axplanations given fo us, no lrawd on or by the Company has been noliced or mported
during Me cowse ol our sud|l

5 @ 5 B
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For Pandeep Tayal & Co.
Firm Reqistrtion No, 002733N
Chartered Accountanis
Pardeep Tayal
Place; Libartypuram, Karmal Fartner
Diaked- Fricay, 12 August. 2011 Memibership Numbes 031643



Balance Sheet

as at 31st March, 2011

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

{Amount in 2)

v [ oo |

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 1 17.04.00,000 17,04.00.000
Reserves & Surplus 2 1.2458.56,879] 1416256879  1.1450.20.753]  1,31,54,20.753
Loan Funds '
Secured Loans 3 95,55,71,207 75,04,31,618
Unsecured Loans 4 751.04700]  1,03.06,75.907 12,78,98,700 87.83,31318
Deferred Tax
Deterred Tax Liability 5 5.5367,257 5.96,34.097
TOTAL 2.50,23,00,023 2,25,33,95,168
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 6 1,45.95,28,201 1,36,53.25,008
Less: Depreciation 50.47 18,721 53,2500 454
Net Block B6,48.09,480 83,28,24,554
Add: Capital Work In Progress 10516176 87,63,25,656 83.28,24 554
Investments 7 17,94 29,357 17,50,10.357
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS
& ADVANCES
Inventories 8 81,27 87 460 £9,71,30,387
Sundry Deblors 9 17 66.70,626 68,45.15,178
Cash & Bank Balances 10 2.79.43,751 4,13,36,981
Loans & Advances 1 35,99.63,873 29,68.97,372
1,97,7365.710 1,71,98,90,918
Less: Current Liabilities 12 51,50.27,101 45,99,39,359
Provisions 13 1.47.93,500 _ 1,44,00,302
Net Current Assets 1.44.75.45010 1.24,55.51.257
TOTAL SR 2,25,33,95,168
Schedules referred 1o above and notes on the accounts in Schedule 21 form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
Shgnied in 1erms of our Audit Repor o even date
For Pardaap Tayal & Ce., for and on bihal! of tha Board
Firm Regn. No. 0027338
Chartered Accountants
e et s Ottt e e T ePwARY Cae SuHey
Membership Mo, DE1643 Din-DO1 43152 DiN-00n 387e2 [H4-00481803

Place Libertypurem. Kamal
Dafed: Friday, 12° August 2011

@



Profit & Loss Account

for the year ended 31st March, 2011

-

(Amount in T
A sz [ | sz |
INCOME
Sales 3053002345 266,11,48,302
Less: Excise Duty B.35.99.748 544 51 762
256,94 02 597 2.60,66,86,540
Dlbies Income 14 1.28,15.774 13,45 654
Increase/{Decrease) in Stocks 15 349,12 595 3.01.71.30,966 1,61.04,375 2,63.01,36.569
EXPENDITURE
Raw Malerials Consumed 16 1,57,49,30.234 1,38,52.93.036
and Finished Goods Purchased
Mansdacturing Expanses 17 24.76.49.303 20,53,69,135
Paymants and Benolis to 18 35.67.90.089 270316824
Emiployees
Admeristration, Selling and 19 58,62 06.653 51,6095 878
Miscailaneous Expansas
Interest & Financial Charges 20 B,20.89.492 £89.18.767
Excise Duty 391,408 20,02.799
Dapreciation ] 6,80.93.057 2916351138 6,79,25,354 2.5369.21 793
Profit belose tax 10,07.79.830 03214 776
Provatian for Tation
Curresnt Tax 20291 674 163,14 800
MAT Credil Enlitlement (1.81.40,369) (1.41,65,384)
Deferred Tax A2 Bt {56,55.580)
Proft after b 10.28,95,385 9.67,20.950
Add/{Less) Taxation adjustments of previous
years (net) (46,90.180)
Mel Profil for the year 10.08.27,128 §,20,30.760
Add: Opening batarice 37, 34,38,69,485
Net Profit available lor appropriations 47 6727 3N 43.59,00,245
AFPRUFPRLATIONS
Transter o General Reserve £,040,00,000 6,00,00.000
Balance carmled over 1o Batance Sheel 4167.27.3T1 37,58,00.245
Earning Per Share of 710/~ gach
Basic & Diluted 04 568
Basic & Dihiled {Befoes Exceptional [tems) 608 552
Basie & Diluted (Considering Taxation loe
Pravious Years) 592 540
Schedules reberied 1o above and notes on the sccounts in Schedule 21 form an integral part of the Profil & Loss Accoun
Segreed in tarms of our Awdi Repon of even date
For Pardeap Tayal & Co., for and on bahall of the Board
Firm Regn. No, D02733N
Charlered Accountans
v S e s O e e T et Carrmy Sy
Wembership No. 081643 DIN-001 43152 DIN-0i)1 38792 D-0048 1803

Place; Libertypuram, Kamal
Diated: Friday, 12" At 2011

®



Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2011

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

{Amaunt in T)

IC 31.03.2011
A CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIITIES _ .
Mol Profit before T, Interest and estra ondinary #zms 176936136 178487728
Adjusiments for.
Linrealisisd Foreign Exchange Dillenence (4.09.067) 26,359,326
Depreciation 680,93 957 6,785,358
Loss/{Galn) on <aie of Foed Ausels (ne) 65,331 42 06 175
Bank & Other el (16.94 58T} (26,10 628)
Pronesicn for dochtiul debts - 1221102
Opeating Prolit belare working capital changes 2h5.94. 150 26,18.69,205
Adtjusirments o
Trade & Deher Aecalvables {92155 448) 1,05.86,214
invenkories (11,56.48.073) (2.44,13.975)
Loans & Advances i1.15.43.244) (28.34.174)
Trade & Dthar Payablis 132992131 (7007 29,9084
Cash genemated kom Dparafions 127240116 172877 30
Dlieesct Taxes Paid (2,3591.516) (183,57 669)
Cash Flow batore exira rdinary items 1036 45,600 15.41,19.633
Extra Ordinary ltems . -
Het Cash Flow lrom Operating Activities 10,36.48,600 15,41,19,633
B CASH ALOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Ansety (11,3454 180) (639,77 445)
Sale ol Fined Asets 21537190 762,300
Bank and Omer lnterest 16,54 587 26,10,628
Incréase in inwesiments (44,10,000) (5.0 96,0504
Decrese i Invesimants - 785,75, 505
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (11,39.75,803) (2.62.24,863)
C CASH FLOW FROM FIRANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from long 1em bomgwings 8360000 45.93,785
Repayment ol long lerm bomowings (2,068,717 BO8) (548,05 055
Iterest pait {7 61.59,306) {852 72052
Net Cash used in Financing Activilies (38.77.114 {13.53,84.212)
D Nel Increase/{Decreaze) in Cash ond Cash Equivalents (A+8+C) ﬁiﬂ.ﬂ,ﬂ (74,589,542}
E Gash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 413.38.901 5,14,67,049
F _Unrealised Foreign Exchange Difference 400,087 {26,39.326)
G Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) (D+E+F) 2,78.43.751 4,13,38,981
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand inciuding impres! 28.00.076 1961150
Balanca with Scheduled Banks
Corrand Accounts 7.20.810 B6.40,355
Fixpd Daposits agggeres | 0 gorware |
Total -2,79.43.751 4,13,38,981
Notas: 17 Cash and Cish Equivalents repressnts Cash and Bank batences. 2) Purchase of Fieed Assels includes movements of capital work in progeess between e beginning and
# the end of the year
Shgred In terms. of our Audil Report of even date
For Padaap Tayal & Co., for and on behall of tha Board
Firm Regn. Mo. 002733N
Chartered Accountants
Par
e o et L O
Wempership No. DB1643 DiN-001 43192 D0l 3a7e2 [-00481803

Place: Libertypliram, Kamal
Daled: Friday, 12" August. 2011
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Schedules
1

SCHEDULE-1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: 51000000 (Frevious year 51000000 Equity Shams) of 10/~ aach
Issued, Subscnibed & Paid up:
17040000 (Prayious year 17040000} Equity Shares of 210/ each fully pald up

Dt of the above 8520000 Equity Shares (Previous year-8520000) issued by
wiry of Banus Equity Shaes,

Total
SCHEDWLE-2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capilal Regerve
Gengral Resenve:
Opening Batance
Add: Transtarred fom Profit & Loss Account
Closing Balance
Securities Premium
Prafit & Loss Actount

SCHEDULE-3
SECURED LDANS
TEAM LOANS
from Banks:
(includes 1,52, 74 380 (Frevious year T1,85,75.188/-) repayable wilhin ona year)
{Secured by equitable morigage of End stuated at Village Bhagwanpis, Roorkee,
Uttarakhand and by way of 151 charge on bullding sifusfed af Libertypurem and
whate of e movesble & immiovable Plant & Machinery, machinery spares, lools &
accessories elc, and by way of hypothecation of vehickes. )

from Others:

(includes T15.20,808/- (Previous year T Nil) regayabile wilhin ong yaar)
(Szcured by way of hypofhacation of vehichs)

WORKING CAPITAL LOANS

{Secuted dgainsl bypothecalion of Company's entin stock of raw matirials, ook

In transit and with shippers at port awalting shipment for exparis, ecaivables,
chaques, bank drafts and all othar current 3ssets and Znd pari-passu charge on
Piant & Machinery.)

Total
SCHEDULE-4

UNSECURED LOANS
Sacurity Deposiis
Shoel Term Loans and Advances;

from Banks

from Others
Accried intesest

SCHEDULE-5
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Al the star! of e year
for the yeir

¢

in process, finished goods. consumables, siones and spares. finished goods in sloses,

(Amount in T)
wwan | s |
51.00,00.00 51,00,00,000
17,04,00,000 17,04,00,000
17,04,00,000 17,04,00,000

3,99,500 3.99,500
74,70,09,364 68,70.09,364
6.00,00,000 __6.00,00000

09 354 74,70,04,364
2,17.20644 217.20,644
41,67.27.37 37,59.00,245

1,24,58,56,879 1,14,50,29,753
91254734 2.2370.934

373832 -
86,05,18,081 72 B0.60,684
5,56,71,207 75,04,31,618
3,06,04,700 2,78.99,700
4,45,00,000 10,00,00,000
7.51,04,700 12,78,99,700
5.96,34,007 6.52.89.687
(42.66860) (56,55,590)
5.5367,237 5,96,34,097




' , Liberty Shoes Ltd.

S

Schedules

(Amound in T)

SCHEDULE -6
FIXED ASSETS

Land TR0 (15825 541,580 -] 13067808 ; = 13000705 |  £3,0405,875

Bullding" 21315560 6,782 | merdzmd  4pusrcos| e6SAG: | Seamsn| tEssaTn| Ti07i8R
P Macheery | T2zgemd  soesan|  mozeed | mmess| msamsn]| ammss | seam| 2eewes| emams| ensnans
Mouds 189694061 1850254 350887 | ZOTHITSIA 15204907 13065558 6738 16SOBITM| 48737 | 36790054
Ptirts 15,500 - . 15500 3438 . - 2838 11,662 1662
Fuminse & Fonure | 35747180 77864 | amoased  1aeeeen|  2s4saEn | 15835 RMETENST| 25853
hicies aaoresey 2ss7eet|  smeaveo | morsome  23s0mo|  meros2|  woosm|  Zaaenaiol  Grea0es| 46t
Total 1365325008 102038008 | 8734811 | 1459526207 532500454 68093557 | 5875690 | 584718721 B6.48H0.480| 83.78.24554
Capital work 0

progress.

) Buiding ueder

canmirucion 1 1sI6176 -| e - - - A 16T

¥} Assets unrer

Prasittion 3 z : ] : = =

GrandTolal | 13650250080 113454100| §700811 | 1470044377 S0.2500454| 62093957 | 575690 | 50.47,18.721| 675326656 832824554
Prirviess et 138506756 67623110| 20886856 | 1.365325008) 4708475T1| 692534 | ezrean | G32Sones) B3ZBIMSS| 4770

Hory building siuated al Libertypuram Is constructed on lease hold land.



Schedules

[ smam
SCHEDULE-T
INVESTMENTS
Long Term (At Cost)
Other than Trade - Unquoted
Subsidiaries
Libarty Retail Revalutions Limiled
9996150 (Previous year 9996150) Equity Shares of 10/~ each tully paid up 9,99,61,500
500000 (Previous year 500000) Fully Convertible Debenture of 5,00,00.000
F100/- each fully paid up
Liberty Fool Fashion Middie East FZE
1 {Previous year 1) Eguity Share of UAE Dhiram 10,00,000 fully paid up 1.2%.93,257
Share Application Maney pending allotment 1.72.74.600
Total - Subsidiaries 17.94,29,357
Aggregats amount of Quoled Invesiments -
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Imestments 17,0420 357
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments -
SCHEDULE-8
INVENTORIES (AS VALUED AND CERTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT)
Raw Materials 225521142
Goeds in Process 12,80.99,003
Finished Goods 42.34.59,606
Packing Materials 1,08,96.663
Stores & Spares 2.39.41.124
0l & Lubricants B.69.896
Total 81,27,87.460
SCHEDULE-9
SUNDRY DEBTORS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)
Debts outstanding for a peniod exceeding six months
Considered good 9,53.77,108
Considered doubiful 3 67 41,957
Other Debts
Consigered good 68,12.93518
813412583
Less: Provision for doubthsl debis 3.67.41.857

Total

77,66,70,626

¢

(Amount in )

9.99,61.500
5,00,00,000

1.21.93.257
1.28.64 600

17,50,19,357

17,50,19,.357

15.21.79,726
16,56,58,394
35,09.67.626
99.33,802
1,79.51.229
428610

69,71,39,387

11,60,99 410
367.41.057

96.84,15,768

721257135
367 41.957

68.45,15,178




SCHEDULE-10
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand including Imprest
Batances with Scheduled Banks:
Currenl Accounts
Fied Deposits
Total
SCHEDULE-11
LDANS & ADVANCES (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GDOD)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind of lor the value 1o be received
Secutities
Total
SCHEDLILE-12
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors
Advances from Customers
Expenses Payable
Other Liabilities

SCHEDULE-13
PROVISIONS
Provision for taxation (Net of MAT Credit Entitlement)
Provision for Excise Duty
Total
SCHEDULE-14
OTHER INCOME

Bank and Oher interest (Tax deducted af Source €1.19 Lacs
[Pravious Year ¥3.15 Lacs])

Freight
Miscelianeous income
Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Bad Debts Recovered
Exceptional ltems
Profit on Sale of Fooed Assets
Total

Schedules
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{Amount in T)
31.03.2011

28,90,076 19,61,150
67,2010 86.40,355
1,83,32.765 30737 476
2,79.43,751 4,13,38 981
20.26,44,164 14,04,65,161
15,73,19.709 15.64.32, 211
35,99,63,873 29,68,97,372
41,42 62.762 35,70.53,934
1,68,14.389 3.00,68,402
6,65,97 474 4,94.64,700
1,73.52.476 2.24.52,233
51,50,27,101 45,99,39,359
21,51,305 21,490,416
126,42 294 1,22.50,886
1,47,93,599 1,44,00,302
16,04 587 26,10,628
41,76.783 2419745
46,86,295 2308982
18,55.949 e
1,30,000 .
2.72.160 6,299
1,28,15,774 73,45,654
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SCHEDULE-15
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCKS
Opening Stock:
Finished
In Process

Closing Stock,
Finished
In Procass

Increass/( Decrease) in Stocks
SCHEDULE-16
RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED & FINISHED GOODS PURCHASED
(@) Raw Malerials:
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Raw Materials Consumad
{b) Finished Goods Purchased
Total (a+h)
SCHEDULE-1T
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Frelght Inwards
Upper Production Charges
0l & Lubricants
Eleciricity Charges
Repairs to Machinery
Land Lease Renl
Franchise Fee
Tolal
SCHEDULE-18
PAYMENTS AND BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES
Sataries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution o Provident and Ofher Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

-

{&mount in T)

st [ sieazei |
35,00,87.626 34,72.14 544
16.56,56,394 15,33.27,001
51,66,46,020 50,05,41,645
42,34,59.606 35,00.87 626
12.80,99.009 16,56.58,304
55,15,58.615 51,56,46,020
3.4012.585 1,61.04.375
152179726 14,36.72,079
1,37.31.90.538 1,03,33.42,858
1.52.53,70.264 1.17,70.14,837
225521142 15.21.79,726
1.2098.49.122 1,02,48.35,211
215081112 36,04.57,825
1,57,49,30,234 1,38,52.93,036
93,15.302 71.71,904
£,93,39,506 488,92 061
1.91,64,623 2,13.76,370
453,46.718 3.30.31,178
2,56,50,607 1,57.85,386
1.23457 1,12, 236
7.90,00.000 7,90.00,000
24,78,49,303 20,53,69,135
33,16,49.736 25.17.22,749
1,97,58.644 1,38.66,608
53,081,709 47 27 467
35.67,90,089 27,03,16,824
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(Amaunt in T)
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SCHEDULE 19

ADMINISTRATION, SELLING & MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
Packing Materials Consumed 10,82.28,030 8,54,67.506
Printing & Stationery 69,10.003 45,60,862
Claims 1.96,89 444 1.96,14.814
Tour, Travelling and Conveyance 44780289 3.34.90,939
Insurance Charges 5067236 46,01 856
Fees and Taes 2.15,17.363 1.58.52,004
Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Telex 1.07,04.084 £9,14,200
Substriptions 496,918 371,503
Advertisements 57118412 3.05.06,228
Rent 1,62,89,603 1.32,12,251
Danations 10.,71.209 10,66,338
Export CIF Expenses 1,62,04.465 1.64,55,708
Frelght Outward 2,98,48,202 1.81,99,910
Samples 45,7195 6,04,953
Audifors' Remuneration:

Statutory Audit Fee 2,25000 2,25,000

Tax Audit Fee BO.000 80,000

Certification Fee 20.000 20,000
Cost Audit Fee 75,000 75,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 40,80.936 46,20,329
Royalty 9,00,00.000 8.47,50,000
Enterfainment Expenses 39,84 520 33,84,034
Commission 3.60,20.504 3.23.76.034
Sales Promaotion Expenses 4,02,56.502 6.00,17,184
Newspapers & Periodicals ‘2.03.308 1,87 84T
Debls written oll -2.90.21,708. 2196,31,364
Provision for doubitiul debls (Note v of Schedule 21) _' '. 12,21 102
Consultancy & Prolessional Charges 2.70,38,671 2,65,27,437
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses-Building 65,32,583 42,08,074
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses-Others 8349277 B598.117
Exthange Rate Flucluations = 26,319,326
Loss an transfer of Duty Credil - 403,237
Exceptional ltems

Loss on sale of Flxed Assets 9,371,491 42 12 522

Total 58,62,06,653 51,60,95,878
SCHEDULE-20 '
INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank Interest 7.02.81, 122 7.58.83 801
Interest to Others 56.77.584 93.89.151
Bank Charges 59,30,186 46,45 615
Total 8,20,89.492 B.,39,18,767
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SCHEDULE-21
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1.
a)

d)

e)

h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis ol preparation of Financial Stalements

The accompanying Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Historical
Cast Conventlons.

Accounting Policies nol specifically referred to otherwise, are consistent with generafly accepted
Accounting Principles followed by the Company, applicable accounting standards prescribed by
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, accounting standards Issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevanl provisions of the Companies Acl. 1956
The iterns of income & expendilure are recognised on accrual basis.

Revenue Recognition

Sales revenue Is recognised on dispatch of goods, net ol sales returns, lrade discount and
VAT/Sales tax but inclusive of excise duly and do nol include the cost of materials used for
captive consumption

Export Incentives are accounted on acorual basis and include the estimated value of incentives
recaivable under the DEPB Scheme and the Duly Drawback Scheme. Any diflesance at the lime
of achual receipt is accounted for |n the year of receipt The amount of export incentives has been
ad|usted with the cost of raw materials consumed.

Gain/Loss on transfer of Duty Credit Entitlements received under the DEPB Scheme is accounted
lor in the year of transter,

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are valued al the lower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost of inveniories, other than
ior manufactured finished goods and goods in process. is determined on Weiphted Average Cost
Mathod (net of CENVAT credit availed) of stock accounting. Cost of manufactured finished goods
and goods in process include cost of raw materials consumed on weighled average basis and
appropriate portion of allocable overheads and Excise Duty wherever applicable. Scrap, if any, al
the year end does nol form part of the closing invenlony

Fixed Assets and Capital work in progress

Fixed assets are stated at original cost (net of CENVAT credit availed) but including fraight
inward, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating o acquisition and installation thereot
Capital work in progress includes cost of fixed assets under installation and other incidental
Expenses.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Fixed assets is provided on Straight Ling Method (SLM) at the rates and in the
manner prescribed in the schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956,

Valuation of Investmenis

Long term Investments are valued af cost. Short Term fnvestments are valued at lower of cost and
fair value. calculated individually for each Investment.

Excise Duly

Excise Duty, wherever applicable, is accounted for at the ime of manutacture of fnished goods.
Contingent Liabilities

All known labilities wherever material are provided for and liabilities, which are material and
whose luture outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are trealed as contingent
and disclosed by way of Notes to the Accounts.
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i) Employee Benelils

i) Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit & Loss Account
of the year in which the relaled service is rendered.

iy  Gratuily Habilily is defined benefil abligation and is provided lor on the basts ol an aclugrial
valuation on projected melhod made at the end of the financial year. The Company has
crealed a trust under the Group Graluity Scheme with the Life Insurance Corparation of
India (LIC) and amount paid/payable in respect of the present value of liabllity for past
services is charged to the Profit & Loss Account every year, The difference, il any, belween
the achuarial valuation of the gratuily of employess at the year end and the balance of funds
with LIC &5 provided lor as liability In the books.

[} Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are affributable fo the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are

capitalired as part of the cost of such assets. All other bormowing costs are charged o revenue In

the period in which they are incurmed.
k) Foreign Exchange Transactions

(I} Assels and Kabilities relating to loreign currency transactions remaining unsettied at the
year-end are converted Into Indian rupees al closing rates and any gain or loss arlsen |5
adjusted in profit and loss account,

(i) Gains/losses arising oul of Nluctuations in foreign exchange rales between fhe ransaction
daie and sefilement date are recoonised in the profil and loss account under the head
“Exchange Rate Flucluation”™.

{iii) The difference between the forward rale and the exchange rate on the date of inception of a
forward contrac! in respect of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilities |s
recognised as income or expense and is amortized over the life of the contract.

(iv) Forward exchange contracts entered o hedge the foreign currency risk are marked fo
market as at the year end and the resultant exchange gain or loss is recognised in the Prafit
& Loss Accounl.

(v) Non monetary foreign curiency iems are carried at cost and accordingly the investment in
foreign subsidiary is expressed in Indian Curency &l the exchange rale prevailing &l the
date of the ransaction.

I) Provision for Taxalion

Provision for faxation is made laking into consideration the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

and Wealth Tax Acl, 1957, Adjustment, il any, arising oul of the assessment is made in the year

the assessment is completed.

m) Provision for Deferred Taxation
Deferrad fax has been provided for all timing differences as required under the provisions of
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

n} Impairment ol Assels

The Company reviews the carrying value of assels for any possible impairment at each balance

sheet date. An impairment loss Is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset excesds its

recoverable amount. In assessing the recoverable amount, the estimated fulure cash fiows are
discounted o their present value at appropriate discoun! rates.

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

I)  Details of Managerial Remuneration:

(Amount in T}

- d provision for remuneration to:
= Execulive Direclor(s) 36,00.000 36,00,000
» Director (Law & Taxation) 9.,00,000 9,00.000




Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 for
calculation of commission paid/payable to directors:

(Amount in 2)

Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account 10,07,79.830 93214 476
Add:

Directors’ Bemuneration 45,00.000 45,00,000
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 665,331 42.06,323
Directors' Sitting Fees 20,000 45,000
Net Profit as per Section 349 of the

Companies Act, 1956 10,59,65,161 10,19,65,799
Commission paid/payable to Directors - .

During the year, no remunesation has been paid to Non-Executive Directors except for the sitting lees of
220,000/~ {Previous Year 45,000/-).

il

iii)

iv)

v
i)

wil)

In the opinion of the Board and to the best of its knowledge, the value of realization of current
assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount
at which they have been stated in the Balance Sheet.

The assessment of the Company in respect of Income Tax & Wealth Tax |s completed up to
Assessment Year 2008-2009,

The Company, in the year 2003, entered inlo an agreement with Liberty Enterprises and Liberty
Group Marketing Division for taking over their footwear business on franchise basis and wilh
Liberty Footwear Co. for use of "Liberty” trademark on exclusive basis for an initial period of
7 years. In terms of the agreements, the same have been automatically renewed for a further
period of 3 years. The footwear business as delined in the agreement Includes Flxed Assets,
Inteflectual Properties. Know-how and Distribution MNetwork etc. of the two Partnership Firms
Under the terms of the agreements. no awnership ol assels, tangible or inlangible, has been
iranslesred to the Company. During the year, in lerms of (he agreements and in conlormily wilh
the requisite approvals of the Central Govl. the Company has made the paymenis (including
provisions) amounting to 26,00,00,000/- (Previous year ¥6.00,00,000/-), *7.00,00,000/-
{Previous year ¥7,00,00,000/-) and ¥3,90,00,000/- (Previous year ¥3,37,50,000/-) to Liberty
Enferprises. Liberty Group Marketing Division and Liberty Footwear Co. respectively,

s reported earlier, the leamed arbitrator, while deciding the dispute amongst the Pariners of
Liberty Enterprises as regards 1o Ihe aloresaid franchise agreement, confirmed the Company's
stand by holding that the arbitrational verdict will not be having any impact on the Company as
regards to such amangements, being nof a pariy to the dispute. Libery Enferprises, besides its
ratilication lo the agreement has also confirmed that by raising Ihe legal issues its affecled
partners have filed their objections belore the appropriate authority and sought order tor setting
aside of such award. In view of the legal opinion available and to protect its legal fights further,
the Company has also preferred its objections apains! arbitralional award at Civil Courl, Karmal,
Interest lo others includes T56.46,544/- (Previous year 293,14, 647/-) against short term loan
@ 12% p.a from M/s Geofin Investments Private Lid,

During the year, the Company has capitalized the borrowing cost of ¥ Nil (Previous year T Nil) as
part ol the cost of the gualifying assets.

The Company has paid the excise duty amounting fo 83599748/~ (Previous year
5,44, 61,762/-) against the sales executed during the year.

Aiso, the Company has made the provision of excise duty of ¥1,26,42.294/- (Previous Year
1,22,50,886/-) against finished goods lying in slocks as on 31° March, 2011 and the difierence
of two has been recognised separately in the Profit & Loss Account.
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viii) Fixed Deposit receipts (including accrued interest) for value of ¥1,83,32,765/- (Previous year

ix)

x)

xi}

i)

T3.07.37.476/-), appearing under head ‘Cash & Bank Balances’, are under lien with Banks/
respective authorilies for issuance of bank guarantees/ letters of credits and as earnest manay.
Under the Focus Product Scheme ol Director General of Foreign Trade, Government ol India,
during the year, the Company has received an incentive of ¥1,33.21,811/- (Previous year
251,09 B00/-) for forgign exchange realized against exports made during the financial years
2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 & 2010-11 and the profits of the Company for the year
are higher to that extant.

The Company's registration process with the concemed revenue authorifies in respect of 4.34
acres of tand purchased al Liberlypuram has nol been completed il date lor the wani of certaln
pracedural lormalities. The possession of this piece of land has been with the Company and the
sale agreement has already been execuled,

The Campany, under its retail sales promotion policy during the year 2007 to 2010, had bome the
cost of ils subsidiary's retall stores on account of eplal and maintenance charges against retailers’
marging viz-a viz its sales. The same were considered under the account head Sales Promotion
Expenses in those years. But during the year under consideration, with ihe implementation of
revised arrangements, this promolional policy has been discontinued.

The Company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by the suppliers
with the notified authority under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006)
claiming their status as on 31" March, 2011 as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise.
Consaquently, the amount paid/payable to these parties during the year is nil,

xiii) Contingent Liabilities

[} Bank Guarantees issued on behall of tha Company submitted with varlous
Institutional customers in terms fo thelr orders.

Iy Excise Duly' for the financial year 1994-95 & 1995-96. CESTAT has decided
this parficular matter in favour of the Company but the department has preferred

their appeal with the Hon'ble Supreme Couwrt. In 2010-11 the said matter has been

decided in favour of the Comgany.

i) Onaccount of disallowance of legitimate credit of CENVAT against Excise Duty/
Education Cess® for the period from November 2004 to Jume 2005, May 2006 to
June 2006, Financial year 2002-03 and 2004-05. CESTAT while admilting

Company's appeal directed to deposit 39 Lacs under protes! and has granted stay.

IV) Service Ta for Financial year 2002-03 on services received from oulside India
prior 1o the applicabllity of the related law. In 2010-11 the matter has been
tecided in favour of the Company.

V) Invoice Funding facility

Vi) Corporate Guarantees given to banks for securing banking facilities of
retall subsidiary and joint venture company’

Vil} Income Tax on account of routing assessment lor the assessment year the
assessment years 1998-99 & 2003-04

VIll) Income Tax for the assessment year 2002-03, 2003-04 and 2004-05 on account
ol reduction in amount of deduction w's BOHHC in terms of Taation Law
Amendment Bill, 2005

IX) Value Added Tax' for the financial year 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09 &
2009-10 an accoun! of classiflcation of goods at different rale of lax

X} Service Tax on GTA Services lor the periad from January 2005 to March 2007

Xl) Due to some administrative compliance relating to EPCG licences for which the
Company has tulfilled is expart obligation.

7.50,53,061

3,55,81,366

16,00.00.000

35.03,426

1,46.47 568

5.26.596
4,4200,783

{(Amount in ¥)

2.31,68,160

2,78,31,534
3,55,81,366

1,24 536
443,63 581
11,00,00,000
3502426

17 86,599
2,5%,02.499

4.42,00,783




'On the basis of indemnitying clause under the agreement with the two Partnership Firms whose
business has been available fo the Company on franchise basis, the Company has given its
undertaking to the Excise Department to pay the (iabilities, if any arises. relating to the peniod prior
lo the date of the agreement.

“Including amount deposited under protest 239,00,000/- (Previous year 239,00,000/-).
'Includes the corporate guarantee for ¥6,00,00,000/- (Previous year ¥6,00,00,000/-) given on
behall of erstwhile Joint Venture Company and the Company is in process of getting the same
released.

"Including amount deposited under protest ¥1,07,25,554/- (Previous year €60,90,487/-).

xiv) Capital commitments nol provided for are astimaled al T150 Lacs (Previous year T Nil).

xv) Provision for doubtful debls: During the vear, the Company has considered debis for ¥ Nil
(Previous year 23,1558 132/-) as doublful debts and has also withdrawn 2 Nil (Previous year
¥3.03.37,030/-) out of the provisions made in the earlier years for the same and written off the
bad debls (net) for ¥ NIl (Previous year ¥2,96,31.364/~). Diflerentlal ol the provision made and
amount withdrawn during the year, detailed as under, has been charged 1o Pralit & Loss Account
for the year and the batance has been carried in the balance shegt:

Proviskon for the year - 315,558,132
Less: Amount withdrawn from the provision made for - 3,03,37.030
doubtful debls in the earlier years
Net deblted o Profit & Loss Account - 12,21,102
e Amount in
Opening Balance 3,67 41,4957 3.55,20.855
Add: Provision for the year = 3,15,58.132
Tatal 3,67 41,957 6,70,78,987
Less: Amount withdeawn during the year - 3,03,37,030
Closing balance 367.41957 3,67.41,957

i) During the year, considering the non-recoverability of some of the debts, the Company has
written off the debts amounting to 2.90,21, 708/ (Prévious year T2 96.31,364/-).

xvil) The Board of Directors of the Company considers and maintains “Footwear™ as the only business
segment of the Company.

xviii) Basic and Diluted Eaming per share: The Basic and diluted eaming per share ol the Company is

e Amount in 2
Basic & Diluted Profit after Taxation (A) 10,28.95,385 9.67.20,950
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (B) 1,70.40.000 1,70.40.000
Nominal value per Equity Share 10.00 1000
Basic & Diluted Eamings per share (A/B) 6.04 5.68

xix) Related Parly Transactions
The Company has made the following transactions with related parlies as defined under the
provisions of Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountanis of India.
A} Teansaclions between the Company and relaled parties and the slalus ol oulstanding
balances as al 31" March, 2011:
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{Amaunt in ¥)

Transactions
Receiving of Services 38,55,299 1,10,89.675 26,413 : 1,49.71,587
(14,62,368) (96,40,199) (84.012) () (1,11,86.579)
Sale of Goods 35,04 02 857 11,23,159 - . 35,14,75,254
(24,5886 B35) (23,83.566) (=) (-) (24,82,70,401)
Sharing of Expenses - - - - -
(38,42.151) {-) {-) [} (38.42.151)
License Agreements - 18.64,07,000 - - 18,64.07.000
(-} (18,06,16.250) (-) () (18,06, 16,250)
Payment of Salary, Wages : 4.81,65,198 45,00,000 27,00,000 5,53,66,198
and other benefits to {-) {3,66.04.376) (45.00.000) (28.90.000) (4,39.94,.376)
employees
Equity Contribution 44,10,000 - ; . 44,10,000
(including share (1,96.,050) i) (=) (-) (1,96.050)
application money)
Fully Convertible - - - - -
Debentures {6,00,00,000) (-) () () (5,00,00,000)
Loans laken - 20.14,00,000 - - 20,14.00.000
() (24,43,00.000) {-) (-) (24,43,00,000)
Fepaymen! of Loans - £5.,69,00,000 - - £5,68,00,000
() (31,79.46,715) (=) (=) (31,79,46,715)
Interest Paid - 56.46,544 - - 56,46, 544
) (93,14,647) {-) (-) (93,14,647)
Corporate Guarantees 5.00,00,000 - - - 5.00.00,000
{5,00,00,000) (-) (-) (-) (5,00,00,000)
[Outstanding batances ]
Sundry Debtors 16.62,93,006 23,599,729 - = 16.86.52,735
(7.80.44,435) {23,83.566) (- (-) (8.04,28,061)
Sundry Creditors - 1,35,67,935 - - 1,35.67.935
{-) (4.26.91 606) {<) 1-) (4,26,91,606)
Unsecured Loans - 4.45,00,000 . - 4,45,00,000
() (10,00,00.000) () {-) (10.00.00,000)
Fully Convertible 5.00,00,000 - - - 5,00.00,000
Debentures (5,00,00,000) (-} () () (5,00.00,000)
Corporate Guarantess 10,00,00,000 - - - 10.00.00,000
(5.00,00,000) ) (-} () (5,00.00,000)

Fmimyu figures are in brackets




B)

)

Detall of Related Parties and description of relationship
Subsidiary Companies:

)
Ii)

fii}

Iv)

Liberty Retail Revolutions Limited, Liberty Foot Fashion Middie East FZE
Entities where Key Management Personnel/Relative ol Key Management Personnel has

significant influence

Geofin Investments Private Ltd., Liberty Group Marketing Division, Liberty Enterprises, Liberty
Footwear Co., Sanjeev Bansal Charitable Trust, Liberty Innovative Outfits Ltd.

Key Management Parsonnal:
1) Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 2) Sh, Adarsh Gupls

4) Sh, Satish Kumar Goel 5) Sh. Sunil Bansal
Relatives of Key Managemen! Personnal:

S/5h, Anupam Bansal, Raman Bansal, Vivek Bansal {Brothers of Direclors), Sh. Ayush Bansal,
Sh. Mannan Bansal (Sons of Directors)
Note: Receiving the services from Key Management Personnel and thelr felatives includes

rent and land lease charges
Disclosure of significant fransactions with related parties:

Liberty Retail

3) Sh, Shammi Bansal

1462368

Receiving of Senvices Subsidiary Shoe Upper
Revolutions Lid, Production Charges
Enfities whem Key Geofin Invastments Rent for Office 90,45, 7531724
M mt WI { Private Limited Premises
elative of
Mbsgeiest Persomal Liberty Footwear Co. Rent mi:rﬂ p“T?w 564000 564000
has significant influence
Sanjeey Bansal Rent for Oifice 450,000 4,50,000
Chariable Trust Premises
Medical Facilities for 10.30 875 10.94 475
employees
Sale of Goods Subsidiary Libety Retall Sale of goods 35,04 02 857 | 24,58.86 835
Revolutions Lid. manutactused and deal
in by the Company
Enfities where Key Liberty Innovative Sale of goods 11,23,150| 23,83,566
Managemen! Fersonnel / ts Limited manudaciured and deal
Relative of Key in by the Company
Management Personnel
has significant inlluence
Sharing ol Expenses Subsidiary Liberty Retall Sala Promation = 3842151
Revolutions Ltd. Expenses
Ligense Agreements Eniifies where Key Liberty Enterprises Franchise Fes 6.61.80.000 | 6,61,80,000
Managemen! Personnel / {including Service Tax)
Helative of Key -
has significant influence | Markeling Division (including Service Tax)
Liberty Footwear Co. Licance Fee 4,30,17.000| 3.72.26.250
(including Service Tax)
Payment of Salary, Entities where Key Liberty Group Salary, Wages and 4,81,65,198| 3,66,04376
Wages and other benefits | Management Personnel / Marketing Division other Banelils
to Employses elative of Key
Managemeant Personnal
has significant influsnce




Liberty

Shoes Ltd.

Equity Contribution Subsidiary Liberty Fool Fashion Share Application 4410000 196060
Middle East FZE Maney
Fully Comwvertible Subsidiary Liberty Retail Fully Convertible ~| 5.00,00.000
Deabentures Revolutions Lid, Debeniures

Loans Taken Key Management Geolin investiments Unsecured Loans 20.14.00,000 | 24.43.00.000
mﬂs;m mm of Private Limited

Lof Loans agem 25,69,00.0004 31.79.46.715

Hepytney Personnel has

Interast Paid/Payahle significant influence 56,46 544 93,14.647

Corporate Subsidiary Liberty Retall Given to Banis 5,00,00.000] 50000000
Guarantees Revolutions Lid

Sundry Debtors Subsidiary Liberty Retail Against Sale of Goods | 16,62,93.006| 7.80,44.495
Revolutions Lid. Manutactured and Deal
in by the Company
Key Management Liberty Innovative Against Sale of Gonds 2359.729| 2383566
Personnel /Refative of Dulfits Limited Manutactured and Deal
Key Management in by the Company
Personnel has significant
influence
Sundry Deblors Key Management Liberty Enterprises Franchise Fee 1272380 12091123
FHK?;’W M:i of {including Senvice Tax)
Managem :
; Liberty Group Franchise Fee & 102,08.231| 2.14,17.423
Fersonneies SONAGEML | Marketing Division Satary, Wages and
other bebefits
{including Service Tax)
Liberty Footwear co.  LicengeFee 2087.324) 9183060
(including Service Tax)
Unsecured Loans Geolin lnvestments Unsecured Loans 4.45,00.000 | 10.00,00.000
Private Limifed
Corporate Subsidiary Liberty Retail Given fo Banks 10,00,00.000 | 5.00,00.000
Guaranfees Revolutions Lid.
xix) Detail of Employee Benefils - Gratuity
The Company has a defined gratuity plan (Defined Benefit). Every employee, an completion of
cantinuous service of five years or more with the Company, is entitled to get the gratusty of 15 days
salary on the basis ol last drawn salary lor each completed year ol service. The scheme is funded with
Life Insurance Carparation of India (LIC) in the form of qualifying insurance palicy.
The following table summarizes the companents of net benefit expense recognised in the Profit & Loss
Account and the lunded status and amounts recognised In the Balance Sheet lor the respective plans:
Profit and Loss Account
a)  Net Employee Benefit Expense (recognised in Employee Cost):

55.20001

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost on benefit abligation 11,94 401
Expected return on Plan Assets 11.45,035
Actuarial Loss/|Gain) 14,33 852
Net Benefit Expenses T0.03,.219

16,20.068
10,35,903
(8,59.535)
6,73,350
24,69.786

{Amount in T}




Balance Shest

b) Detalls of Provision for Graluity

Present Value of Defined Benedit Obligation
Fair value of Plan Assels

Surplus/(Deficit)

Pl Assel/LEdily)

2.10.06,932
1,63,00,334
{47 DB.538)
{47 06 598)

[ .

(Amosl in T)

1,43:30,016
1.29,40.474
(19,80, 542)
{19,80,542}

Changes in Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation are as follows:

Dedined Benedit Obligation af the beginning of the year
Gument Service Cost

Indrest Casl

Achuarial {GalnLoss on cblkgations

Benefits pakd

Defirsad trenafit oligation at the end of the perind

1.49.30,016
520,001
11.94,401
14.33,.852
20.71.338
2,10.06,932

poautiny

1,36.51,976
16.20,068
10.35.903
6,732,350
(#0.51,281)
1.43.30,016

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assels are as fallows:

Ooening Faér Vakue af Plan Azsets
Expected Return
Comteitnstiens by amplepes
Benafits pasd

Actuartal Gains/{losses)

Gloging Fair Value of Plhin Assels

1,20.49,474
11,45.035
42,77,163
20,711,533

1,63.00,334

(At in %)

1.03.05,783
8,559,535
38.36,037

(20.51.281)

12940474

The principle assumpticns used n delermining Gratulty obligations are as lollows:

Descount ran

Expected rate of redurn on Plan Assels
Salary escalation rate

Alleiin rale

RO
B.00%

E-m
1% I 3% dapending upon age |

i
B.00%
6.00%

1% b 3% Segending upon age

Amouent far the current and previous periods are as lollows:

Bedireed Banedll Obligation
Plan Assats
SurplusDefici)
Expenence adjustments on pian fabalitas .
Expariance afjusirrents an pian assets

{2,10,06.432)
1,63,00,334
{47,06.598)

14,33 B57

__tAmoumi i 8

(¥ 49.30,016)
1,24.49,474
(19.80,542)

6.73,350




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

wii)  For the current year, Deferred Tax asset of ¥1.25,53.262/- (Previous year T1.66,38,968/-) has
been calculated after considering the timing differences on account of depreciation

xeii)  There are no dues payable 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 315t March, 2011

xilll) Previous year figures have been regrouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary, The currenl year
and previous year figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees,

xav)  Additional information pursuant fo the provisions of paragraph 3. 48, 4C and 40 of Pari-ll of the
Schedube VI of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable:

A) Information in respect of capacity and class of goods manufactured, cerlified by the
management but not verified by the auditors being a technical matter.

Licensed Capacity
Leather Garments 1.00.000 Nos.
Leather Shoes 55,00,000 Pairs
Leather Shoe Uppers 30,00,000 Pairs
Non Lesther Shoes 1.15.00,000 Pairs
Soles & Heels of Rubber or Plastics 1.00,00,000 Pairs
Hawai Chappals 4,00,00,000 Pairs
EVA Co-polymer Compound 2,000 Tonnes
Installed Capacity as on 31st March, 2011

Srms {Leather & Non Leather) Pairs 74,76,000 | 31,24,000 74,76.000 31,24,000

EVA Co-palymer Compaund Tonnes 600 - 600 -
Soles Pairs - 960,000 = 960,000

(B) Information in respect of Production, Sales and Stocks of Goods
1) In respect of Manufactured Goods for the period ended on 315t March, 2011

{in value D00’ omifted)

Non Leather Shoes Pairs | 48,90,132 46,14073| 9,36,149] 591.803| 1.14270| BE67B62| 240,348

(41,91 925) {-)|(39,75,687)| (8.01.538)| (3,75.565)] (64.704)| (5.91.803)] (1.14.270)
Leather Shoes Pairs | 28,44,208 -| 3043090/ 16,76,060] 489.178] 2.16.289| 290,296/ 1,67.702
(24,58,254) {-)] (24,55,285))(13,13.418)| (4.86.209)] (2.38.808) | (4,89,178)| (2.16,289)

Leather Shoe Uppers Pairs 11,60.412| 12,57 855 14,112 78721 224726 59,901 1.13.110 29,556
(10.99.977)| (1083198)| (8803 (3611)] (216750) (60.177)| (2.24.726) (59.901)

Non Leather Shoe Uppers | Pairs | 37,06,093] 37,54,549 3,881 98] 3.07.1% 24.858| 2548541 1989
(27.85.411)| (27 58,530) (+) (-)] (2.80.310)] (21,181 (3.07,191)] (24.858)

EVA Compound Kgs. 2,11,786| 2,06,282 - - 9368 a7 14 874 1,983
(2,36.445)| (2.32.219) (-] ()| (5142 (537}  (9.368) {971)

PU/PVC/EVA Soles Pairs | 12,36,010] 11,85748 8,075 876] 233310] 14868 275497 17,253

(7.80.863) (T10,763)| (B4.357) (6,559 (247467)| (18438)| (233.310)| (14.868)




¢

ii) Inrespect of Traded Goods:

{in value 000's omlited)

Leather/Non Leather Shoes
Accessories, Raw Materials & other traded Goods |

C) Intormation in respect of Raw Malerials consumed (in value 000's omitted)

PVC Compound Kgs. 14,37,283 1,01.610 1328222 83,314
Laminated Leather Fabric irs. 14.22 029 147,429 892,507 95,816
PU Chemicals Kgs. 10.22,602 1,48.805 7,599,368 94,461
Leather SOM 4,84,69,691 1,98.294 4,60,50.898 199,831
PU. Soles Pairs 10,66,558 93,849 11.87.213 98,057
EVA Resin Kgs. 216,435 29239 2,16,951 27,966
Shoe Uppers/Components Pairs 28,1515 3,689,556 23,44,695 278,079
Others 2,39.607 183,626
Total 13,48,389 10.61,149
Lass: Amount of Export Incentives 48.540 36.314
Net Consumption 12,939,849 10,24,835
D) Information in respect of consumption of Imported and Indegenous Materials and percentage thereol (Amaunt in ©)

Raw Materals

Imported 10,20,03.814 785 5,63,66,677 550
_!I[ggam 1,19,78,45.308 9215 96,84,68,534 94 50
otal 1,098 49122 100.00 1,02.48,35211 100.00
Consumable Stores & Spares _

Imported 4320119 16.90 22,80,907 14.45
Indigenous 212,309,488 B3.10 1,35,04,479 B5.55
Tolal 255,659,607 100.00 1,57.85.386 100.00

E) Other Particulars (Amount in ri

) CiF vaiue of Imports:
Raw Materizls & Others 10.79,10,510
Capital Goods 34154149
Slores & Spares 49,01 628
b} Expenditure in Forelgn Currency
Travelling Expenses 40.50,533
Commission 33.58,315
Business Promotiaon 21.89.8N
Rent 14.81,405
Technical Consultancy 546,098
¢} FOB Value of Exports of
Finished Goods 47 98.81,503

8.08,78,186
57,40,253
9,83,088

33,21,465
48,54,168
20,07.316
14,026,584
16,56,020

36,78,98 429




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

xxv) Balance Sheet Abstract and Company's General Business Profile
For the Year nded 3151 March, 2011
CIN: L19201HR198GPLC033185

I Registration Details

Registration Mo. State Code
Batance Sheet Dato 1K1K E [ K6

Il Capital Raised during the year (Amount in ¢ Thousands)
Public ssue [NTTTE] Right Issue [NTTTL]
Baonus lssue (WITTL] Private Placement [NTITE]

I Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in ¢ Thousands)
Total Liabities Total Assets HEIH B
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital BN Fleserves and Surphes Iz TGI8
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
Defermad Tax Liabity
Application of Fund
 Net Foxed Assets Investment EHEOHEE
Net Current Assets O HE DR Miscallaneous Expenditure.  [RTIL]
Accumuiated Losses [HITL]

. Performance ol Company (Amouwn (n ¥ Thousanos)
Turnover B HE D Total Expenditure FHEG N
Other incoma (T2TalaTEl
Profit before Tax BN TR Profit After Tax CoI2I6I80E]
Eaming per share (€} (6 Tal4]
Dividend Rate (%)

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products of the Company (s per manetary terms)

Itesm Code No. (TG Cade) Product description
REFDNEAR
[al4[0la[210] 0] 0] MENENEAENEE
Signed i érms of gur Audil Repor of even daie
Far Pardeop Tayal & Co., for and on behalt of the Board
Firm Regn Mo, DO2733N
Chartered AccounBants
Pardeep Adesh Kumar Gu Shammi Bansal Raghubar Munish Kakra
Fartres oy Gﬁd&uﬂﬂﬂﬁ-’g Expculive Direcinr mmm Wice Pragident & Company Secratany
Memnbership No. B1643 DiN-pota31ae DIN-001 38782 [is-0D4B180E
Place Libettyputam, Karmal

Dafed Friday, 12 August. 2011




¢

Statement Pursuant to Section 212(1)(e)

of the Companies Act, 1956 (Amountin )

151 April. 2010 1o Tt Agril, 2010 o
315t March. 2011 315t March, 201

2 Pesiod of Subsidiary Company

3 | Bxant of intesest of the Company in the Subsidiary

Company at the end of financial year of Subsidiary

Company Equity Shares Capital

a) No. ot Shares held by Libesty Shoes Lid. 909,96, 150 Equity Shares of 1 (One) Equity Share of AED
and face value hereol 10/~ each, Tully paid up 10,00.000/- each, fully paid up

by Extent of Halding 93.86%** 100.00%

4 | Net Aooregate amount of the profit{loss) of the Sutisidlary
Company for the period, 5o far as it concerns the
members of Liberty Shoes Lid

al  not deall with in the accounts of Liberty Shoes Lid. {1.85.04.519) {5,06.607)
for the year ended on 3151 March, 2011

by dealt wath in the accounts of Liberty Shoes Ltd NIL L
Tor the year ended on 3151 Masch, 2011

5 | Net Aggregate amount of the pofit/{loss) of the Subsidiary
Company for the previoos financlal year, 5o far as il
concerns the members ol Liberty Shoes Lid.

&) not deall with in the accounts of Liberty Shoes Lid. (3.35,23 259) {62, 163)
lor Wi year endad on 3151 March, 2010

b) dealt with in the accounts of Liberty Stoes Lid MIL NIL
tor the year ended on 315t March, 2010

6 | Changes, If any. inthe Holding Company’s interast in the M.A MA
Subsidiary between the end of the financial year of the
Sutrs|diary and that of the Molding Company

T | Materials Changes, if any, betwen the end of financial NA NA
year of the Subsidiary and thal of the Holding Company.

* The Subsidary Company has nol commencad its operations.
**Fully Comvertible Debentures and Sham Application Money pending for conversion‘allotment in to Equity Shames of the Company ham nol been considersd while
calcailating the estent of holding.

Signed in terms of our Audit Repon of even date

For Padaap Tayal & Co., for and on bihal! of the Board

Firm Regn, No. 002733

Chartered Accounkants

Pardeep Tayal Adesh Kumar Gu Shammi Bansal Raghubar Dayal Munish Kakra

Parines M&Mfeﬂﬁ? Expcplive Dimecine Direchor Wien Pragident & Company Secrafany
Membership No. 081643 DiN-pOT a5 DiN-001 38792 [iN-DD4B1A0S

Place Libertypuram. Kamal

Dategt Friday, 12" Auqust 2011
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Statement Pursuant to Section 212(8)
of the Companies Act, 1956

Ag per the AS 21 issued by Ihe Institute of Chartered Accourtants of India, the financhal statements of the Company
reflecting the consolidation of accounts of s Subsidiary Companies fo the edent of equity holding of the Company in
these companies are included in this Annual Report.

In terms of general approval granted by e Ministy of Corporate Affalrs under Section 212(8) of the Companias
Act, 1956, vide its General Circular No. 2/2011, dated February 8, 2011, the Boand of Directors has accorded is
consent at thelr Meeting held on May 10, 2011 for not attaching the Annual Accounts, Reports of Direciors iand Auditors
of the Subsidiary Companies [.e. Liberty Retil Revolutions Limited and Liberty Foat Fashion Middie East FZE with the
Audited Batance Sheet of the Company. The Annual Accounts of the above said Subsidiary Companies and relaled
detailed information shall be made available to the shareholdess of ihe Company and of Subsidiary Companies al
any working day from 1000 AM. till 5.00 PM. The Annusi Accounts of the above said Subsidiary Companies are
open lor inspection by any Shareholder 4 the Reglstered Office of the Company and of the subsidiary companies.
Apart from above, the additionsl financial information in respect of Subsidiary Companies as directad under the above

said chrcular Is given hereundar
- (Amount in T Lacs)

Capital 10,65,00.000 1,20.90.000

Share Application Mongy 5,50,00.000 1,79.50 942
Reserves 9.10,00,0600 -
Tofal Assets 45,72 55 86O 3.00.40 042
Total Liabilltes 45,72.55,869 3.00,40,942
Details of investments

{other than investment in Subsidiaries) 44 834 -
Tumaver 47.99.73,069 -
Profil/(Loss) betore Taalion {1,89,20,857) {5,06,607)
Provision for Taxation = :
Profil/(Loss) after Taxalion (1,89.20.857) {5,06,607)
Proposed Dividend including Dividend

declared during fhe year = 2

Tha loelgn Exchange male tsed (or conversion amotnl n AED do INR is 21209
* The Subsidiary Company has not commenced its operaiions
The: amgunt given in the table 5 from the Anneal Accounds made (ol the fingncial year ended 317 March, 2017 lor Subsidiary
Carmpansis

Undertaking
We underake thal (he Annual Accounts of Ihe Subsidiary Companies and the relaled detalied infarmation will be made
auvallable to the shareholdess who seek such information af any paint of lime. The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary
Companies will also be kept avdilable for inspection by the shareholder in the Regisiered / Head Dfice of Liberty Shoes
Ltd. and that of Subsidiary Companies concernad.

Signed in 1erms of our Audit Repon of een date

Far Pardaoap Tayal & Co., for and on bihal! of the Board

Firm Regn, No. 0027 33N

Chartered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal Adesh Kumar Gupta Shammi Bansal Raghubar Dayal Munish Kakra

Fartnes Citiief Execalive Dificnr Exvcplive Dimcipr Diractor Wicn Prasident & Covmpany Secrefany
Membership No. 051643 DiN-pO 3152 Dik-001 38792 DIN-DhaB1A0S

Place Libertypuram. Kamal

Dateg Friday, 12° August 2011




Auditors” Report

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF LIBERTY SHOES LTD.

1)

2

3

4)

9

We have audited the attached consolidated Balance Sheel of Liberty Shoes Limited as at 31" March,
2011 and also the consolidaled Profit and Loss account and the consolidated Cash Flow statement
lor the year ended on that day annexed Iheselo, These linancial statements are the responsibility
of the managemen! of Liberly Shoes Limited, Our responsibilily Is to express an opinion on thess
consolidated financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in Indla. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
linancial slatements are free of malerial misstatement. An audil includes eamining, on a tesl basis,
gvidence supporing the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents. An audil also includes
assessing fthe accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial stalement presenfation We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion

The financial statements of Liberty Foot Fashion Middle East FZE for the year ended 31st March, 2011,
being a Company registered in the United Arab Emirates, are audited by M/s Sangani & Co., Charlered
Accountants and we have been fumished with their audit report dated 15th June, 2011. We are
presented with the accounts in Indian Rupees prepared on the basis of the aforesaid accounts lo
comply with requirements of Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 and lo prepare the Consolidated
Firancial Statemenis in accordance with requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, "Consolidated
Financial Staternents”.

We report thal the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, “Consolidated Financial
Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla and on (he basis of ihe separate
audited financial statlements of Liberty Shoes Lid, its Subsidiaries viz., Liberty Retall Revolutions
Limited and Liberty Foot Fashion Middle East FZE.

On the basis of the information and explanafions given to us and based on the consolidation of the
separate audit reparts on Individual audited linancial statements of Liberty Shoes Limited. Liberty Retail
Revolutions Limited and Liberty Fool Fashion Middie East FZE read logether with the Noles appearing
In Schedule 21, we are of the opinfon that:

{a) the Consolidated Balance sheel gives a true and fair view of the Consolidated state of affairs of
Liberty Shoes Limited and ils subsidiaries as at 31" March, 2011,

(b) the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account gives a true and Tair view ol the consolidaled resulls ol
operations of Liberty Shoes Limited and its subsidiaries for the year then ended; and

(c) the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements gives 2 (rue and fair view of the cash flows of operations
of Liberiy Shoes Limited and its subsidiaries for the year then ended.

For Pardeep Tayal & Co..
Fitm Registration No. 002733N
Chartered Accountants
Pardeep Tayal
Place: Libertypuram, Karnal Partner
Dated: Friday, 12° August, 2011 Membership Number 081643

{Consolidated)



SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capilal

Reserves & Surplus
Minority Interest
Loan Funds

Secured Loans

Unsecured Loans
Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Liability
TOTAL
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Bross Block
Less: Depreciation
Met Block

Invesimenls

Curreni Assets, Loans
& Advances

Inventories

Sundry Deblors

Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

Less: Currant Liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assats

TOTAL

Shara Application Money

Add: Capital Woek in Progress

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Amaunt in
31.03.2011

w0

1i

12
13

1,09,93,39.734

11.84,04,700

1,01,68,18,522

208,151,889

1,47.93.599

as at 31st March, 2011

17,04,00,000
5.50.00,000

1.06,70,27.076

1,66.44,08,313
64,75.89.797

1,51,93.609

1,01,20,31,465
62.00,85,186
3,22.98.042
42.70,97,19

54,15,16,272

1.32.47.39,734
17.20.23%

1,18,54.31,776

5.53.67,237

TN

1,03.20.12,131
44,834

1.53,52.02,018
2,56.72,58,983

17,04.00,000

1.03,80.24.050

BO,74 28 695

17,89.01,700

1,50,87.75,544

56,82.55,623

94,05,19.921

B84,12.53.269
62,14,76,635

44398818
35,03.78.560

1,85,75.07.287

52,63.48, 543

1.44.00,302

2,25,73,19,169

(Consalidatnd)

1.20.84.24.050
2930627
98,63.30,395

596.34.097

2,25,73,19,169

94,05.19.921
41 811

1.31,67.57 437

Schedules mlered o above and notes on the accounts in Schedube 21 form an integral past of ihe Balance Sheet
Signed in lerms of our Audit Repon of ewen date

For Paftheap Tayal & Co.,
Firm Regn. No. 0027338
Chartered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Farines
Membershig No. 081643

Place: Libertypuram, Kamal
Datedt Friday, 12° August 2011

Adesh Kumar Gupta
Lhied Execolive Dfficer
DIN-pata3ie

for and on bishalt of tha Board
Shammi Banzal Raghubar Dayal
Emcubive (Fracinr Direchor
[ik-001 38792 DiN-DhaB1A03

Munish Kakra

Wiew Prasident & Company Secrefany



{Consolidated)

Consolidated Profit & Loss Account

for the year ended 31st March, 2011

(Amount in T}
PARTIC 31.03.2011
INCOME
Sales 3182523318 2,74 05,28 395
Less: Excise Duty 8.35.99.748 5,44 61,762
309.80,23.5M 268 B0 66,633
Othes Income 1L 1,76,96.713 - 90,41, 147
Increase/(Decrease) in Slotks 15 90042718 3.20.69.63,002 5.87.56,154 275,38 65,934
EXPENDITURE
Raw Materals Consamad 16 1,568.19.00, 793 142531370
and Finished Goods Pusthased
Manutactuning Expenses 17 24.78,49.303 20,5365,135
Paymants and Benefils to Employees 18 #1.69.55853 .05.52.295
Admanisttation, Selling and 18 71,68 44,775 58.47 26,795
Misceilaneous Expenses Intenest &
Financial Charges 20 8.57 45648 10,24 B4 675
Excise Duty 3,91.408 20102, 799
Depreciation §50.07610 3,14,55.05,300 8,05.47,146 271,08.76.546
Priafit bedos Lix 61367612 4,78 80,358
Prewision for Taafion
Curent Tax 20291674 1,63,14800
MAT Credit Entiliament (1,81,40.369) {1,41,65,384)
Deferred Tax (42.56.860) {56.55.590)
Profie affer tax 6.34 B3 167 4,63.95,562
Adtf(Less): Taation adiustments of prevides
years (net) (20,8163 (4739477
Earliar yoar adjustment (7.80.792) 14,65,483)
Net Profit for e yewr 6.06.20,743 411,90 602
M v 12.10,381 7
marity Intesest 1 2192,
6183114 4,33 83,378
Add: Opaning balance _ 182388 280 19.90.04 902
Mel Profil available for approgriations 244219414 24,23 88,280
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer 10 General Reserve 6.00.00,000 6,00.00,000
Bakance caried over io Baknce Sheet 184219414 18,23.88.280
Eaming Per Share of 210/~ each
Basic & Diluted 173 272
Baac & Dilutesd (Bsfore Exceptional llems) 342 i
Basic & Djluded (Cons|dering Tacation for 3.56 242
Previous Years)
Schedules refermed to above and notes on the accounts i Schedule 21 form an indegral part of the Profii and Loss Account
Sigried in terms of our Audit Beport of even date
For Pardeap Tayal & Co., for and on behalt of the Board
Firm Regn. Mo, 002733N
Chantered Accountanis
S e o .
Membership Mo. (H1643 DIN-D0t 43182 Dire-001 38FE2 DiN-0048 1803

Place: Libertypuram. Kamal
Dialini’ Friclay, 12" Augusd. 2011

®



Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2011

Liberty Shoes Ltd.
(Consalidatnd)

_ {hlrlnl inT)

PARTICULARS 31.03.20011
A CASHFLOW FROM UPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mt Prodil ko Th, Wnleest and exdra oadinary tems 14.76,42.600 380 54 607
Adjustraents for
Linmuilisac! Foresgn Exchings Difeence Al 0a7 26,3026
Deprecation BSEOTED B05.47.146
LossS{Gasn) on sale of Flasd Assets (nef) 15,59 408 54,20,154
Bark & Dnpet Intoresd LR (26,67 364)
Provigion o doubtiul debis 4375 604 1621570
Operiting Pratit belom working capital caanpe 2381 00 7 22 56,15,538
A\ siments for
Tt & Omer Recatvabley {282.155) 167,786,946
vanlonas {17,07,78.196) {6.70,67.754)
Loans & Advances (5.51,18.053) (22 BT 2T5)
Tiacn & Oifer Payabies 11.54,00,801 2433970
Czsh generied iom Opemiions 1247 12.534 176453474
D! Tipoes Pl (2.36.02.215) {184 38,351)
Cash Flow bedore evir ordary fhems 101030315 158055123
Extra Ondinaty Bams {700 7o) 14,65.483)
Wet Cash Flow Irom Operating Activities 10.02.49.527 15.75,09.640
B CASHFLOW FROM BVESTING ACTIVITES i
Purehass of Fosd Ausats {18,12.60 396 (10,87 56 096)
Sale nl Food Assets 73.21.068 fif 68,399
Barth and Other Inlesest 1Tz 26,67 164
Iecryast in Inveabimenis 30249 (3154}
(nrease)/Derease i bvesiments £5.15.450) 75200563
et Cash used In Investing Activilies (17,76,85,430) (2.41,12.924)
C  CASH FLOW FROM RNANCING ACTIVITIES
Frocesds om msue of Shive Capdal/Shary Appiication Monay 550, 60.000 -
Pmiceeds tam long tEm bormwings 123256517 5793795
Rapayrsssit ol hang tem Sosmwngs {204, 05.766) {5,50,17.230
Isinrost pald (3, 10.26.967) {8:12.13.300)
Wel Cash used in Financing Activities §,57,44.214 (14,04,38,746)
O et Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 11,1691 689) (69.61,030)
E Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 443,98 810 53099174
F  Unreatised Forslgn Exchange Ditterence - 14,08 087) (26,3932}
'G__Cash and Cash Equivalonts (Ciosing Balance) (D+E+F) 32296042 443,98.618
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash m band i pding) iimpres| 50,12 302 36 6A 896
Balance with Schodided Banks
Cument Aceooms 75,098,554 95,94 957
Fiand Dipesils 1.96.27 188 111,346,065
Total 3.22.98,042 44398818

Molen! 1) Puechase of Fixed Asseds Includes movements of saplil wark in progress bebween tha beginning & af Se end of the yeor 2) The Cash Flow Sufement hes besn propared under the

indirect meghod a5 524 ouf i A5 -3 an Gash Fiow Staement issued by fhe instiube of Chariesed Accountants of indin.

Signed in lerms of our Audit Repon of even date
Far Padeap Tayal & Co.,

Firm Regp, No. 002733N

Chartered Accountants

Pa Adesh Kumar Gu
Hrfr.:“ - Ol Execulive mm'
Membershig No. 01643 DiN-0O143152

Place Libertypuram. Kamal
Diated: Friday, 12" Augusl 2011

for and on bishat of ha Board
Shammi Banzal Raghubar Dayal
Emculive (Rrecine Direchor
[im-001 38742 Di-00481803

Munish Kakra
Wien Pragident & Company Secratany



Schedules
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SCHEDULE-T
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: 51000000 (Previous year 51000000 Equity Shares) T10 each
Issped, Substribed & Pald up
17040000 (Previous year 17040000) Equily Shines of T10 each fully paid up
Total
SCHEDLULE-2
RESEAVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve
Genaral Resene
Opening Balance
Add: Transfered fiom Profil & Loss Account
Clnsing Balance
Securithes Premium
Foresgn Curmancy Translation Reserve on Consolidation
Profit & Logs Accaun
Total
SCHEDULE-3
TERM LOANS
from Banks:
(includes T1,66,23 837/ (Provious year 21 87 62 T34/} repayable within one year)
(In case of Parent Company securzd by equitable mortgage of nd sifuated al
Village Bhagwanpur, Roorkee, Linarakhand and by way of 191 charge on building
situated at Libertypuram and whoks of fre movabie & immovable & Machinary,
Machiney spures, (ooly K aecessores elo. and by way of hypothecatlon of vehicles
and in case of Subsidiary Company, secured against hypothecation of Car and assels of
Ihe Company. financed under Lerm |oan and Corporale guarantes ol Parant Company and
Geptin Investments Private Limited.
{rom Others:

{includes T16,20,808/- [Provious year T Nif] repayable within one year) (Secwred by
way of hypothecation of vehicles)

WORKING CAPITAL LOANS

(I case ol Parmt Company secomd against hypothecation of Company’s enfire stock of rw
materiily. stock in procass, inished goods, conkumabies, slotes and spares, (inished goads In
stores, in ransil and with shippers at port awaiting shipmant for exports, receivables, chegues,
bink dra;u.sm all mEr CuEn zsmr:j and 2nd mprﬁt lﬂwﬂgm Plant & m“m{ and
in case of Subsidiary Company secured against on pany's enfire stock of
finished goods in stores and In ransi. all eiher Cument and Foed Assets of (he Company and
the Corporata Guarantze of the Farent Company and Geolin Inwesiments Frivate Limited)

Total
SCHEDLLE -4

UNSECURED LOANS
Secur(ty Deposity
Shixt Term Loans and Advances

from Baris

fom olhiers

Accruad Intenest

SCHEDULE-R
DEFERAED TAX LIABILITY
Al tne start of the yvear
for tha yiar

¢

{Consolidated)

(Amount in )

awes2om | sioszo0 |
51,00,00,000 51,00.00,000
17.04.00,000 17.04.00,000
17,04,00,000
399,500 399,500
74.70,09,364 68,70.00,364
£.00,00,000 6,00.00,000
B0.70,09.354 T T4,70.09,364
107133757 10.71,33.757
577,699 10.93,149
184219414 18.23.84,280
1,00,93,39,734 1,03,80.24,050
121339975 2.33 67,15

37.08,302

94.18,88,709 78,4061 539
1,06,70,27,076 80,74,28,695
3.39.04.700 341,449,100
8,45,00,000 14,00.00,000
' - 47 52,000
11.84,04,700 17,86,01,700
5.96,34.007 6.52.89 687
(42,66, —_(56.35.590)
: 5,96,34,097

/5]



Liberty Shoes Ltd.
(Consolidatod)

Schedules

{amioant i €)

Land 120405825 581,980 | 13marees . - - | 100887805 | 130405825

|Euillting " #1.91,15.560 762 -] M mazsien| 46047698 £6.56323 -| S46SEE3Y | 16444373 | 171073862
Pun & Machiery | 736042088 | 56067825 | 502084 | VR7SOERE9| 300184200 | 40400308 | 408040 | 3N6556260| 450042380 | 435978587
[Muwzs taoesanet | 1pseases|  aspser | 2opears) 152004007 | 1308555 6138 | 1ES003I2 | ArATM| 16790064
[Pateres 15,500 - 16,580 3B . 18 1662 662

[Furnites & Fidum | 163074735 | 57REITES 1690201 | 219080250 43576501 | 1750405 A97.746 | GO3B1902) IGBAIGMT| 119408154

[vercies roazeoss| 321sign | mgrran| omearase| 235eedie|  mioosss|  wirosi| 20s8anr| RSed2g|  asTEILITT
ot 150,87, 76,544 | 16,6066 787 | 1.04.34.012 |1,86 4400319 568255623 | 0.59.07610 65,730,436 | 647589797 [101,68.10,522 ( 54,05,19.921
(Capitat wworh

Jpropress

aBuiloing under

canseuction .| 1os160e A wssams : 3 s S TSR :
Immmu-

e -l sran . 487740 . . - | wnam

{Grand Total 1.5087.75.544) 18.1260,306 | 10434012 [16796.01.028| 568255623 | B50.07610 | 6573436 | 647585707 1032012131 0619021

[Provosyesr | 1410032256 | 1240761 | 22650473 | 150550 a7 | mesarass|  Gh2esss| SE4255623| QenS1902t| 0044524

*The part portian of factory buiding situated al Libertypuram is construcied on kease bold land.

7¢)
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{Consolidated)
(Amount inT)
. swmwm
SCHEDULE-T
INVESTMENTS
Long Term (At Cost)
Investment in Govemment Securllies _
6 Years National Saving Certificatas Vil Issue (Including Interest) 44,83 41,811
Total ﬂ&' 41,811
Apgregate amount of Quoted Invesiments - -
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments 44 834 41.811
Apgregate Market Value of Quoled Investiments - -
SCHEDULE-8
INVENTORIES (AS VALUED AND CERTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT)
Raw Materials 225521142 15.21,79,726
Goods in Process 12,8099, 009 16,56.58 304
Finished Goods 62,27 03 611 49,51,01,508
Packing Matarals 1,08.96,683 09,33 802
Stores & Spares 23941124 1,79,51.220
0il & Lubticants 8,649,806 4,28 610
Total 1.01,20.31 465 84,12,53,269
SCHEDULE-9
SUNDRY DEBTORS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GDOD)
Debts outstanding for a penod exceeding six months _
Considered goad 10,01,16,098 12,66.20311
Considered doubthul 4,50.31.972 4,06.58.368
Ciher Debis
Considesed good 51,99.69.090 49 48 56 324
66,51,17,158 66.21,35,003
Less: Provision for doubtiul debts 4 50.31.972 4,06,58 368
Total __62,00.85,186 _62,14,76,635
SCHEDULE-10
CASH AND BANK BALANCES -
Cash in hand including fmprest 50.72.302 36, 68896
Balances with Scheduled Banks
Curent Accounts 75.98,554 8594 957
Fixed Deposits 1,96.27 186 311,34 965
Total 3,22,98,042 4,4398.818
SCHEDULE-11
LOANS & ADVANCES (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GDOD)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for fhe wvalue fo be received 242448650 17.02.90,835
Securities 18,46.48,546 18,00,87.725
Total 42,70,97,196 Sﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ
SCHEDULE-12
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors 41,96,33.752 36,70,92 291
Advances from Customiers 1,68.15,880 3,09.68.492
Expenses Payable 7,09.41,291 5,77.52,267
Oihes Liabilities 2,51.25.340 7.05,36.493
Total 541516272 | 526349543




Liberty Shoes Ltd.

(Consalidatnd)
[Amount in T)
[ umam
SCHETHAF13
PROVISIONS
Prowision for taation 21,51.305 21 49.416
Prowision for Excise Duty 1.7%6.42 794 1.22 50 886
Total 1,47,93,599 1,44,00,302
SCHEDULE-14
OTHER INCOME
Bank and (her Interes! (T deducted al Source 21.22 | acs [Previous Year $3.16 Lacs)) 1772 26,67 364
Freighl 41,76.783 20.19.745
Miscellaneaiss income 56,849,550 30,46 486
Exchange Rate Fluctuations 18,55.943 -
Bad Debils Recovered 130,000
Exceptional [tems
Protit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2.72.160 1552
Total 1,78,96,713 90,41,147
SCHEDULE-1S
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCKS
Dpening Stock:
Finished 4%9.51,01,508 44 B6,74,747
In Process 16,5658 304 15.33.27.001
B6,07,50,902 60.20,01,748
Closng Stock:
Finished 6227 03611 4451 04,508
In Process 12,80.99.009 16,56 58.394
75,08,02 620 66.07,59,902
Incremse/{Decreasa) in Stocks 9,0042,7118 587,586,154
SCHEDULE-16
RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED & FINISHED GOODS PURCHASED
(4) Raw Malerials
Opening Stock 1521,79,726 143672079
Add Purchases 1.37,31.90.538 1,03.33 42 858
1,52,53.70.264 1,17.70,14,937
Less: Clasing Sinck 225521142 152,719,726
Raw Materlals Consumed 12098 49122 1,02.48,35.211
(b} Finished Goods Purchased 28,20,51.6M 40.04,78.490
Total (a+h) 1,58,19,00,793 1.42,53,13,701
SCHEDULE-1T
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Freight Inwards 3,15,392 71,711,904
Upper Production Charges 693,39, 506 4 BB 92 061
il & Lubricants 1,81.64.623 21376370
Elecincity Charges 45346718 3.30,31.178
Repairs 1o Machineny 25559 607 1.57 B5.386
Liand Laase Flent 1,23.457 112,236
Franchisa Fea 7.90,00.000 7.90,00,000
Total _24T8A0303 | 205369135




¢

{Consplidaled)
{Amaunt in )
[ N T L
SCHEDULE-18
PAYMENTS AND BEMEFITS TO EMPLDYEES
Salaries, Wapes and Borus 386314180 28.81,77 021
Cankribution 1o Provident and Ofer Funds 23371278 15945615
Stafl Weltars Expenses 72,70.3495 64,29 659
Total 416955853 __81,05,52,205
SCHEDLAE 19
ADMINISTRATION, SELLING & MISCELLANEDUS EXPENSES _
Paciing Maarials Consurmed 10.86,84 662 B.60,94,275
Printing & Stationery 749.78.333 52,90, 440
Claims 1.96,69 444 106,714,814
Tour. Traveiting and Conveyance 5,17 67,595 3.98,16,555
Insurance Chasges 57,33475 50,21 596
Foes and Taves 2.20,45, 546 1.67.05016
Postage, Telegram, Tebephons and Tolex 1.37,70,429 1.15,17,552
Subscriptions 4968 3.1 563
Advartissmants f5.34,43.008 323,02 865
Rent 79929913 36961 433
Donations 1145451 10,66,338
Eiport CIF Expenses 16204465 164,55,708
Freight Outward 31085887 1.90,49,029
Samples 45,705 6.04,953
Auditors' Remoneradion:
Statutory Auil Fes 3,538,540 340,180
Tax Auelil Fee 80,000 BO,000
Cerfification Fee 20,000 20,000
Cost Audil Fea 75,000 75,000
Miscellaneous Exponses 1,53.89.102 1.29.80,228
Rayalty 911,08,000 B.58,53,000
Entertainment Bxpenses 36,084,520 3384034
Commission 534,97 268 42325443
Sales Promotion Expenses 4.02,56,502 6.19,75,194
Newspipers & Perlodicals 2,03.308 1,87 847
Debts: written off & Amarlisalions 2,90,21,708 2.96,31,364
Prowision for doubitul debts (Mole xvi of Schedule 21) 4373604 18,2151
Consultancy & Professional Chaiges 27415018 27316437
Repairs & Maintsnance Expanses-Building 19954438 1.07.95 436
Repairs & Maintenance Expanses-0thers 4340277 598,117
Exchange Rate Fluctuations Vs 26,39 326
Loss on transter of Duty Crodil - 403237
Exceptinnal |tems
Loss o0 sake of Fued Assels 18.11.568 54,27,706
Tutal 71,68,44,776 58.47,26,795
SCHEDULE-20
INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES _
Bank interest 7.96,35,520 B.1479.821
et to Oihers 64,39.477 1.44.85.488
Bank Chames 94,70 51 £4.99,366
Toral 102454575




Liberty Shoes Ltd.
(Consalidatnd)

Schedules

SCHEDULE-21
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

o The accompanying Consolidaled Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Historical Cost Conventlans.

s Accounting Policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with generally accepted
Accounting Principles followed by the Company, applicable accounting standards prescribed by
ihe Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, accounting standards issued by the Institute of
Charterad Accountants of India and the refevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

o The items of income & expenditurg ane recognised on accrual basis.

b) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial stalements have bean prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard
21- "Consolidated Financial Statements™ issued by the Institule of Charlered Accountanis of India
The consolidated financial statemenis have been prepared on the following basis
Investments in subsidiary

o The financial statements of Liberly Shoes Lid, (The Parent Company) and its Subsidiary Companies
have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding logether the book values ol like items of
pssets, liabilities, profit and loss after fully eliminating intra-group balances

o No goodwill / capital reserve is recognised in the consolidated financial statements as the cost to
the Parent Company of it investments in the Subsidianes is equivalent to Parent Company's portion
af equity in the Subsidiary Companies.

e The financial statements of the Subsidiaries used in the consolidalion are drawn up o the same
reporting date as that of the parent company i.e. year ended 31" March, 2011,

« Minonty interest’s share of net assets of Subsidiary is identified and presented in the Consolidated
Balance Sheal separate from Liabilities and the Equity of the Company's Shareholdars

e The Subsidiares considerad in the preparation of these consolldated financial stalements are
Liberly Refail Revolutions Limited (LRRL) and Liberiy Foo! Fashion Middle East FZE (LFF) in which
parent company halds 93.86% (Frevious year 93 B6%) and 100% (Previous year 100%) of Equity
Shares respectively. In this report, whonever Subsidlary Company has been referred, | relates lo
LARL and wherever Subsidiaries has been mfered it relates to LRRL and LFF, unless specified
otherwise,

c) Revenue Recognition

» Farenl Company's sales revenue is recognised on dispatch of goods, nel of sales retums, trade
discount and VAT/Sales Tax bul inclusive of excise dufy and does nol include the cost of raw
materials used for caplive consumption. However the Subsidiary Company's sales revenue |s
recognised net of sales returns, trade discount and Value Added Taw/Sales Tax

e In case of Parent Company, export incentives are accounted on accrual basis and include the
estimated value of incentives receivable under the DEPB Scheme and the Duty Drawback Scheme.
Any difference at the time of actual receip! Is accounted for in the year of receipl. The amount of
export incentives has been adjusted with the cost of raw materials consumed. In case of Subsidiary
Companies, there is no such transaction.

« Parent Company has accounted for the Gain/Loss on transter of Duty Credit Entitlements received
under the DEPB Scheme in he year of transfer. In case of Subsidiary Companies, there is no such
transaction.
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{Consolidated)

o In case of Subsidiary Company, dividend Income is accounted for when the right to receive Is
established,

d) Inventory Valuation
In case ol Parent Company, inveénlories are valued al the lower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost
ol inventories, other than for manufaclured finished goods and goods in process, s determingd on
Weighted Average Cost Method (net of CENVAT credit availed) of stock accounting. Cost ol
manufactured linished goods and goods in process include cost ol raw materlals consumed on
weighted average basis and appropriate portion of allocable overheads and Excise Duty wherever
applicable. Scrap, if any, al the year end does nol form part of the closing inventory.
In case of Subsidiary Company, inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable valug
determined on Weighted Average Cost Methad

e) Fixed assets and Capital work in progress
In case of Parent Company, Fixed assets are stated at original cost (net of Cenvat credit availed) but
including freight inward, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating 1o acquisition and
installation thereof.
In case of Subsidiary Company, Fixed assels are slated at cost of acquisition and subseguent
improvements therelo including taxes and duties, Ireight and other Incidental expenses refating to
acquisition and installation thereal,
In case of Parent Company and Subsidiary Company, capital work in progress includes cost of fixed
assels under installation and ather Incidental expenses.

1) Depreciation
In case of Parent Company, depreciation on Fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM)
al the rates and in the manner prescribed in the schedule X1V of the Companies Acl, 1956. In case
ol Subsidiary Company, depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) at the rates
determined on estimated economic useful lives of assets described below or at the rates and in the
mannes prescribed in the schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 whichever is higher.

Furniture & Fidures 10 Years 6.33%

Office Equipments 10 Years 475%
Compulers & Software 7 Years 16.21%

Vehicles 12 Years 9.50%
Costing less than fs. 5000/ 1 Year 100%
g) Operating lease

In case of Subsidiary Company, leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk
and benefits of ownership of the |ease lerm ae classified as operaling leases. Operating |ease
payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit & Loss account on straight line basis over the
lease term.
h) Investment
In case of Parent and Subsidiary Company, long term investments are valued at cost. Short Term
Investments are valued at lower ol cost and fair value, caloulated individually for each investment,
i) Excise Duty.
In case of Parent Company, the excise duty is accounted for at the time of manufacture of finished
goods.
Since the Subsidiary Companies are not in the manufacturing activities, the accounting policy
ralating to Excise Duty has not been defined.



Liberty Shoes Ltd.
(Consalidatnd)

i) Contingent Liabilities
All known liabilities wherever material are provided for and labilifies, which are material and whose
future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and
disclosed by way of Moles to the Accounts.

k) Employee Benefits

i} Incase of Parent Company and Subsidiary Company, shorl-ferm employee benefils are recognized
a5 an expense in the Profit & Loss Account of the year in which the relaied service |s rendered

iiy In case of Parent Company, Gratuity liability is deftined benefit obligation and is provided for on the

basis of an actuarial valuation on projected method made at the end of the financial year and the
Company has created a trust under the Group Gratuity Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation
of india (LIC) and amount pald/payable in respect of the present value of lability lor past services |5
charged to the Profit & Loss Account every year. The difference, il any, between the actuarial
valuation of the gratuity of employees al the year end and the balance of funds with LIC is provided
for as Hability in the books.
In case of the Subsidiary Company, the confribution to defined contribution scheme such as
provident fund, superannuation fund etc. is chasged to Profit and Loss Account as incured. The
Subsidiary Company provides the retirement benefits in the lorm ol graluity on the basis of actiuarial
valuation using the projected unit credil method as at the date of the balance sheet and it has
created a trust under the Group Graluity Scheme and the entire amount of gratuily as per the
actuarial valuation |5 provided lor as liability in the books.

I) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are affributable fo the acquisition or construction of qualitying assels are
capitalized as part of the cos! of such assets. All other bomowing costs are charged to revenue in
the pesiod in which they are incurred.

m) Foreign Exchange Transactions
In case of Farent Company:

(i} Assets and liabilities relating fo foreign currency transactions remaining unsettied at the year end
are comverted into Indian rupees at closing rates and any gain or loss arisen is adjusted in profit and
loss account.

(i) Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the transaction date and
seltlemen| dale are recognised (n the profit and loss account under the head “Exchange Rale
Fluctuation™,

(iii) The difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate on the date of inception of a forward
contract in respect of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilities is recognised as income
or expense and is amortised over the life of the confracl

(iv) Forward exchange contracts entered 1o hedge the foreign currency risk are marked to markel as al
the year end and the resuitant exchange gain or loss is recognised in the Profit & Loss Account.

(v} Non monetary loreign cumency llems are camied al cost and accordingly the nvestment in loreign
subsidiary is exprassed in Indian Curency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
iransaction
In case of Subsidiaries, the fransaciions in loreign currency entered during the year are reconded at
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of ransaction

n) Provision for Taxation
Provision for taxation is made taking into consideration the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and
Weallh Tax Act, 1957, whemver applicable. Adjustments, il any, arising out ol the assessment |5
mada in the year the assessment is complated.

o) Provision for Deferred laxation
In case of Parent Company, deferred tax has been provided for all timing difierences as required

undes the provisions ol Accounting Standards |ssued by the Institte of Chartered Accountanis
of India
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In case of Subsidiary Company, Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred lax assets are recognised only
to the exteni thal there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred lax assels can be realised. In situations, where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assels are recognised only if
there is wirlual certainly supporied by comdncing evidence hat they can be realised agains! lulure
taxable profits.

p) Impairment of assets
The Parent Company reviews the camying value of assels for any possible impairment al each
balance sheet dale. An impalrment loss 15 recognised when the carying amount of an assel
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing the recoverable amounl. the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value 2t appropriate discount rates.
In case of Subsidiary Company, the assels thal are subject lo amorfisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever evenls or changes in clroumstances indicate that the camying amoun! may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets' carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amoun! s the higher of the assets' fair
value |ess costs 1o sell and value in use.

2. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
i) Details of Managerial Remuneration of Parent Company:

(Amount in )
Payment and provision lor remuneration to:
*  Executive Director(s) 36,00,000 36,00,000
» Director (Law & Taxation) 9,00,000 9,00,000

During the year no remuneration has been paid to Non-Executive Directors except for the sitting fees
of 20,000/~ (Previous Year T45,000/-).

Detail of Managerial Remunesation of Subsidiary Company:

(Amount in T)

Payment and provision lor remuneration to:
= Managing/Executive Director 11,40,000 9.50.000

[} In the opinion of the Board and to the best of its knowledge, the value of realisation of current
assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount
at which they have been stated in the Balance Sheet.

iii) The assessment of the Parent Company in respect of Income Tax & Wealth Tax is completed up
lo Assessment Year 2008-2009.

lv) The Parent Company, in the year 2003, entered Into an agreement with Liberty Enterprises and
Liberty Group Marketing Division for taking over Iheir foolwear business on lranchise basis and
with Liberty Footwear Ca. for use of “Liberty" trademark on exclusive basis for an initial period of
7 years. In terms of the agreements, the same have been automatically renewed for a further
period of 3 years. The looiwear business as defined in the agreement includes Fixed Assets,
Intellectual Properties, Know-how and Distribution Network etc. of the two Partnership Firms,
Under the ferms of the agreements. no ownership of assets. tangible or intangible, has been
transferred to the Company. During the year, in terms of the agreements and in conformity with
the requisite approvals of the Cenlral Govt. the Company has made the payments (including
provisions) amounting to ¥6,00,00,000/- (Previous year ¥6,00,00,000/-), ¥7.00,00,000/-
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(Previous year ¥7,00,00,000/-) and ¥3,90,00,000/- (Previous year ¥3,37,50,000/-) to Liberty
Enterprises. Liberty Group Marketing Division and Liberty Footwear Co. respectively

As reporied earfier, the learmed arbitrator, while deciding the dispute amongst the Parfners of
Liberly Enterprises as regards to the aloresald franchise agreement, confirmed the Company's
stand by holding that the arbitrational verdict will not be having any impact on the Company as
regards |o such arrangements, being not a party to the dispute. Liberty Enterprises, besides its
ratification to the agreement has also confirmed that by raising the legal issues its affected
pariners have filed Iheir objections belore the appropriate authority and sought order for setting
aside of such award, In view of the |egal opinion available and to protect its legal rights further,
the Company has also preferred its objections against arbitrational award at Civil Court, Kamal.

v) The Subsidiary Company, in terms of the license user agreement dated 17 March, 2004 with
M/s Liberly Footwear Co., a parinership firm, in which some of the Direclors are interesied
as partners, has paid €11,03.000/- (including Service Tax) (Previous year ¥11,03,000/-)
as Royalty.

vi) Inferest o others includes T56,46,544/- (Previous year $93,14,647/-) paid by Parent Company
and ¥ NIl (Previous year ®48,00,000/-) paid by Subsidiary Company against short term loan @
12% p.a. from M/s Geofin Investments Private Limited.

vil) During the year, the Parént Company has capitalized the borrowing cost ol T Mil (Previous year
T Nil/-) as part of the cost of the qualifying assets

viil)The Parent Company has paid the excise duty amounfing to ¥8,3599,748/- (Previous year
¥5.44,61,762/-) against the sales execuled during the year.

The Parent Company has also made the pravision of excise duly of ¥1,26.42 294/- {Previous
Year ¥1 22 50 B86/-) against finished gonds lying in stocks as on 31" March, 2011 and the
ditference of two has been recognised separately in the Profil & Loss Account

ix) In case of Parent Company, Fixed Deposit receipts (including accrued Interest) for value of
71,83,32,765/- (Previous year 33,07 37,476/-), appearing under head 'Cash & Bank Balances,
are under lien with Banks/respective authorities for issuance of bank guarantees/|etters of credits
and as earnes! money.

In case of Subsidiary Company, Fixed Deposit receipts (including acerued interest) for value
of 280,942/~ (Previous year 33,97 489/-) are under lien with Banks for facilitating the bank
guaranles(s).

¥} During the year, the Parent Company, Under the Focus Produc! Scheme ol Direclor Genaral
of Fareigh Trade, Governmen! of india, has recaived an Incentive of ¥1,33.21,811 (Previous year
751,99,800/-) for foreign exchange realised against exports made during the financial years
2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 & 2010-11 and the profils of the Company lor the year
are higher to that extent.,

¥} In case of Subsidiary Company, Sales/Adjustment of Gross Block amounting to ¥16.99.201/-
(Previous year THT.71.615/-) is on account of wiitten off of the fixed assets of the stores which
have been closed down during the year. Accordingly, the depreciation in respect of the block has
been adjusted with the depreciation reserve.

wi) The Parent Companys registration process with the concerned revenue authorities in respect
of 4,34 acres of land purchased at Libertypuram has not been completed fill date for the want of
certain procedural formalities. The possession of this piece of land has been with the Company
and the sale agreement has already been execuled.

xiii) The Parent Company, under ils retail sales promotion policy during the year 2007 to 2010, had
borne the cost of its subsidiary's refail stores on account of rental and maintenance charges
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apainst retallers' margins viz-a viz its sales. The same were considered under the account head
Sales Promotion Expenses in those years. But during the year under consideration, with the

implementation of revised arrangements, this promotional policy has been discontinued.

«iv) Contingent Liabilities

Bank Guarantees issued on behalf of the Parent Company submitted with various
instilitional customers in terms o their orders.

Bank Guaraniges issuad on behalf of the Subsidiary Company

Excise Duty' for the financial year 1994-95 & 1995-96, CESTAT has decided
this parficular matfer in favour of the Parent Company but the deparfment has
preferred their appeal with the Hon'ble Supreme Court. In 2010-11 the said
matter has been decided In favour of the Parent Campany.

On account of disallowance of legitimate credit of CENVAT against Excise Duty/
Education Cess' for the period from November 2004 to June 2005, May 2006
lo June 2006, Financial year 2002-03 and 2004-05. CESTAT while admitting
Parent Company's appeal directed to deposit 339 Lacs under protest and has
granied stay.

Service Tax for Financial year 2002-03 on services received from outside India
prior to the applicahility of the related law. In 2010-11 the matter has been
decided in tavour of the Parent Company.

Invoice Funding facility In case of Parent Company

Corporate Guarantees given to banks by the Parent Company for securing
banking facilities of retail subsidiary and joint venture company’

Income Tax in case of Parent Company on account of routine assessment
for the assessment year the assessment years 1998-99 & 2003-04

Income Tax in case of Parent Company lor the assessment year 2002-03,
2003-04 and 2004-05 on account of reduction in amount of deduction w's

“BOHHC in terms of Taation Law Amendment Bill, 2005

Value Added Tax" in case of Parent Company for the financial year 2005-06,
2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09 & 2009-10 on account of classification of goods
al dilleren| rate of tax

Value Added Tax' in case of Subsidiary Company for the financial year 2008-09
and 2009-10 on account of classification of goods at different rate of fax
Service Tax in case of Parent Company on GTA Senvices for the period from
January 2005 to March 2007

Due lo some administrative compliance relating to EPCG licences for which the
Parent Company has fullilled its export obligation.

7.50.53,061

27,160

3,55,81,366

-

16,00,00,000

35,03 426

1,48,60,568

25.99.869
5.28.598

44200783

(Amaount in T)

2,31,68,160

12,67.824
2,78,31.534

3.55,81.366

1,24 536

4,43 63 581
11.00,00,000

35,03 426

17,686,599

2,96,02.499

4,42,00,783

'On the basis of indemnifying clause under the agreement with the two Partnership Firms whose
businesses have been available fo the Company on franchise basis, the Company has given its
undertaking to the Excise Depariment 1o pay the liabilities, il any arises, relating to the period prior to

the date of the agreement.

“Including amount deposited under protest 39,00.000/- (Previous year 39.00,000/-)

‘Includes the corporate guarantee for %6,00,00,000/- (Previous year 36,00,00,000/-) given on behalf of
erstwhile Join! Vienture Company and Company IS in process of getting the same released.

‘Including amount deposiled under protest $1.07.25 554/ (Previous year T60.90.487/-).
*Including amount deposited under protest 225,99, 869/- (Previous year ¥ Nil).
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w) In case of Farenl Company and Subsidiary Companies, Capltal commitments not provided for
are estimated at T150 Lacs {Previous year T Nil) and ¥61.73 Lacs (Previous year T Nil)
respeclively,

xvi} Provision for doubtful debts: During the year, the Parent Company has considered debis for
T Nil {Previous year ¥3,15,58,132/-) as doublful debls and also has withdrawn ¥ Nil (Previous
year ¥3,03.37.030/-) out of the provisions made in the earlier years for the same and written
off the bad debts (net) for ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥2.96,31,364/-). Differential of the provision
made and amoun! withdrawn during the year, detailed as under, has been charged to Profit &
Loss Account for the year and the balance has been carried in the balance sheel;

Sl {Amount in )
Provision for the year - 3,15,58,132
Less: Amaunt withdrawn from the provision made for - 3,03,37.030
doubtful debis in the earlier vears
Net debited to Profit & Loss Account - 12.21,102

Balance Sheet (i
Opening Balance 3,67 41,057 3,55,20.855
Add: Provision for the year - 31558132
Total 36741957 6,70,78.987
Less: Amount withdrawn during the year - 3,03,37.030
Closing balance 36741957 367 41957

wil) During the year, considering the non-recoverability of some of the debts, the Parent Company
has written off the debls amounting to ¥2,90.21,708/- (Previous year £2,96,31,364/-).

wvill) During the year, the Subsidiary Company has considered debts for ¥43,73 604/ (Pervious year
6.00,477/-) as doubtful debts and made a provision for the same accordingly,

i) The Board ol Direclors of the Parent Company considers and malnlains “Foolwear™ as the only

business segment of the Parent Company.
o) Basic and Diluted Earning per share: The Basic and diluted earning per shase of the Company
is as under: -
(Amount in T)
Basic & Diluted
Profit/{Loss) after Taxation (A) 6.34,83,167 4,63,95,962
Weighled average number of Equity Shares (B) 1,70,40,000 1,70,40,000
Mominal value per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted Eamning per share (A/B) 373 272

wi) Related Parly Transactions
The Patent and Subsidiary Companies have made the lollowing transactions with related parties

as defined under the provisions of Accounting Standard 18 [ssued by the Instilule of Chartered
Accountants of India



A)  Transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as at
st March, 2011:

¢

(Consolidated)

[Amount in )

Receiving of Services 1.53,73,875 26,413 . 1,54,00,288
(1,39.24,199) (84.012) () (1,40,08,211)

Sale of Goods 11,23,159 . = 1123150
(23.83,566) (-) (-) (23,83,566)

License Agresments (Franchise Fee & 18.75,10,000 . . 18,75,10,000
Licensing Fee including service tax) (18,17,19,250) () () (18,17,19,250)
Payment of Salary, Wages and other benglits 4.81,65,198 56.40,000 27.00.000 5.65,05,198
to employees (366.04.376) | (54.50.000) (28,90,000) (4,49.44376)
Loans taken 20,14,00,000 = = 20,14,00,000
124'-‘3"mm {'I {'} m‘t"‘mqm

Repayment of Loans 25,69,00,000 - - 25.,69,00,000
(31.79,46,715) (-) (-) (31,79.46.715)

Interest Paid/Payable 56,46,544 y . 56,46,544
(1.41,14,647) (-) () (1,41,14,647)

Sundry Debtors 23,59.729 = = 23,59,729
(23,83 .566) () () (23.83,566)

Sundry Creditors 1,45,60,635 - - 1,45,60,635
{4.36.64.306) (=) () (4.36.64,306)

Unsecured Loans B.48.21,300 - - 8.48.21,300
(14,47 52.000) {-) (=} (14.47.52.000)

Previous year figures are in brackets.

B) Detall of Related Parties and description of relationship:

1) EnHul‘ms where Key Managemenl Personnel/Relative of Key Management Personnel has significant
intluence:
Geofin Investments Private Lid, Liberty Group Marketing Division, Liberty Enterprises, Liberty
Footwear Co., Sanjeev Bansal Charitable Trus!, Liberty Innovative Outfts Lid.

i) Key Management Personnel:
1) Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 2) Sh, Adarsh Gupta 3) Sh, Shammi Bansal 4) Sh. Satish Kumar Goel
§) Sh. Sunil Bansal

i) Relatives of Key Management Personne:
S/8h. Anupam Bansal, Raman Bansal, Vivek Bansal (Brothers of Directors), Sh. Ayush Bansal,
Sh. Mannan Bansal (Sons of Director)

Notes: Recewving the services rom Key Management Personnel and their relatives includes rent and land fease charges.
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C) Disclosure of significant transactions with related parties:

Geolin nvestment

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

1,33,29,000

(Consolidatad)

1,18,15,724

Ren for Office Premises
Pul Ltd.
- Liberty Footwear Co. Fent for Office Premises 5,64 000 5.64.000
Receiving of Services
Rent lor Qffice Premises 4.50.000 4.50.000
al
e Medical ollies lor | 1030875 1094475
employees
Liberty Innovative Sale of Goods 11,23.159 23 83,566
Sale of Goods Dutfits Lid. manufactured and deal in
by the Compsany
Liberly Enferprises Franchisa Fea 661,680,000 | 6.61.80,000
(including service tax)
: Liberty Group Franchise Fee 7.7210.000] 7,72.10.000
tioonse Agreemenits Marketing Division (including Service Tax)
Liberty Footwear Co. Licence fee 4.41,20,000] 3,83.29.250
(including Service Tax)
Payment of Sakary, Liberty Group Marketing Satary, Wages and 48165198 3.66.04,376
Wages and other Division other benefits
benelils lo employees
L.oan Taken 20.14.00,000 | 24,43.00.000
Repayment of Loans o Unsecwed Loans | 25,69,00.000 | 31,79.46,715
Inferest Paid/Payable 5646544 | 14114647
Sundry Debtors Libesty Innowative Against safe of goods 2350729 73.83,566
Dutfits Ltd. manutactured and deal in
by the Campany
Libery Enterprises Franchizse Fee 12723800 1.2091.123
{incleding sarvice fax)
Liberty Group Marketing | Franchise Fee & Salary, | 1,02,08.231] 214,17 423
Sundty Creditors Division Wages and Other benefits
(including service tax)
Liberly Footwear Co. Licence Fee 3080024 1.01.75.760
(including service fax)
Unsecured Loans Em!l;;wcgmaﬂ Unsecured Loans B.48.21.300] 14,47 52 .000

xuii) Detail of Employee Benefits - Gratuity
The Parent Company has a defined gratuity plan (Defined Benefit). In of Parent Company, every
employee, on completion of continuous service of five years or more with the Company, is entitled to
get the gratuity of 15 days salary on the basis of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.
In case of Parent Company, the scheme Is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) in the
form of qualitying insurance policy.
The following table summarises the components ol net benefil expense recognised in the Profit & Loss
Account and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans:



-
{Consolidated)

Profit and Loss Account
a) Net Employee Benefit Expense (recognized in Employee Cost):
{Amount in T)

1 Current Service Cost 55.20,001 16,20,068

2 Intesest Cost on benefit obligation 11.84.401 10.35,903

3 Expected return on Plan Assels 11.45.035 (8.59.535)

4. Actuarlal Loss/(Gakn) 14.33,852 6.73.350

n Net Benefit Expenses 7003218 24,69.786
Balance Sheet

b)  Details of Provision for Gratuity

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair value of Plan Assets

Surplus/(Deficit)

Net Assel/(Liability)

Fal B B

2,10,06.932
1,63,00,334
(47.06,598)
(47.06.598)

1,49,30,016
1,20,49.474

(19.80,542)
(15.80.542)

¢} Changes in Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation are as follows:

iﬂn‘num in il

1. Defingd Bengfit Obligation at the beginning of the year 1.49,30.016 1,36,51,976
2 Current Service Cost 55.20.001 16.20.068
3 Interest Cost 11,94 401 10.35.903
4 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations 14.33.852 6,73.350
5, Beneits paid 20,71,338 (20,51,281)
6. Defined benefit obligation al the end of the perlod 2.10,06,932 1,49,30.016
d) Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets are as lollows:
{Amaount in ¥)
1. Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 1.29.49.474 1.03.05,183
2. Expected Return 11,45,035 B,59,535
3 Contributions by employer 4277 163 38.36,037
4 | Benefits paid 20,711,338 (20,51,281)
5. | Actuarial Gains/(Losses) : =
b. Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 1,63,00.334 12049474

tAmount in
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e) The principle assumptions used in determining Gratuity obligations are as follows:

Discount rate 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 8,00% B.00%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% £.00%
Atiition rate 1% to 3% degending upon age 1% lo 3% depending upon age

& oW -

f)  Amount for the current and previous periods are as follows:
(Amount in T)

Defined Benefit Obligation (2,10,06,932) (1,49,30,016)
Plan Assets 1,63.00,334 12949474
Surplus/{Deficll) {47 06.598) (19,80.542)
Experience adjustments an plan liabilities 14,33,852 6.73,350
Experience adjusiments on plan assets - -

e o P

In case of Subsidiary Company, every employee, on completion of continuous service of five years
or more with the Company, is entilled to get the gratuity of 15 days salary on the basis of last
drawn Ssalary for each completed year of service. The Company has created trust under the
Group Gratuity Scheme and the entire amount of gratuity as per the actuanial valuation is provided
for as liability in its books.

ofii)In case of Parent Company, the Deferred Tax assel of ¥1.2553.282/- (Previous year
7166,38,968/-) has been calculated after considering the timing differences on account of
depreciation.
In case ol Subsidiary Company, in view of the Accounting Standard (AS) - 22, Deferred Tax
Assels due fo camy forward of Business Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation have nol been
accounted for.

wiv) General description of Subsidiary Company's significant leasing arrangemeants:
The Subsidiary Company has laken certain premises under operaling lease arrangements, These
are generally not non-canceliable and are renewable either by mutual consent on mutually agreed
terms or at the oplion of the lessee.

(Amount in ¥)

Lease payments for the year 6,30,93.849 2,28,08,103
Minimum Lease Payments
Not |ater than one year 2,13,86.986 1,77.89.419
Later than one year but nol fater than five years 2,06,71.324 7,74.58.695
Later than five years o =
wiil) In case of Parent Company, there are no dues payable to the Investor Education and Profection
Fund as at 317 March, 2011.

wvl) Previous year figures have been regrouped) re-arranged wherever nacessary. The current year
and previous year figures have been rounded off to 1he nearest rupees.
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Liberty Shoes Ltd.
Regd. Office : Libertypuram, 13" Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail, P.O. Bastara,
Distt. Karnal-132 114 (Haryana).

25™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 28™ SEPTEMBER, 2011
ADMISSION SLIP

Members or their proxies are requested to present this form for admission, duly signed in accordance with their specimen
signatures registered with the Company.

I/We certify that | am/We are a registered member of the Company holding .............................. Equity Shares and hereby
record my/our presence at the 25th Annual General Meeting of Liberty Shoes Ltd. being held on Wednesday, 28th September,
2011 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Libertypuram, 13th Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail,
PO. Bastara, Distt. Karnal - 132114 (Haryana).

Please v in the box

D Member D Proxy Folio No. / ClIeNt ID™ i e

D.RID*

""""""""""""""""""""""" Proxy's Signature

Name of the Member / Proxy in Block Letters

*Applicable for Members holding Shares in Electronic Form
Notes: 1. Members having queries, if any, on Annual Report are requested to send them ten days in advance.
2. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report while attending the meeting.
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Liberty Shoes Ltd.
Regd. Office : Libertypuram, 13" Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail, P.0. Bastara, Distt. Karnal-132 114 (Haryana).

PROXY FORM
[/ WE o OF s in the district of
.......................................................................... being member(s) of Liberty Shoes Ltd., hereby appoint .............ccccoooveviiiiinnan.
....................................... OF oo i the district of L failing hiM L O
............................ in the district of ..........c.cccoococevvvviririenen.. @S MY/ 0UT proxy to attend and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the

25th Annual General Meeting of Liberty Shoes Ltd. to be held on Wednesday, 28th September, 2011 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company situated at Libertypuram, 13th Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail, PO. Bastara, Distt. Karnal - 132114 (Haryana)
and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ... day of oo 2017 Al oo NAME ..o

Folio No. / Client ID* ..o DPID* .,
AQAIESS ..ottt

Revenue

Signature of the member ...,
Stamp

* Applicable for Members holding Shares in Electronic Form.

Note: 1. The Proxy need NOT be a member of the Company. 2. The Proxy Form duly signed across a Revenue Stamp should
reach the Company's Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the scheduled time fixed for holding the above
said meeting.



ATTENTION SHAREHOLDER(S)!
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LIBERTY SHOES LTD.

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Folio No. (For Physical Shares) e,
Name of 1" Registered Holder e,
Name(s) of Joint Holder(s) OO PO TO OO U OOTO TR
Registered Address e,
E-mail ID (to be registered) e

I/We, shareholder of Liberty Shoes Ltd., hereby agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic mode. Please register
my/our above E-mail ID in your records for sending me/us communication through electronic mode.

DAte: .o, STGNATUTE. oo
(FirstHolder)

Notes:
1. Shareholder(s) is/are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any change in the E-mail ID.

2. In case, shares are held in electronic form, kindly register your E-mail particulars with your Depository Participant.

To,

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

A-40, 2" Floor, Naraina Industrial Area, Phase - II,
Near Batra Banquet Hall, New Delhi - 110028

Tel - (91) - 11- 41410592 - 94

Fax: (91) - 11- 41410591

E-mail : delhi@linktime.co.in
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